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The board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to present the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022
(the "Year").

Year 2021 was one of the most extraordinary and challenging
year in the last few decades.

The outbreak of coronavirus ("“COVID-19") has brought upon
unprecedented challenges to the world and Hong Kong.
The implementation of various social-distancing and
lockdown measures has caused social and economic
disruptions of a devastating scale which dealt a heavy blow
to the global and local economies. In view of the
complicated external environment, the Group has adopted a
sound financial policy, and actively explored new
development opportunities.

We expected the Year 2022 market conditions to be similar
to last year. Although the global and local economic and
business environment is still affected by the uncertainties
caused by COVID-19 pandemic, the Group will continue to
create value for shareholders and seize opportunities,
continue to optimize its business portfolio, and get ready for
new investment opportunities. The Group will also continue
to strengthen the governance of sustainable development,
closely follow the pandemic situation and take all necessary
measures to protect the interests of employees and business
operations.
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EEWREF

In terms of the existing construction machinery business, due
to the relatively stable undertaking of government
infrastructure projects, the Group managed to record an
increase in the (i) sales of construction machinery and spare
parts, and (ii) rental income generated from construction
machinery during the Year. The occupancy rate for the rental
machineries was approximately 85%.

For the financial services business, we shall continue our
business expansion with a cautious and positive attitude.
The Group is confident in the prospects of the financial
markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would
like to increase its presence in the financial markets by either
organic growth or working with reputable partners.

For our investment property in the United Kingdom (the
“UK"), 55 Mark Lane, the rental income is steady through the
Year. The Group does not foresee significant fluctuation to
rental income in Year 2022.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders for their full support,
and appreciate the directors, the management and the staff
for their valuable contributions to the Group, which shall
strive to streamline its existing businesses and to explore
new business opportunities in order to create returns for
Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

2021 was another challenging year as the global and local
pandemic of COVID-19 continued to disrupt all types of
activities. Amid major economies gradually resumed
economic activities due to the roll out of various vaccination
programs, the global economy was still affected by the new
COVID-19 variants, heightened geo-political tension and
global supply chain mismatches due to the pandemic. The
Hong Kong economy has remained vulnerable as economic
recovery was uneven in different sectors, stringent measures
of quarantine for travelers continues and global economy
recover remains uncertain. The Group remained resilient and
focused on its existing businesses.

Though operations of the construction industry in Hong
Kong have been affected as a consequence of COVID-19.
Due to the relatively stable undertaking of government
infrastructure projects, the Group managed to record an
increase in the i) sales of construction machinery and spare
parts, and ii) rental income generated from construction
machinery during the Year. The occupancy rate for the rental
machineries kept at approximately 85%.

To manage the impact of COVID-19, the Group maintained
its operation and put in place precautionary and risk
mitigation measures, including suitably deploying remote
work arrangements, periodic deep cleaning and sanitisation
for both our warehouse and offices, provision of facemasks
or other personal protection equipment for all employees,
daily COVID-19 Antigen Test and body temperature
measurement for all personnel at workplaces, and proper
record keeping of work schedule and contact history for
tracing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmER DM
BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the Group continued to pursue a long-term
business strategy of diversifying into financial services
business, property leasing, property development business,
and construction machinery business. The Group’s principal
activities include: (i) money lending; (ii) securities investment;
(i) provision of commodities, futures, securities brokerage
and financial services; (iv) asset management; (v) rental and
trading of construction machinery; (vi) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vii) property
development; and (viii) property leasing.

The Group offers crawler cranes of different sizes, other
mobile cranes, aerial platforms and foundation equipment in
its construction machinery rental fleet. The Group procures
these construction machinery mainly through the
manufacturers of construction machinery located in Western
Europe, Japan and China as well as traders of used
construction machinery around the world. The Group has
maintained approximately 185 units of construction
machinery in the rental fleet during the Year. In order to
maintain a modern fleet of construction machinery with a
greater variety of models, the Group has been replacing
portions of its fleet of construction machinery from time to
time. The Board will continue to monitor the daily operations
and review the expansion plan of the rental fleet and the
capital requirements of the Group regularly. The Group may
reschedule such expansion plan according to the operation
and needs, the preference of the target customers and
prevailing market conditions if necessary. To satisfy
customers’ needs, the Group also sells spare parts for
maintenance purposes or upon request.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group holds licenses for conducting Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO"). The Group provides a wide range of
financial services.

The revenue for the Year of the financial services business
(including provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial services)
was approximately HK$16 million (2021: approximately
HK$11 million), represented approximately 5% (2021:
approximately 3%) of the total revenue of the Group and a
segment profit of approximately HK$10 million (2021:
approximately HK$2 million loss). The increase in revenue
was mainly due to increase in the value and volume of
transactions in securities brokerage.

In the course of preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Company had engaged an independent qualified
valuer to determine the recoverable amount of the trading
right of the business carrying on the regulated activities of
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) as defined under the SFO. The recoverable
amount of the trading right has been determined by fair
value less cost of disposal, which is primarily making
reference to similar transactions in the market. During the
Year, no impairment loss (2021: nil) on the trading right was
recognised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmER DM
BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group holds money lender licenses under the Money
Lenders Ordinance and the money lending business was
conducted through its subsidiaries to grant loans to
individuals and enterprises. The Group strived to adhere to a
set of comprehensive policy and procedural manual in
respect of loan approval, loan renewal, loan recovery, loan
compliance, monitoring and anti-money laundering.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had loans receivable with
carrying amount (after expected credit loss) of approximately
HK$347 million (2021: HK$605 million). HK$398 million of the
loan receivables and interest income receivables was
received from borrowers during the Year. The Group
recorded interest income from loans receivable of
approximately HK$41 million for the Year (2021: HK$117
million).

During the Year, the Group granted three loans to
independent third parties. As at 31 March 2022, 20 loans with
amount of approximately HK$309 million were overdue, 20
loans are supported by personal guarantee and/or collateral,
interest rate ranging from 8% to 18% per annum. The
subsequent settlement from year end date to the date of
this report amounted to approximately HK$78 million.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount outstanding from
the five largest borrowers of the Group totaling to HK$220
million (representing 63% to the total loans receivable of the
Group) while the carrying amount outstanding from the
largest borrower amounted to HK$77 million (representing
approximately 22% to the total loans receivable of the
Group).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the management had engaged an
independent qualified valuer to determine the expected
credit losses of the Group’s loans receivable (the “loans
receivable ECL"). In assessing the loans receivable ECL of
the Group, a credit rating analysis of the underlying debtors
was adopted by reviewing the historical accounting
information to estimate the default risk. The Group applied
different expected loss rates to different classes of
receivables according to their respective risk characteristics.
In determining the default risk, factors including but not
limited to, the ageing analysis of the receivables, the
Group's internal assessment of the debtors’ credit
worthiness, historical and forecast occurrence of event of
default, existence and valuation of the collaterals, the
relevant regulatory framework and government policies in
Hong Kong and global economic outlook in general and the
specific economic condition of Hong Kong would be
considered. The rate of loans receivable ECL ranged from 4%
to 58% depending on the nature, probability of default and
loss of the loans receivable.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money
lending business which includes compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, credit assessment on
potential borrowers and their assets, the credibility of the
potential borrowers, the necessity in obtaining collaterals
and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk
level of the provision of loan.

The Group has performed background and credit risk
assessment on the potential borrowers before granting the
loans by (a) searching on their identity and background; (b)
reviewing and assessing their financial information; and (c)
performing an assessment on their creditability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the
value of security/collateral for granting of each loan, whether
to an individual or enterprise, on a case by case basis
considering factors, including but not limited to, the
repayment history, results of public search towards the
borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the
borrower and the financial condition of the borrower.

Our Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly
complied with all relevant laws and regulations. In the
opinion of our Directors, in addition to the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Money Lenders Ordinance constituted a major
governance on our Group's money lending business.

During the Year, we did not receive any objection from and
was not investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders
(presently performed by the Registrar of Companies) nor the
Commissioner of Police regarding the renewal of the money
lenders license.

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio
such as listed equity securities, unlisted equity securities,
unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$510 million was recorded during the Year
(2021: fair value loss of approximately HK$157 million).

During the Year, in relation to fair value loss in FVTPL of
approximately HK$510 million, a total of approximately
HK$227 million and HK$262 million were related to
investment in HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (formerly
known as Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund) (“Riverwood Fund”)
and Tisé Opportunities SPC, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

For Riverwood Fund, investment with fair value of
approximately HK$195 million at 31 March 2021 (original cost
of approximately HK$122 million) was redeemed during the
Year at approximately HK$101 million. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$94 million was recorded from this
redemption, where approximately HK$22 million represents
an actual loss and approximately HK$72 million represents a
reversal of fair value gain recognised in previous years. At 31
March 2022, there is a further adjustment to fair value loss of
approximately HK$133 million.

In April 2021, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 49%
equity interests in Kingdom Future Limited (“KFL"). KFL,
through its interests in a segregated portfolio of Tisé
Opportunities SPC, held shares of New Gains Group Limited
("NGG"), a subsidiary of China Evergrande Group (“CEG"),
which owns Fangchebao Group Co. Ltd.* (EE & £ E %%
B R A 7). The consideration of the acquisition was settled
by the allotment and issue of approximately 867 million
shares of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (“HTICI"), the indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was completed
on 20 May 2021 and the closing market trading price is at
HK$0.37 per share which made the fair value of this
investment at approximately HK$321 million. This investment
was treated as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Pursuant to the announcement of CEG dated 29 March 2021,
a number of investors (including Tisé Opportunities SPC,
acting for and on behalf of Tisé Equity SP-1) have entered
into an investment agreement with CEG where if NGG has
not completed a qualified IPO on or before 12 months after
the completion date, investors (including Tisé Opportunities
SPC) is entitled to require CEG and other relevant obligors
(jointly and severally) to repurchase the original investment
paid by Tisé Opportunities SPC together with a 15%
premium.

* for identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmER DM
BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

On 30 June 2021, CEG further announced that the terms of
the original investment agreement have been amended so
that when the relevant investor exercises its right and
request the repurchase of its interests in NGG, CEG or its
designated entity has the right to elect (i) to repurchase all
the interests held by the relevant investor in NGG at the
repurchase price (equivalent to 1.15 times of the total
consideration paid by the relevant investor); or (ii) not to
exercise such repurchase right, and in such case, Mr. Hui Ka
Yan, the controlling shareholder of CEG shall agree to fulfill
such repurchase obligation and pay the relevant investor the
repurchase price.

On 12 April 2022 and 25 April 2022, Tisé Opportunities SPC
has sent a repurchase request and reminder to CEG and Mr.
Hui Ka Yan for the original investment cost plus 15%
premium.

Following the outbreak of CEG financial crisis in the 2nd half
of 2021, with due care and diligence, the Company has been
closely monitoring the ongoing situation of the crisis and
assessing the financial impact to our Group. The Company
had engaged an independent qualified valuer to determine
the recoverable amount of this investment. The recoverable
amount has been determined by fair value less expected
credit loss, which is primarily making reference to the
information available in the market. During the Year, a fair
value loss of HK$262 million was recognised. The Company
has and will continue to use it best endeavors to minimise
losses to the Group.

14 Annual Report % 2021/22
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the rental income derived from 55 Mark
Lane contributed revenue of approximately HK$71 million
(2021: approximately HK$69 million) and the fair value gain
on investment property was approximately HK$85 million
(2021: approximately HK$10 million).

The Group has property development projects in Cambodia
and Malaysia. In Cambodia, the Council of Ministers
approved the project company to establish a special
economic zone with a size of 17,252,519 square meters at
Koh Kong Province, Cambodia. The project company shall
have the sole and exclusive right to develop the special
economic zone with all the necessary land use rights,
including those for residential, industrial and commercial
development purposes. The project was still in its preliminary
stage during the Year because of the impact of COVID-19 in
Cambodia.

The Group has another property development project in
Malaysia. The project is a residential and commercial mixed
property development project located at Port Dickson,
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square
meters (or 2,879,343 square feet). The property is held from
the government for a lease term of 99 years expiring on 8
February 2097 for residential and commercial building uses.
The project was still in its preliminary stage during the Year
because of the impact of COVID-19 in Malaysia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss of approximately HK$596
million for the Year (2021: approximately HK$348 million).
Such loss was mainly attributable to the net fair value losses
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$510 million (2021: approximately HK$157
million).

During the Year, the total revenue was approximately
HK$315 million (2021: approximately HK$346 million),
representing a decrease by approximately HK$31 million, or
approximately 9%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue generated from money lending.

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and
spare parts, rental income generated from construction
machinery and repair and maintenance and transportation
service income were approximately HK$49 million (2021:
approximately HK$41 million), approximately HK$128 million
(2021: approximately HK$100 million) and approximately
HK$10 million (2021: approximately HK$8 million),
respectively. The increase in revenue for sales of construction
and spare parts was mainly attributable to the increased
demand in bored piling accessories. The increase in rental
income was mainly attributable to the increase in
government projects which lead to improved utilisation rate
of our rental fleets.

During the Year, the revenue from money lending, asset
management, securities brokerage, provision of
commodities, futures and other financial services decreased
by HK$71 million, or 55%. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in loan receivable business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B ERE (&)

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through LX"$1E*+%H,H\Q‘1|:*+J\TEm (ITAREEF

profit or loss (“FVTPL"), net BESULMAEBR ) 2eREECATES
TE??%E

The details of the Group's securities investments and the net RAFE - AEBZEFHRERBERATFE
fair value losses recognised for the Year are set out as  ESIE/FEFIFHIIOT ¢
follows:

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of ~ Number of Percentage of total assets of
sharesheld shareholdings  sharesheld shareholdings ~ Fairvalue  Fairvalue  Fairvalue  the Group
at31March at31March at31March at31March at31March at31March (losses)/gains  at 31 March
2021 2021 2022 2022 2021 2022 for the Year 2022
o2

R-B=-F RZB--F RIBCCE RCBCCE OMCBo-F WCBSZE RAEEZ ZAST-R
ZA=t-B ZA=t-B ZAZt-B ZAZt-B ZAZt-B ZASt-R  AVE (AEBEE
FEROEE ZERAML MRRGHE ZBRAMM  2ATE 20VE (BE)/WE BEZAEMM

(Notes) Note ) HKkSmilion ~ HKSmilion  HKS'million
(Hi3) (1) BEAT BEAT BEET
Name/(Stock Code) 28/ (RBER%)
China Shandong Hi-Speed HELRSRERERERAR

Financial Group Limited (412) #12) 12,000 0.00% 12,000 0.00% - - 5 -
International Alliance Financing AR R RERERRAF (153

Leasing Company Limited (1563) 2 = - 2156633% 1.84% = N 15 145%
Carnival Group International FEARARERLF09%)

Limited (99¢) 90,610,000 9.56% 3,624,400 0.38% 8 - @ -
Imperial Pacific International BEATHARERERAA

Holdings Limited (1076) (1076) 3 4,062,000,000 280% 203,100,000 1.91% 4 13 29 021%
Far East Holdings Intemational ERERERERLA )

Limited (3¢) 4,983,000 0.46% 4,983,000 0.46% 1 1 - 0.02%
Beijing Properties (Holdings) JRER (BR) ERAF02)

Limited (925) 8,140,000 0.12% 8,140,000 0.12% 1 1 - 0.02%
Haitong International Securities BRERESREERLA (69)

Group Limited (665) 2,962,000 0.05% - - 7 - (1) -
Virtual Mind Holding Company Limited K RERAR

(formerly known as CEFCHongKong  (BITEZAZE2BRE

Financial Investment Company BRAR) (1520)

Limited) (1520) 4 - - 283,994,000 15.86% - 82 37 1.30%
Bank of Qingdao Company EERTRNERAF (3866)

Limited (3866) 5 - - 13,467,500 0.23% - 5 (10) 081%
Wealthking Investments Limited (1140)  EREABR A (1140) 6 = - 27900000 0.69% = 17 ) 0.27%
Grand Ocean Advanced Resources A= 3T & FBRAR(65)

Company Limited (65) - - 68,600,000 4.56% - 12 - 0.19%
IBO Technology Company Limited ~ SURRHEIRAERAR (2708)

(2708) - - 1,120,000 0.19% - 3 @ 0.05%
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings ~ AEBM#HK & ARRERAT

Company Limited (620) (620) - - 1,732,000 0.26% - 3 @ 0.05%
Power Financial Group Limited (397)  EFi& BEBAR AR (397) = = 8,000,000 0.29% = 1 = 0.02%
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) EERARAR70) - - - - - - 1 -
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund HT Riverwood Multi-Growth

Fund 7 N/ATER NARER NARER NATER 456 129 (227) 2.06%

Atlantis China Fund Atlantis China Fund 8 NARER  NATER  NATER  NATER 3% B (12 0.37%
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund NARER  NATER  NAMER  NAMER 19 12 () 0.19%
Tisé Equity SP-1 Tisé Equity SP-1 9 NATER NATER N/ATER N/ATER - 5 (262) 0.94%
Unlisted debt instrument FITERIA NAMER  NAMER  NABER  NATER 15 0 0) 0.32%
Convertible note receivable ERTARER NATER  NATER  NATEE  NATEE 4 4 - 0.06%
588 522 (510) 8.33%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Notes:

18

The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the
month ended 31 March 2022 of the issuers publicly available on the
website of the Stock Exchange.

International Alliance Financing Leasing Company Limited
("International Alliance”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
“International Alliance Group”) were principally engaged in offering
finance lease service.

Pursuant to International Alliance Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2021, International Alliance Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB232 million and total comprehensive
income of approximately RMB78 million.

The Group acquired approximately 28 million shares and disposed
approximately 1 million shares of International Alliance during the
Year.

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Imperial Pacific Group”) were principally
engaged in the gaming and resort business, including the
development of an integrated resort on the Island of Saipan,
Commonwealth of the Northern Marina Islands.

Pursuant to Imperial Pacific Group's annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021, Imperial Pacific Group recorded revenue of nil
and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,087 million.

The Group had approximately 4,062 million shares of Imperial Pacific
as at 31 March 2021, and a share consolidation of 20 to 1 was effective
from 16 September 2021. The Group held approximately 203 million
shares as at 31 March 2022.

Virtual Mind Holdings Company Limited (“Virtual Mind”), formerly
known as CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited,
and its subsidiaries (collectively “Virtual Mind Group”) were
principally engaged in the design, manufacturing and trading of
apparels and provision of money lending services.

Pursuant to Virtual Mind Group's annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021, Virtual Mind Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$140 million and total comprehensive loss of
approximately HK$46 million.

The Group acquired approximately 284 million shares of Virtual Mind
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5.

Bank of Qingdao Company Limited (“Bank of Qingdao”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Bank of Qingdao Group"”) were principally
engaged in the provision of corporate and personal deposits, loans
and advances, settlement, financial market business, financial leasing,
wealth management and other services.

Pursuant to Bank of Qingdao annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021, Bank of Qingdao Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB 11,138 million and total comprehensive income
of approximately RMB 3,707 million.

The Group acquired approximately 17 million shares of Bank of
Qingdao Group and disposed of approximately 3 million shares
during the Year.

Wealthking Investments Limited (“Wealthking”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively "Wealthking Group”) has a principal investment objective
to achieve earnings in the form of medium to long term capital
appreciation through investing in a diversified portfolio of global
investments in listed and unlisted enterprises.

Pursuant to Wealthking Group's result announcement for the year
ended 31 March 2022, Wealthking Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$94 million and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$258 million.

The Group acquired approximately 28 million shares of Wealthking
during the Year.

Riverwood Fund mainly invests in listed equities of companies located
in the Greater China Region (which includes Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan) or deriving income and/or assets from the
Greater China Region. Riverwood Fund may invest in Exchange-
Traded Funds (ETFs), U.S. Treasury securities and derivative products.

Atlantis China Fund (the "Atlantis Fund”) may invest in a wide range
of listed securities issued by listed companies established in or whose
principal place of business is located in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") and Hong Kong, including but not limited to listed
equities, preferred stocks, convertible securities, notes and other
financial products. Atlantis Fund may hold ancillary liquid assets,
denominated principally in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and United
States Dollars, including cash deposits and money market
instruments.

Tisé Equity SP-1 is a segregate portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC,
an exempted company incorporated with limited liability and
registered as a segregated portfolio company under the laws of the
Cayman Islands in March 2021, with an investment objective to
provide its investors with long-term capital appreciation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio
such as listed equity securities, unlisted equity securities,
unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$510 million was recorded during the Year
(2021: fair value loss of approximately HK$157 million).

During the Year, in relation to fair value loss in FVTPL of
approximately HK$510 million. A total of HK$227 million and
HK$262 million was related to investment in Riverwood Fund
and Tisé Opportunities SPC.

During the Year, the Group reversed impairment of
approximately HK$2 million (2021: losses of approximately
HK$70 million) on certain corporate assets included in the
property, plant and equipment, as a result of reversal of
impairment loss recognised in respective cash-generating
units.

During the Year, a fair value gain of approximately HK$85
million (2021: approximately HK$10 million) was recognised
for property investment of the Group.

During the Year, the Group reversed allowance for expected
credit losses on financial assets of approximately HK$9
million (2021: allowance of approximately HK$284 million
recognised). The decrease in the amount was mainly
attributable to the settlement of loan receivables received
during the year. The Group has engaged an independent
professional valuer for assessing the allowance for expected
credit losses on financial assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

During the Year, the administrative expenses were
approximately HK$146 million (2021: approximately HK$155
million), representing a decrease of approximately 6% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2021 (the "“Previous
Year”). Among the administrative expenses incurred during
the Year, approximately HK$24 million was related to
depreciation and non-cash in nature; while the remaining
expenses of approximately HK$58 million were mainly
related to staff costs. The decrease in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to effective
implementation in cost-saving plans.

During the Year, the share of losses of associates of
approximately HK$44 million (2021: approximately HK$196
million, gain). In the Previous Year, the amount mainly
represented the share of results arising from the excess of
net fair value of identifiable assets over costs of investments
for newly acquired associates of approximately HK$215
million and the post-acquisition loss of approximately HK$19
million.

The expense of approximately HK$7 million was related to
the share awards and emolument shares granted to certain
directors and employees.

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately
HK$159 million (2021: approximately HK$187 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$28 million as
compared with the Previous Year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to (i) the reduction in interest expenses of
approximately HK$80 million arising from corporate note
payables and (ii) additional interest expenses of
approximately HK$50 million arising from the increase in
bank and other borrowings.

BEEENWR DN

B mEE (48)

RAFE THRHAXHA14MEEETL(ZE
Z—F IS5 EBEL) REEZZT=—F
—A=tT—BHLEFE(EF]RDL6% - K
FEEAZITHRAXER Y2488 BTl
EXFReUERH  mMEMKAZL8EEE
TRAIEZEHETINABMR - THHAZRSEE
AR B R EIEEE KA EIFTE -

RAFE - DIEBERREBERNMBEET(Z
T-—F  WEN0EBET) EF &8
T2EAFRRIEE AT R EB LB AR
ERRRERAMEEZDIEREN21588
BT RWEBRERNI19BERT

BERXNTAEETERTETEZRES
Z D R M e D B o

RAFE BEXANBINVEEBEL(ZE
T—F N7 EEAT) REFRLH28EH
EET - RITZHRNNENEERBEELRN
FIEFSR A 4980 B BB 7T K (i) $R1T R HAb &
B INEEREIINIERZ A S0 8 EB T

Annual Report 85 2021/22 21



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

During the Year, the net income tax expense was
approximately HK$41 million (2021: approximately HK$25
million). The increase in the amount was mainly attributable
to the deferred tax of approximately HK$16 million on
capital gain tax in relation to the investment properties in
the UK.

Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"”), net

The details of the listed securities investments and the net
fair value gains recognised during the Year are set out

Bt #EI R (48)
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below:
Percentage of
Percentage of ~ Percentage of total assets of
shareholdings at ~ shareholdings at ~ Fair value at 31  Fair value at 31 Fair value  the Group at 31
31 March 31 March March March gains (losses) March
2021 2022 2021 2022 for the Year 2022
R-B-ZF
RZBZ-§  RZZZf RZ2=-§  R-BzZf RAEE ZA=+-REX
=H=t+-H ZA=1-H =A=t+-H =R=t-H ZAYHE £@EE
ZERESL ZEREAL AN ZAYE I (F48) BEZEAL
Note HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
k3 AEBT BEAT AE#T
Name £R
Goodwill International Goodwill International
(Holdings) Limited (Holdings) Limited a 7.54% 7.54% 8 5 €] 0.08%
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings Limited b 1.13% 1.05% 32 24 ®) 0.38%
Quan Yu Tai Investment ERFREERAA
Company Limited ¢ 15% 15% 306 373 67 5.96%
Oshidori International Holdings B2 BB A
Limited (622) (622) d 3.07% 1.21% 120 39 (15) 0.62%
466 7y 4 7.04%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited (“Goodwill Int'l”) invested
in a number of property investment projects in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The properties would be sold to market upon completion of
each projects, and investors (including Goodwill Int'l) would receive

dividend.

Co-lead Holdings Limited is principally engaged in trading of
securities, provision of finance and holding of investments in financial
services industry.

Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited holds 90% equity interest
in He Ying Tung Investments Company Limited (“He Ying Tung”). He
Ying Tung, through its various indirect wholly-owned or non-wholly
owned subsidiaries, is principally engaged in property development
in the PRC. He Ying Tung principally has 3 property projects under
development located in the municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou
and Hengyang of Hunan Province, the PRC, mainly consisting of
large-scale residential complex projects and integrated commercial
complex projects, as well as apartments, offices, shopping arcades,
cinemas and other supporting facilities.

Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) principally
engages in investment holdings, trading and investment in securities,
and the provisions of (i) securities brokerage services, (ii) placing and
underwriting services, (iii) corporate finance advisory services, (iv)
money lending services, (v) investment advisory and asset
management services, and (vi) margin financing services. Pursuant to
Oshidori’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021,
Oshidori recorded revenue of approximately HK$(3,101) million and
total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$4,206 million.

The Group held 77,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2022 (31
March 2021: 187,500,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmER DM
FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$2,266 million (31 March
2021: approximately HK$2,026 million) and HK$2,451 million
(31 March 2021: approximately HK$1,096 million)
respectively.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the
objective of lowering cost of funds. Therefore, funding for all
its operations have been centrally reviewed and monitored
at the Group level. To manage the Group's exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates on project, appropriate funding
policies will be applied including the use of bank and other
borrowings, corporate note payables, convertible note
payables and issue of placement shares. The management
will continue its efforts in obtaining the most privileged rates
and favourable terms to the Group for its financing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

BEENWE D

Bt #EI R (48)

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the ARNEBNEEBELLLRAEEETH G KL
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by 18 c ZLL XL EH FERUNENEREAE - &
total capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown  ZANEZBIRERA B ISARRRP IR Z [#25 ] IE
in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net M F#EstE - R T -_—_F=—A=+—HBN
debts. The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) asat TZ—F=A=+—HMNEALHE(BEHEE

31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 was as follows:

ERELE)MT

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
g T
=ZA=+t—H =ZA=+—H
HKS$'million  HK$'million

HEBT BEAT

(audited) (audited)

(&%) (EFE%)

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,922 1,426

Corporate note payables JER R ERE

— at amortised cost — 1R SH Rk AN 430 652
— at FVTPL — ARAFERFE B HE b ABR 629 628
Convertible note payables JERT AT AR B4R - 24
Total borrowings - EGEE] 2,981 2,730
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BHeRREEEY (195) (198)
pledged bank deposits EEMRITER (21) (5)

Net debts B 55 2,765 2,527
Total equity - g et 2,827 3,014
Total capital BARMREE 5,592 5,541
Gearing ratio BEAGRE 49% 46%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmER DM
FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the maturity and currency profile for
the Group's bank and other borrowings and corporate note
payables are set out as follows:

Bt #EI R (48)

RZEBE-—F=A=+—H ' XEBFETEE
HEERENTCEZE 2R REEAEEH
HIanT

Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Total

15K E2F 3-5% st

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million

BEETT BEAT BEBTT BEETT

HK$ BT 102 17 14 133
Us$ T 583 157 - 740
GBP B 1,049 - - 1,049
1,734 174 14 1,922

As at 31 March 2022, approximately 97% of the Group's
borrowings are secured by (1) investment properties; (2)
corporate note receivables; (3) property, plant and
equipment; (4) financial assets; and (5) bank deposits.

The borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately
HK$1,867 million were carried at fixed interest rates,
approximately HK$55 million were carried at floating interest
rates.

As at 31 March 2022, cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

RZEBEZZF=A=+—8 ' XEEHNIT%
EEDAMBREDE  QBRKREERE : W
X BERKSRE: OSHEE: RO)BRITHEXK
TEHEA -

MEE#) 1,867 B BB T E B TR E E M K5
B MASSEEBTMERRIZEEFIRE R -

RZE-—_F=A=+—H BHehkBE2EE
YA T Y EHEEETE

HK$'million

BEBT

HK$ BT 92
GBP H4E 49
RMB AR K& 34
Us$ ETT 15
JPY H 4
EUR BT 1
195
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Group's pledged bank deposits and finance lease
receivables bear fixed interest rates. The Group's cash at
bank balances bear floating interest rates. The Group also
has borrowings, obligation under finance leases. Exposure
to interest rate risk exists on those balances subject to
floating interest rate when there are unexpected adverse
interest rate movements. The Group's policy is to manage its
interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to
ensure that there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are appropriately fixed
when necessary.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in HK$, US$ and GBP.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments including trade
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
borrowings and obligation under finance leases which are
denominated in US$ and EUR. The Group does not adopt
any hedging strategy in the long run but the management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange risk exposure
and might enter into foreign exchange forward contracts on
a case-by-case basis. The Group has not used any hedging
contracts to engage in speculative activities.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements.

BEEENWR DN

B mEE (48)

AEE DERBTERRBARERKRE
WEREF R & o REEZRTRSEHIT
BFI% S - AEEITA U EE R BT F
RitEEE MARMEET WERLER
MTFIFRBE  ZZTBRIR B2 A%
BEHFRAR - AEBQBREAEREE
RAEREFIRES - AR TREEAEA
EEPHTARAR TRAEESBEEBE
FERE o

AEBREBEE  ABOIRHUBIT - ET
RESEFTERGEE - AEEESNINERRE
BREAUXRTEBTTAEZETERTA 8
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FE - BEMBEREEME ASELERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk

management procedures to identify and control various

types of risk within the organisation and the external

environment with active management participation and

effective internal control procedures in the best interest of

the Group and its shareholders.

28

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the “Vendor")
and Alcott Global Limited (the “Target Company”),
both are indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Glaring Sand Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell 15 issued shares of the Target Company,
representing 15% of the entire issued share capital of
the Target Company at a consideration of US$20
million (equivalent to approximately HK$157 million).
The transaction was completed on 16 May 2022.

The major asset of the Target Company is 22% of the
issued share capital of CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. a
company incorporated in Cambodia with limited
liability which is principally engaged in investment in
urban complex development project. It has obtained
approval from the Council of Ministers to establish a
special economic zone at Koh Kong Province,
Cambodia.

The Company issued fixed coupon notes with principal
amount of HK$370 million (the “Fixed Coupon Notes”)
in June 2022. The Fixed Coupon Notes is due in
September 2023.

On 22 June 2022, True Well Limited, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
order with Shanghai Commercial Bank for a bond
purchase at the consideration of approximately US$45
million (equivalent to approximately HK$355 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

(4)  On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments Limited,
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, executed an agreement for the disposal of
49% equity interest in Triple Blessing International
Limited an associated of the Group at a consideration
of HK$44 million.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 166 staff (31 March
2021: 175). The Group generally recruits its employees from
the open market or by referral and enters into employment
contracts with its employees. The Group offers attractive
remuneration packages to the employees. In addition to
salaries, the employees would be entitled to bonuses subject
to the Company’s and employees’ performance. The Group
provides a defined contribution to the Mandatory Provident
Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
for the eligible employees. The Group also adopted a share
option scheme and share award scheme.

The operation staff consists of experienced machinery
operators and mechanics. While such employees are highly
demanded in the market, the Group manages to maintain a
relatively stable workforce by continuous recruitment from
the market or through referrals. New employees are required
to attend induction courses to ensure that they are equipped
with the necessary skills and knowledge to perform their
duties. In order to promote overall efficiency, the Group also
offers technical trainings to existing employees on the
operation of more advanced construction machinery from
time to time. Selected operation staff are required to attend
external trainings which are conducted by the manufacturers
of the construction machines to acquire up-to-date technical
skills and knowledge on the products of the Group.

BEEHHRR N
B EIRE ()

@) RZTZZFRAZ+=H AARMEEFE
2 & /B~ FlVictor Ocean Developments
Limited 28 37 1 3% JA &5 7N SR B Bt 22 2 A
Triple Blessing International Limited Y
9%z - RERAMBEETT -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final

dividend to the shareholders of the Company for the Year
(2021: nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR

30

In April 2021, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mr. Su Junhao pursuant to which the
Group acquired from Mr. Su 49% equity interests in KFL
at the consideration of approximately HK$321 million
which was settled by way of allotment and issue of
approximately 867 million shares of HTICI. KFL, through
its interests in Tisé Equity SP-1, acquired shares of
NGG. The acquisition was completed in May 2021.

The allotment and issue of the above-mentioned shares
by HTICI resulted in the dilution of the Company’s
percentage shareholding in HTICI from approximately
53% to 47% and therefore constituted a deemed
disposal of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Following the completion of the said issue, HTICI
remains as an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company as the Board considered the Company
still has sufficient power to direct relevant activities of
HTICI having regard to the size of Company’s holding
of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

In July 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Hundred Gain Industrial
Investment Company Limited (“Hundred Gain”)
pursuant to which the Group sold 637,500,000 shares in
HTICI, representing approximately 8.44% of the then
issued share capital of HTICI, to Hundred Gain at
HK$0.52 each for a total cash consideration of
HK$331,500,000. As of the date of this report, disposal
of a total of 61,488,000 shares of HTICI was completed.

It was considered that the Group has de facto control
over HTICI even though it has less than 50% of the
voting rights. The Group is the majority shareholder of
HTICI and the other vote holders of HTICI are
dispersed. There is no history of other shareholders
forming a group to exercise their votes collectively. As
the said disposal will not result in Group's loss of
control over HTICI, HTICI will still remain as a subsidiary
of the Company following the completion of the
transaction.
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Save as disclosed, the Group had not made any other PBRETIETEEIN  REBRAFE I EEITEMA
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associates EftbEBAWBEHHEWB AR MEIZE AT -
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year was full of opportunities and challenges. The
COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the pace of global
economic recovery and adds uncertainties to the financial
market. However, the Group implements prudent business
strategies to establish a diversified business portfolio that
can survive the uncertain market conditions while exploring
high-quality asset investment opportunities to explore the
growth potential of profit and capital value for shareholders
and investors of the Company.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly
uphold its risk management policies, strength its capital
management and implement stringent cost control measures
to uphold its profitability during downturn of economy.

The Group will continue to expand the clients base and
establish a strong track record in order to strengthen the
businesses of corporate financial advisory services, asset
management services and streamline the client base of
money lending services in the coming future. For the
securities brokerage services business, the Group will
explore the involvement in the share placement activities to
enhance its revenue stream.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an
important stop on the ancient Maritime Silk Road and an
important location for China to promote the “One Belt, One
Road” construction in the 21st century. Now Cambodia is
also preparing an economic transformation, with many
business opportunities emerging. Meanwhile, Cambodia has
a decent investment environment and the market is highly
liberalised and internationalised, attracting the attention and
injection of global capital. While taking part in the
development potential of the land development project, the
Group is also exploring more business opportunities to
invest in more business sectors in Cambodia and to share
the development dividend of this high growing emerging
market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular
countries in Asia. In recent years, Malaysia’'s GDP has
continued to rise, which proves that Malaysia has strong
investment potential. The Group is also deploying and
looking for local high-quality projects, following the layout
along the “One Belt, One Road” regions. Looking forward,
the Group remains confident in its existing businesses and
will continue to monitor the performance in order to
maximise the returns to its shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRGSHEEEBEFS

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haiying, aged 68, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 January 2012 and was re-designated as an
executive Director and became a member of executive
committee of the Company in February 2012. Mr. Xu also
acts as a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Xu is the senior technical consultant and senior manager of
China Jieneng Huangbao Group Company Limited* (7 Bl &fi
B IR R & B A PR A 7)), whose principal business is the
development of energy conservation technologies, clean
and new energy, and energy infrastructure construction. Mr.
Xu has substantial management experience and has been
the manager of the representative offices of Wallem &
Company Limited (MM EBAGR 2 E]) in Shanghai and
Tianjin, The People’s Republic of China and the chief
representative of the Shanghai representative office of Hong
Kong Maritime Company Limited (& & /& & B R A 7]) and
has served other management positions. From May 2017 to
February 2021, Mr. Xu served as an executive director of
Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were
delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 8 February 2021).

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 June 2012 and
was re-designated as an executive Director of the Company
in August 2012. Dr. Ou is a member of executive committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Civil & Resource Engineering from The University of Western
Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor of
Engineering degrees in Engineering Management &
Structural Engineering respectively from Tongji University ([A]
EARE). Dr. Ou has over 30 years of professional engineering
and management experience in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries both in Australia and China. He has
been a senior staff member in the world’s leading energy &
resource firms including Kellogg Brown & Root (formerly
known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well
as Sedgman Ltd., which is specializing in coal processing and
handling plants. Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive
director of Rey Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX
focusing on exploration and developing energy resources in
Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy and
resource projects around the world such as acting as the
Lead Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6
Jimblebar project, Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion
project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project,
Yemen LNG Project (in the Republic of Yemen) and Western
Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage
5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has extensive experience and
network in China. He was the general manager of Fujian
Liming Construction Company* (f&#& AR ETIE N Al)
from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest Professor for
Inner Mongolia University (A5 & A%) and Inner Mongolia
University of Science & Technology (N & & B £ K 8) in
China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an executive director of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341), which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

* for identification purpose only
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EENRGSHEEEBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director and a member of executive committee of the
Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In
addition to the responsibility to oversee the Group's finance
unit and functions, Mr. Fok also involves in the formulation of
strategic plans for the business development of the Group,
fund raising activities and potential merger and acquisition
activities of the Group. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in
business administration from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow
member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries). Mr. Fok currently serves as an
executive director and the chief executive officer of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 49, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company in
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the chairman of each of audit
committee and remuneration committee and a member of
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales, Australia with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer
Information Systems. He is a fellow member of each of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practising Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, investment and financial
management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment manager
of Sprint Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of each of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock
code: 871), Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code:
3991) and Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company), whose securities are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as
independent non-executive director of Shenyang Public
Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 747) in
September 2020. Mr. Chan was an independent non-
executive director of each of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 1353, whose shares were delisted from the main board
of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021) from
April 2017 to February 2021, Grand Peace Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8108, whose shares were delisted from
GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from 27 August 2021)
from March 2021 to August 2021 and Up Energy
Development Group Limited (stock code: 307, whose shares
were delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange
with effect from 5 January 2022) from April 2017 to January
2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEAEEEBRERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2012. Mr. Lam is a member of each of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has obtained a
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has more than 23 years of
working experience in the commercial and corporate finance
field. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102), which
is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. In
addition, Mr. Lam is also a director of China Natural
Resources, Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ) since 2003.
Mr. Lam was an executive director of SFund International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange) from 2016 to 2022.

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 July 2021. Mr.
Mak is the chairman of nomination committee and a member
of audit committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated
from the China University of Political Science and Law with a
Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is a legal executive
of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong.
Mr. Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30
years. Mr. Mak currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Talent Property Group Limited (stock
code: 760) and Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Mak served as
an independent non-executive director of each of Fujian
Nuogqgi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were
delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 8 February 2021) from April 2017 to February
2021 and Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock
code: 307, whose shares were delisted from the main board
of the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from
April 2017 to January 2022.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as the company secretary
on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to
practise in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of
Hong Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Ms. Chan has many years of experience in advising on
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to
joining the Company, she was the company secretary and
general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms
Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. She
also has a master of corporate finance degree from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining sound and well-
established corporate governance practices and procedures
that are consistent with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“"CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
on a quality board of directors, sound internal control,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all relevant code provisions of the CG Code throughout the
Year, save and except Code Provisions C.2.1 and the former
Code Provision A.5.1:

(i) under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Company has neither appointed a board member
as the chairman of the Board nor appointed a chief
executive officer. Having considered the business
operation of the Group at the material time, it is
believed that the Board, which consists of experienced
professionals, can function effectively as a whole, and
the executive Directors along with other members of
senior management of the Company are effective in
overseeing the day-to-day operation of the Company
under the strong corporate governance structure in
place; and

(i)  under the former code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code,
the nomination committee should be chaired by an
independent non-executive director. The nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee"”) was chaired by Dr. Zhiliang Ou, an
executive Director. Having reviewed the structure and
roles of the Nomination Committee and regard to the
implementation of new Listing Rules, with effect from
29 December 2021, Dr. Zhiliang Ou has ceased to be
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr.
Mak Yiu Tong, an independent non-executive Director,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term
success of the Group and for its leadership, strategic
planning, risk management, corporate governance, financial
performance and culture. The Board has established audit
committee (the "Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”), Nomination
Committee and executive committee (the “Executive
Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, each with specific terms of reference setting out their
authority and duties. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board
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Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic
planning and managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture
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TRER/RE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

Each committee has authority to obtain external professional
advice and to seek information from employees, and the
Company will provide sufficient resources to the committees
for performance of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of
the committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and all decisions of the committees are reported
to the Board. To further reinforce independence and
effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors, and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees have been structured with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as
members. Details and reports of the committees are set out
below.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of
the Company by formulating its strategic direction and
supervising its operations and affairs in an effective manner.
Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibilities towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual
responsibilities to all Shareholders and that he should give
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the
Board is responsible for the formulation and approval of
overall business strategies and policies of the Group,
management of the business and affairs of the Group, and
monitoring of the performance of the management of the
Group and is charged with presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in its annual and interim results, other
announcements containing inside information and financial
disclosures of the Company required under the Listing Rules
and other applicable rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

e  establishing and maintaining the strategic direction and
objectives of the Group

° evaluating significant investment proposals, major
acquisitions or disposals

° appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
members of the committees

e ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group

e  ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective
controls is in place to enable risks to be assessed and

managed

° monitoring major capital transactions or other
significant operational or financial matters

®*  monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group's business
are delegated to the management.

TRER/KRE
ESSHRRESEER(E)
EXgzETIZRERRE
o HEVIHEANREZRE T NRBR
e HABAKRENR BAMBHHLESRHE
s ZUEXBEZIEEMZEEKE
o MRMBHRZEHAEETHHRRA

SB 2 FHAR

o  BRRAFEARZEEERNEFE KL

IR R
s ERIZEARFREMEKRNLERRE
£H

s EBEEECKRRE

EEEEREARAREXB ARKENRE
# -

Annual Report 3§ 2021722 4.3



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES ES2HBRESEER(B)

(Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three RAREHE EFeRE_LWNTESN=
executive Directors and three independent non-executive &I IFHITESE -

Directors.

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEECRE

Executive Directors:
HITES

Mr. Xu Haiying

AT ELAE

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
B ESeiE LT - X Fat CEN)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
EEEAAE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BAFITES:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
[RERZE ST

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
MBI E

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Their biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 34 to 38 of this report.

The three independent non-executive Directors, which
represented more than one-third of the entire Board, bring a
wide range of business and financial experience to the
Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the
Group and the development of the Group's strategies and
policies and promotes checks and balances of the
management process to safeguard Shareholders’ interest.
The Board reviews regularly the Board’s composition and
considers that the composition of the Board is well balanced
with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The Board is also satisfied that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines and the
Company complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

A list of Directors and their respective role and function has
been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed in relevant corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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TRER/RE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for
governing the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”).

Except for Mr. Fok Chi Tak, each Director has entered into a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years. All Directors are subject to the
retirement by rotation at least once every three years under
the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire by rotation and retiring Directors are eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person
to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board,
or as an addition to the existing Board. The Board may from
time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder may serve the Company a written notice and
follow the designated procedures for nomination of
Directors under the Articles, which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EESARREEEER(E)
(Continued)

The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly BEZE@HFEVEFTERITNACH  TRE
intervals and holds additional meetings as and when the ERAEEREINNEITEE  UEANEH
Board thinks appropriate to discuss matters relating to the ~ANEBEKE - £5E48E - KB - BAREARK
Group's strategies, business operations, performance, &EHHEZEH °

governance and material investments.

Attendance records of the Directors and committee ZERZE@KERNAEEZHELHEH W
members for the Year are set out below: T

Attendance/Number of meetings
HEGBRRY BTEERY
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee = Committee meeting

EZg WTZEE ENZEE REZEE FMZEE BRRXE

Total number of meetings EAEBERY 15 7 2 2 2 1
Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Xu Haiying ‘afm%%i 15/15 7T NATER  NATER NATER 71
Dr. Zhiliang Ou (Note 1) (ST (1) 14/15 7T NATER 22 2/2 11
Mr. Fok Chi Tak Fﬁi’*%i 15/15 717 NATER  NATER NATER 1
Non-executive Directors: FYTEE !

Dr. Wang Yu (Note 2) TFEL(HE2) 910 NATER NATER NATER NATER 1
Dr. Li Yao (Note 3) FRET (PHEE3) 55 NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER

Independent Non-executive ~ BV JEHTES :

Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan ~ BR$AZL LA 1515  N/ATER 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing MEHTE 15/15  N/A P 22 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (Note 4) BRI (MfEE4) 8/8 N/ATER il 00 NATER il
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (Note 5) 28 % 58 £ (i3 5) 56 NATER 171 NATER NATER NATER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Notes:

Dr. Zhiliang Ou has ceased to be the chairman (but remained as a
member) of the Nomination Committee with effect from 29
December 2021.

Dr. Wang Yu resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15
October 2021.

Dr. Li Yao resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 30
June 2021.

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 12
July 2021. He was also appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 29 December 2021.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 12 July 2021.

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly

to ensure the Directors have adequately and effectively

performed their roles and devoted sufficient time to the

Company's affairs. The Board was satisfied that the Directors

had a strong commitment to the Company and positively

contributed to the Board through their participation in the

Company's affairs and the Board's discussions and decisions,

as reflected in their high attendance record on the Board

and its committee meetings during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

All Directors have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals. Notice of not less than
14 days was given to Directors for the regular Board
meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Board in
preparing the meeting agenda and, during which, the
Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the
agenda for all regular meetings of the Board. It has been the
practice of the Board and accepted by all members of the
Board that relevant information of Board meetings will be
sent to all Directors three days (or other reasonable period)
prior to the meetings.

Board meetings involve active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, by all
of the Directors present. Board minutes are prepared and
kept by the Company Secretary recording in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views voiced by any Director. All draft and final minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of committees are sent to
Directors or Board committees members as appropriate for
comments, approval and records. Board records are
available for inspection by any Director upon request.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having a conflict of interest or material interests would not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions and a separate
Board meeting shall be held where independent non-
executive Directors who have no material interests should be
present at such meeting. Directors having a conflict of
interest or material interests in a transaction shall, before the
meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s) therein in
accordance with the Articles, and shall abstain from voting
on the resolution(s) and shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting. Such declaration of interests
will be duly noted in the minutes of the relevant Board
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on
governance matters to the Directors. Members of the
management have been reminded that they have an
obligation to supply the Board and the Board committees
with adequate information on a timely basis to enable each
of them to make informed decisions. All Directors are
entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related
materials. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Group's senior management. In
addition, the Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice under appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Board may
resolve to provide appropriate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the executive
Directors seek to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package
of orientation materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received
an induction training with external legal adviser on director’s
duties and obligations and meeting with management for an
overview of the Group. The Directors are kept informed from
time to time on the latest development of any changes to
the regulatory requirements and the status of compliance of
applicable rules and regulations by the Company as well as
business development and operation plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision C.1.4, the Company has
arranged for, and provided fund for, the Directors and the
Company Secretary of the Company to participate in
continuous professional development organized in the form
of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refreshed of their knowledge, skill and
understanding on the Group and its business or to update
their skills and knowledge on the latest development or
changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the Year, all
Directors have participated in various training and
continuous professional development activities and/or were
given speech or training materials at external seminars/
training sessions.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been arranged and is in force to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group from their risk exposure
arising from the businesses of the Group and potential
personal liabilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A
summary of such board diversity policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing such board diversity policy,
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives
are disclosed as below.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, the
Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board member's appointments will be
based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board’'s composition will be disclosed in the corporate
governance report annually in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
implementation of the board diversity policy.

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds,
qualifications and experiences, including extensive
experiences in resources, auditing, accounting, investment,
corporate finance, project development and management.
In view of the present size and complexities of the operations
and the nature of the risks and challenges the Group faces,
the Nomination Committee considers the Company has
achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge
and diversity among the present Board members.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was set up in June 2010. The
Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to
enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In accordance
with its terms of reference, the Executive Committee
monitors the execution of the Company'’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses
and makes decisions on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee is
comprised of all existing executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu
Haiying, Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Fok Chi Tak.
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TRER/RE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in May 2006.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and (c) overseeing the internal control procedures
of the Company. Meetings shall be held at least twice a year.

This report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman of the
committee), Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the
Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Previous Year and unaudited interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2021 and the related results
announcements;

(b) reviewed the independence of the external auditor and
engagement of external auditor for annual audit;

(c) reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the compliance with
relevant accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other statutory requirements;

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems; and

(e) recommended on the re-appointment, remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, no issues brought to the attention of the
management and the Board were of significant importance
to require disclosure in this annual report.

The Company has adopted a set of internal guidelines on
whistle-blowing in 2013. Arrangement has been put in place
by which employees can report any concerns, including
misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without
fear of recrimination for fair and independent investigation
of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that
subject to prior approval by Audit Committee, no employees
or former employees of external auditor can be appointed
as director or senior executive of internal audit or finance
function of the Group, within 12 months preceding their
employment by the external auditor to enhance
independent reporting by external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Nomination Committee in August
2009. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed change to the Board; (b) identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board; (c)
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) making recommendations on
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and
ensuring a succession plan is in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is
comprised of one executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Mak
Yiu Tong (chairman of the committee).

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the structure, size and
composition of the Board including the diversity as well
as the competence, experience, academic background
and qualification of its members;

(b) reviewed and assessed the independence of each
independent non-executive Director;

(c) considered and recommended the appointment of new
Director appointed during the Year; and

(d) recommended on the nomination of Directors for
re-election at the annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in May
2006. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are (a) evaluating the performance and making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies
and structure for the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Company; (b) establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on
remuneration; (c) determining specific remuneration
packages for all executive Directors and senior management
in the manner specified in its terms of reference; (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of independent non-executive Directors; (e)
reviewing the appropriateness and relevance of the
remuneration policy; and (f) reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board as to the fairness and
reasonableness of the terms of any Director’s service
agreement, which are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is
comprised of one executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman of the committee) and
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the remuneration
packages of existing and proposed Directors;

(b) reviewed the terms of service contract of new Director
appointed during the Year; and

(c) reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration
policy of the Company.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director
was involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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TRER/RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company including (a) developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (b) reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing the
Company's compliance with the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going
concern basis and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements, announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. Members of the
management have provided the Board with monthly updates
and sufficient information for the Board to develop and
maintain a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.
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TRER/KRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditors is set out below:

BMEREX(E)

RAEE - BEONEZ AP RR HARBUSERE
RIBER, BN ZEREEHIIMT :

Fee paid/payable
for the year
ended 31 March

2022
BE-ZT——
=ZA=+-—H
LEFEEERS
EBNzEH
HK$'million
BEET
Audit services =R 2
Non-audit services SERZBRTE -
Total =t 2
The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding its AR FZEEARAFEE 2 HEHRE 2 HRE E
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the  {EH 2 BRRENAREFE 91 =98 B 2 B ZE
Year is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages Bl % -
91 to 98 of this report.
Annual Report 35 2021722 59



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRER/RE

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for its consideration. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates
who are not nominated by Board members. The factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for director
include:

e  business experience relevant and beneficial to the
Company, diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and
skills;

e  character and integrity;
e accomplishments in personal careers;
e independence;

e willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member;

and such other perspectives relevant to the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations of candidates for the Board's
consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Declaration

and payment of dividends are subject to the discretion of

the Board. The Board would consider, inter alia, the

following factors before declaring or recommending
dividend to the Shareholders:

(a)

(9)

the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Company'’s contracting parties;

the Company’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company's business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with

applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the

Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from

time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends

will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing
sound and effective internal controls and risk management
for the Group to safeguard the interests of its shareholders
and the assets of the Group at all times. In this connection,
an internal control and risk management system has been
established to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage or mitigate rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve the Group’s business objectives.

The Company has in place an integrated framework of
internal control which is consistent with the principles
outlined in the “Internal Control and Risk Management — A
Basic Framework” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as illustrated below:

NEPEESE - AR EEREKA

EXeACHABEBARBARNERE LA
EEEZFK‘IE&W& PARE B ORIZ L IR 2 1
DmAMARE 2EE - ARBEBUL R AR
MEBREEGE  KAE(MEBE)RETE
HRBERBHIBRZBER - LEESORE (M
IBEBR) REEEBRAEEXRK B R AR

AREEHE— ﬁ,\ =R NI
[AMEEERRE ﬁK A ] e R A
B NEBEEIEAESR 'ail e -

Monitoring e Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
= FrERTH B RS E 2 RIR
e Internal audits performed by internal audit department
A BB PIETT B EAZ
Information and e Information in sufficient details is provided to the right person timely

Communication FEmEEATIRETD

3 BB -

and external parties

SR AN

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers

RUAEENBUREES « HEERHIA T B

e Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties

AR 3R] R ER SR (A A] SE

Control Activities .

EEES B E AT HERMITE RIS

BIRZBR

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out

ZBRNMIEFF

e  Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,

authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.

ERRHERRARS BES
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND RAZEE EREERERM(E)
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

Risk Assessment

2B B & A

Control Environment
BRI

|dentification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company’s objectives are performed regularly

EHIER - ATENATEERARRIERZ I 2ARASRE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

REVRETTEIAEEATRR 2 B

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high
ethical standards to the staff are established
RURBEAELEERARRBNEFAELSBERRE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff

concerned

I MRS B TEE R RIZREE LER
®*  Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority

are set

R R BIRIEE KA HE & il

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management system,
reporting regularly the results to the Board through the
Audit Committee and making recommendations to the
relevant department management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the internal
control system covering all material factors related to
financial, operational, compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and physical and information security.
Internal control reports containing its findings and results
were reported to the Audit Committee during the Audit
Committee meetings and had been delivered to all Directors
for review.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGE
MENT AND THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

The internal audit department had reported during the Audit
Committee meetings the key findings identified by the
Company's external auditors in respect of the Group's
internal controls and discussed findings and actions or
measures taken in addressing those findings. The Company
considers the internal control systems and risk management
were effective during the Year. No material issues on the
Group's internal control system have been identified by the
Group's internal audit department and the Company’s
external auditors during the Year which required significant
rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
Model Code for the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as a company secretary on
1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise
in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong.
Ms. Chan has many years of experience in advising on
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to
joining the Company, she was the company secretary and
general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms.
Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. She
also has a master of corporate finance degree from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

During the Year, Ms. Chan has received no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the
Shareholders receive accurate, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group by publication of announcements,
circulars, interim and annual reports. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s
website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a
useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. All Directors will make an effort to attend and the
external auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any
extraordinary general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the
Shareholders at general meetings would be taken by poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meetings of the Company (the “EGM") shall be convened
on the requisition of any one or more Shareholder(s) (the
"Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and shall
be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”), which is available on
the website of the Company. Under the Policy, information
of the Group shall be communicated to the Shareholders
mainly through annual general meetings, extraordinary
general meetings, financial reports, and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed
to the Company Secretary:
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

By post

Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F

Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai Hong Kong

By email
jovey.chan@acesogrouphk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
Shareholders’ meetings.

Shareholders shall follow Article 58 of the Articles for
including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders’ right to convene
extraordinary general meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and public
investors. The Company updates the Shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance
through its annual and interim reports. The website of the
Company (http://www.acesogrouphk.com) has provided an
effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year. An up-to-date version of the
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the
date of this annual report, its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in (i) money lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii)
provision of commodities and securities brokerage and other
financial services; (iv) asset management; (v) rental and
trading of construction machinery; (vi) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vii) property
development; and (viii) property leasing. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 7
to 29 of this annual report under the paragraphs headed
“Business Review” and "“Financial Review” in the section
headed “Management, Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. For the Year, the Group had incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$370 million (2021: loss attributable to the owners of
approximately HK$376 million). The gearing ratio as at 31
March 2022 was approximately 49% (31 March 2021: 46%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the
Group's existing business activities on the environment.
During the Year, the Group strived to build an
environmentally friendly enterprise with enhancement of
energy usage efficiency, implementation of various emission
reduction measures and improvement in resource usage
efficiency. Details of the environmental policies and
performance will be set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company which will be available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange at
or before the end of August 2022.

The Group recognises the importance of having good
working relationship with its employees. During the Year, the
Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
staff or any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group had a total of approximately 166 employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's remuneration policies
are formulated according to market practices, experiences,
skills and performance of individual employees and are
reviewed every year. The Group has also adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its customers and suppliers to its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year,
the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the
Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers were
approximately 24.1% and 61.3% of the Group's total revenue
and purchases respectively. As at 31 March 2022, the
majority of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers
have a length of relationship with the Group for more than
10 years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has complied in all material respect with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

The Group identified and determined the major risks which
may affect the operations results and financial conditions of
the Group through risk management process, which
including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2022, the outstanding loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment)
was approximately HK$347 million, representing
approximately 6% of the total assets of the Group. Any delay
or default in payment of the loans will have an adverse
impact on the Group's working capital, cash flow and

subsequently the profits of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to
provide appropriate security and closely monitors the loan
receivable collection cycle from time to time to ensure full
and timely collection of the outstanding amounts due from
the borrowers. The Group will assess and decide to enforce
the security provided by the borrowers or take legal actions
as appropriate. All exposures are subject to regular review
and assessment for possible impairment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through
subsidiaries with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated
activities, insurance agency and money lending. During the
course of providing such financial services, the Group would
be exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal
liability, being subject to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary
action, or loss of property or business reputation arising from
violation of laws, regulations and rules due to the operation
and management or practices of the Group or its personnel.
In order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has
put in place a practicable compliance management system
and provided resources and support to develop lawful and
compliance operations of the Group.

Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of
risks, such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Further details of the financial risk management objectives
and policies are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Year on pages 99 to 100 of
this annual report respectively.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the
Year (2021: nil).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$1,878 million
(2021: HK$2,847 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement of share capital of the Company are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements for
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 256
of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Certain subsidiaries of the Company purchased 59,610,000
shares of the Company from the market during the Year. The
total amount paid to acquire the shares was HK$5 million
and has been deducted from the shareholders’ equity. The
related weighted average price at the time of buy-back was
HK$0.08 per share. No share was cancelled during the Year.
Details of the share repurchases by the Company are
included in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Mr. Xu Haiying
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Dr. Wang Yu (resigned on 15 October 2021)
Dr. Li Yao (resigned on 30 June 2021)

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (appointed on 12 July 2021)

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (resigned on 12 July 2021)

According to the Articles, Mr. Xu Haiying and Dr. Zhiliang
Ou shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except Mr. Fok Chi Tak, the executive Director, all Directors
have entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years,
which can be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. No
Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with any company in
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no other transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its ultimate
holding company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, its controlling shareholders, holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares of
the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares
of the Company

EERFTETHRAERE QAR HEBEE
BeROREBROTERE ZERRKXR

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' EFKARAE
BITBRABRARRHEMBE LB (EELEE
HREEBROIZEXVES) < A FRRD ([IRH 1)
RN REEETR  HELAREER S K
EIEFIE /2GRN R AFEELMzERE R
KB HBBZEETA ST AR R KRB RFT
KB INT

RERFAEBRREBRD Z2HFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director/ Number of underlying Total total issued

chief executive Capacity Nature of interest Shares held Shares held interests  share capital

HERT

B/ FrE 42 gl BB

FTETHRABEE &1 ERME 2 4E] RHEE ERAT BRABESL

(Note 1)

(B5E1)

Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 60,871,152 - 60,871,152 0.82%
EEE EnlEAA (BN 3

Xu Haiying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
FEE EnBAA B A=

Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
e EnBEAA (BN 3

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
PR 88 44 EanEAA (BN 3

Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%

MEH

EafEBEA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares
of the Company (Continued)

Note:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
7,386,816,805 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2022.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD

SCHEME

78

The Company operates a share option scheme which

was adopted by the Shareholders at the annual general

meeting of the Company held on 25 September 2015

and remains valid for a period of 10 years commencing
on 25 September 2015 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are set

out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose is to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Board, has or had made
contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of Shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director in excess of
0.1% of the Company's share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Annual Report 3 2021/22

BRESTERROEREE

RN Vil R R R RS

s
—=

—HAFNAZTHEBRITZARRIR

REFAELR® BT —1FNA
“t+hBRFTFHEAR(ERE
g1) - BT E 2 T 25FEINWT ¢

(i)

(i)

BH) RS EE R ISR -

S2EEBRARANEEMFNHER
AlZEFM2BRBES  THRA
BNSRBE (BEAREREEM
MEARZATES JFNITES
FBYFRTER)AREZERR
HAKECKRAEKELRERZA
NCIERN0) = NG 373 1 15
PRENSEN S ST

RIREARERT S T se iR 2 AR e
Frio kiR & B LR TSHBAARA
Al N B BITIRAR 2 30% o R AR
NAIREESLHE - REMI121E A
HEREAEARD RAJERLE 2
ERRERTS KRB BITRAE TEITR
MEEREAFRAETEBEE %
TTIRDZ21% ° Wi T EERF KB
NIERITESEREBBARAF
A Z01% K BEBBSEEST -
BB AR N AR R A ©



SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme, the right of the
grantee to exercise the option shall be in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee which shall not exceed 10
years from the date upon which the options is
deemed to be granted and accepted.

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the Board and will not be less than the highest
of: (1) the closing price of the Share on the date of
grant; (2) the average closing price of the Share for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (3) the nominal value of the
Share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the offer of grant of options.

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 27 September 2013 and the
scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten

years commencing from 27 September 2013. The major

terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out below:

(i)

The purpose is to recognise the contributions by
certain employees of the Group and to give
incentives to retain employees and to attract
suitable talents for the continual operation and
future development and expansion of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

80

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The participants include any individual being a
director (including executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other
person as determined by the Board who the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The aggregate value of the Shares which may be
issued to any individual at any one time shall not
exceed HK$5 million as at the date of such award
granted under the Share Award Scheme. The
number of Shares to satisfy the awards granted
shall be allotted and issued by the Board by
obtaining a separate Shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting of the Company or utilising the
general mandate granted by the Shareholders at a
general meeting of the Company from time to
time.

In relation to each grantee of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme, the awards shall
vest in a period to be determined by the Directors
where the period must be at least six months, save
for awards granted to employees of the Group.

The number of shares to be granted will be
determined by the Board by reference to: (1)
monthly salary of eligible employee; (2) the
average closing price of the share for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (3) duration of employment of eligible
employee.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

HTICI, the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1341), has adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme on 23
October 2015 and 24 April 2021 respectively. For details
of the schemes adopted by HTICI, please refer to the
2021/22 annual report published by HTICI.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year are set out
below:

On 5 March 2020, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company
Limited (“Hao Tian Media & Culture”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as purchaser and the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with China
Animation Holding (BVI) Limited (“China Animation (BVI)”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CA Cultural Technology Group
Limited) as vendor, pursuant to which Hao Tian Media &
Culture acquired from China Animation (BVI) 50% of the
issued shares of Success View Global Limited (“Success
View"”) for a consideration of HK$100,000,000 which was
satisfied by the Company issuing the zero coupon
convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000
due 2023 (the “Convertible Notes”) to China Animation (BVI)
upon completion of the acquisition on 26 March 2020. A
maximum of 400,000,000 Shares will be allotted and issued
to China Animation (BVI) if the conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Notes are exercised in full at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per conversion share. As of the date of this
report, the outstanding principle amount of the Convertible
Notes is HK$30,000,000 and a total of 120,000,000 new
Shares shall be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the
conversion rights attached thereto. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2020
and 26 March 2020 and note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

82

Call options granted to Vandi

In July 2016, the Company, Hao Tian Management
(Hong Kong) Limited ("HTM"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and Vandi Investments Limited (“Vandi"), as
the investor, entered into a call option deed, pursuant
to which the Company grants Vandi an option (the
"Vandi Call Option(s)”) to, require the Company to allot
and issue new Shares (the “Vandi Option Share(s)”) to
Vandi at the price of HK$0.8 per Vandi Option Share.
The subscription money for the Vandi Option Shares
may be satisfied by way of, inter alia, transferring to the
Company relevant number of shares in HTM. Following
the issue of bonus shares by the Company in 2017, the
option price of the Vandi Call Options was adjusted to
HK$0.69 per Vandi Option Share and the number of
Vandi Option Shares falling to be issued upon exercise
of the Vandi Call Options have been adjusted to
454,930,000. Vandi has exercised all rights attached to
the Vandi Call Options and a total of 454,930,000
Shares have been issued to Vandi on 24 August 2021,
representing approximately 6.56% of the then issued
share capital of the Company.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 22 May 2016, 31 May 2016, 14 July
2016, 21 July 2016 and 25 July 2017 and the circular of
the Company dated 28 June 2016.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
(i) Share options granted to Co-High

In the year 2020, the Group has been actively seeking
opportunities to diversify its businesses and to expand
its businesses into bioscience industry. By partnering
with Co-High Investment Management Limited (“Co-
High”), the Group can tap into the bioscience industry.
Apart from forming a joint venture, the Company and
Co-High entered into a conditional option deed (the
"Share Option Deed”) on 9 July 2020 in respect of the
grant of the 609,188,681 options (the “Co-High Share
Option(s)"”) to Co-High for subscription of an aggregate
of 609,188,681 new Shares (the "Co-High Option
Share(s)”) at the initial exercise price of HK$0.25 per
Co-High Option Share (subject to adjustments) during
the period commencing from the date of the Share
Option Deed and ending on the third anniversary of
that date. The Share Option Deed, the grant of Co-
High Share Options and the issue of the Co-High
Option Shares were approved by the Shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 September
2020 and the other conditions precedent were also
fulfilled. As of the date of this report, none of the
subscription rights attaching to the Co-High Share
Options has been exercised by Co-High. For more
details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 5 June 2020 and 3 September 2020,
and the circular of the Company dated 14 August 2020.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 25
September 2015 and a share award scheme on 27
September 2013, respectively. Particulars of the schemes are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme and
Share Award Scheme”.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions of 5% or more in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded

FERRREARARGREBRDTES
ZHEBRAR

RZTEZZF=A=+—H REFHAERQF
FETBRABHAM  MTFAT(EEHXARRE
BITHABBRIN RARBIRD RABERD P
BES% A L2 ESSAR - BRAERSIAR
BR8N IR IR B 5 K HIE R0 5 336 (& E 17

in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under &z X ZREEMA :
Section 336 of the SFO:
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital
HERT
FEEER Fris Nt
BREgE,/ 8 B RO#E 56 ERAT BABEDL
(Note 1)
(BzE1)
Li Shao Yu ("Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,689,320,773 - Interest of controlled 3,935,199,115 53.27
20F(Zr+ ) (M:E2) corporations
SRR
245,878,342 - Beneficial owner
EREAA
Asia Link Capital Investment 3,357,578,773 - Beneficial owner 3,412,082,773 46.19%
Holdings Limited ( “Asia Link") ExBEAA
(Note 2)
B E IR AR A E) ([ 308 1) 54,504,000 - Interest of controlled
(F¥eE2) corporations
Eer VNGl 3
Huang Shiying (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 10.83%
EjedCiEK)) corporations
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
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FERRREARARGREBRDTES
ZREBIORRE (5B)

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital
FERT
g ER iigs2iil RABE
BRRHE,/ 28 8E ROYE 56 @t BAESH
(Note 1)
(B3 1)
Huang Tao (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 10.83%
i (iE3) corporations
REH D Al
Century Golden Resources 800,000,000 - Beneficial owner 800,000,000 10.83%
Investment Co., Ltd. ERBAA
(“Century Golden") (Note 3)
Century Golden Resources
Investment Co., Ltd.
([ Century Golden]) (Ff3E3)
China Construction Bank 413,806,000 - Interest of controlled 413,806,000 5.60%
Corporation corporation
(“China Construction Bank”) R AR R
(Note 4)
REEFRTRHBRAE]
(TR E R R1T)) (Pt 4)
Haitong Securities Co., Limited - 1,948,333,333  Security interest 1,948,333,338 26.38%
("HSCL") (Note 5) RS
BREFROBRAR(ERESR])
(PzE5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRRAQATROGREBRGFHESE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ZEERKR (E)
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital
HERT
FEEER Fris e RE2E
BREgE/ 8 A RO#E 56 ERAT BABEDL
(Note 1)
(M)
Co-High Investment Management - 609,188,681  Beneficial owner 609,188,681 8.25%
Limited (“Co-High”) (Note 6) ExBEBAA
NBEEERBRAR(AE])
(Fff&Es)
Atlantis Capital Group 139,278,000 609,188,681 Interest of controlled 748,466,681 10.13%
Holdings Limited corporation
(“Atlantis Capital Group”) pet i UNGIE: £
(Notes7)
FEEAEEERER AR
(IEEAEE ) (M)
Liu Yang (Note 8) 139,278,000 609,188,681  Interest of controlled 748,466,681 10.13%
215 (fzE8) corporation
etk UNGIL: 2o
Dong Zimeng (Note 9) 5,004,000 - Beneficial owner 614,192,681 8.31%

=786 (F39) ESBEEA
= 609,188,681 Interest of controlled

corporation
REH AR ER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
7,386,816,805 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2022.

Ms. Li was beneficially interested in a total of 3,935,199,115 Shares,
among which, 245,878,342 Shares were held by Ms. Li as beneficial
owner, and 3,689,320,773 Shares were held by (i) Asia Link as to
3,357,578,773 Shares, (i) Team Success Venture Holdings Limited as
to 230,900,000 Shares, (iii) TRXY Development (HK) Limited as to
46,338,000 Shares, and (iv) Glory Century Limited as to 54,504,000
Shares, all of which were beneficially owned by Ms. Li.

Each of Mr. Huang Shiying and Mr. Huang Tao was deemed to be
interested in 800,000,000 Shares held by Century Golden pursuant to
the SFO by virtue of his controlling interest in Century Golden.

China Construction Bank was deemed to be interested in the
413,806,000 Shares held by Vandi Investments Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank. Central Huijin
Investment Limited held 57.11% of the issued shares in China
Construction Bank.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its
directly wholly-owned subsidiary, held 64.4% of the issued shares in
Haitong International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held
100% of the issued shares in Haitong International Financial Products
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd ("HIFP Singapore”). HIFP Singapore held the
security interest in those 1,948,333,333 Shares.

Co-High has entered into a share option deed with the Company for
the grant of 609,188,681 options to subscribe for 609,188,681 new
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.25 each.

Atlantis Capital Group owns 60% of the total issued share capital in
Co-High and wholly owns Atlantis Investment Management Limited
("Atlantis Investment”). Therefore, Atlantis Capital Group was
deemed or taken to be interested in the 609,188,681 Shares held by
Co-High and in the 139,278,000 Shares held by Atlantis Investment by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Atlantis Capital Group is accustomed to act in accordance with the
director, Ms. Liu Yang, so Ms. Liu Yang was deemed or taken to be
interested in the interest in the 748,466,681 Shares that Atlantis
Capital Group is interested in by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Dong Zimeng owns 40% of the total issued share capital in Co-
High and was deemed or taken to be interested in the interest in the
609,188,681 Shares held by Co-High by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who have
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Shares.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and

the Share Award Scheme as incentives to the Directors and
eligible employees.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers were approximately 24.1% and 61.3% of the
Group's total revenue and purchases respectively and the
revenue and purchase attributable to the Group's largest
customer and supplier were approximately 6% and 25.1% of
the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY

According to the Articles, the Directors for the time being of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty in their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any donations to
charitable and non-profit-making organisations.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year, at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares were
held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of BDO Limited as the auditor of
the Company on 29 January 2021, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited ("ZHONGHUI ANDA") was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on the same day to fill in the vacancy.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA, whose term of
office will retire at the close of the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of
ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Aceso Life Science Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out
on pages 99 to 255, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code"),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of interests in associates for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of interests in associates of
HK$1,308,000,000 as at 31 March 2022 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
— Assessing the financial information of the associates;

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence; and

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for interests in
associates is supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Refer to note 32 and to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of corporate note receivables
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of corporate note receivables of
HK$471,000,000 as at 31 March 2022 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit
limits and credit periods to debtors;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the debtors;

— Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and
expected credit loss assessment;

— Assessing ageing of the debits;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors and
guarantors;

— Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for corporate
note receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Refer to notes 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. This fair value measurement is significant to
our audit because the balance of investment properties of
HK$1,625,000,000 as at 31 March 2022 and the fair value gain
of HK$85,000,000 for the year then ended are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
fair value measurement involves application of judgement
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the
investment properties is supported by the available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Refer to notes 36 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value with the changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This fair
value measurement is significant to our audit because the
balance of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$629,000,000 as at 31 March 2022 and the fair value
gain of HK$29,000,000 for the year then ended are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group's fair value measurement involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process, methodologies used and market
evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/

standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05498

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERaREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T = =“F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—EC-CE —E-—F
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
BisE HEBT BEEBBT
Revenue A 7 315 346
Cost of revenue WA (153) (133)
Gross profit EM 162 213
Other income HAu A 8 28 52
Fair value (losses)/gains: INEEI A6 (396) (101)
— investment properties —REME 85 10

— financial assets at fair value through ~ — AR F{EzE BHELEA

profit or loss ("FVTPL") Ba([UAAFEFEAEE L

FABRDZEREE (510) (157)

— financial liabilities at FVTPL —UATFEHEEEEHA
Basepas 29 46
Other gains/(losses), net Hiplezs /(B518) %8 9 24 ¥)
Administrative expenses THRX (146) (155)
Reversal/(provision) of impairment losses: R {EEBEE, /() : 13 (382)
— property, plant and equipment — W - HENMERE 2 (70)
— intangible assets — B EE 2 (28)

— financial assets —EREE

(expected credit losses) (FBEHEEER) 9 (284)
Share-based payment expenses AR R FE A B 2 7) (49)
Share of results of associates DEEERRIRE (44) 196
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEREEE (30) 92
Finance costs BERKAR 10 (159) (187)
Loss before taxation BREL AT 1B 1 (5595) (323)
Income tax expense ST 13 (41) (25)
Loss for the year FREE (596) (348)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEBRaREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HEZE =T = =—F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—EC-CE —E-—F
Notes  HK$'million  HK$'million
ik BEHBT BEET
Other comprehensive income after tax: HEft2HEWE @ BRBiE :
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEFHHEBRmEA
profit or loss:
Fair value gain on investments in WATFERERESEG AR
equity instruments at fair value 2HEME ((AATFEFER
through other comprehensive HEir AEMmE2EKE])
income (“FVTOCI") ZHEDZTERE 2 A FERE 41 5
Items that may be reclassified Al EF HEE B s B -
to profit or loss:
Share of associates’ exchange DEMERABREBINESESE
differences on translating ZEHER
foreign operation 11 -
Exchange differences on translating BEBIRBEECELER
foreign operations (26) 95
Other comprehensive income FRHMPEKE @ BRFE
S RO S . Ly
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHEEELE (570) (248)
Loss for the year attributable to: EhFERESE :
Owners of the Company KAREREFEEA (370) (376)
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS (226) 28
(596) (348)
Total comprehensive loss for the year E{tERREAHEASE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARAIERFEEA (341) (279)
Non-controlling interests RS (229) 31
(570) (248)
Loss per share BRER 14
Basic (HK$ cents per share) BN (GRE) (5.14) (5.73)
Diluted (HK$ cents per share) 8 (B (5.59) (6.33)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI EREK

Asat31 March2022 R —E - —F=H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HKS$'million  HK$'million
iz BEAT BEET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HENERE 16 254 258
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 29 33
Investment properties REME 18 1,625 1,603
Intangible assets BIVEE 19 158 156
Interests in associates NN T & 20 1,308 1,341
Interests in joint ventures NN Ei 21 80 114
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EFEBEESLETA 22
HEezmlims eREE 441 466
Loan receivables R E K 23 16 89
Finance lease receivables & E W GRIE 24 2 3
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 25 53 69
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 26 21 5
Other receivables and deposits EfM WA NET & 27 10 2
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 3,997 4,139
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 28 6 88
Properties under development BROYE 29 368 370
Trade receivables B2 5 WA 30 149 135
Other receivables, HiElwzig  s1e &k 27
deposits and prepayments AR FRIA 124 42
Financial assets at FVTPL NRAFEFEEHEE(EA 31
Ba eREE 522 588
Loan receivables FEWE = 23 331 516
Finance lease receivables BnE TH & rE Y FoE 24 4 4
Corporate note receivables U EEE 32 471 69
Trusted and segregated ERERBURITERP 26
bank accounts 96 16
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBEESZEY 26 195 198
Total current assets REBEELE 2,266 2,026
Total assets EEHE 6,263 6,165
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B RSN R

As at 31 March 2022 W—ZE-_—_F=H=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
Notes HK$'million HK$ million
B 5T BHEABTT BEET
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEEA®E 33 12 11
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMEE 34 1,734 511
Corporate note payables ENTEERE 35 390 272
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AAFEFEBEEZLETA 36
BasematE - 113
Trade payables B Z RN RIE 37 6 4
Other payables, deposits HnERRE 38
received and accruals BT & MBS IE 289 164
Income tax payables FETPTE R 20 21
Total current liabilites ~~ whAM#® 0 2451  109%
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(ABESEE) EESE (185) 930
Total assets less current liabilities EZEEZERBAHERE 3,812 5,069
Non-current liabilities RHER
Lease liabilities HER®E 33 17 18
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAAE 25 111 90
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 34 188 915
Corporate note payables FENDEZEE 35 40 380
Convertible note payables JEST AT IR RS SR 39 - 24
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EE BEEETA 36
EmsemaE 629 628
Total non-current liabilites ~~ #n@Afes® = 000 985 2,055
NET ASSETS EEFEE 2,827 3,014
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B HE IR R R R

Asat31 March2022 R—E - —F=H=+—H

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
Notes HK$'million HK$'million

Bt BEBT BEETT

EQUITY R
Share capital N 40 74 69
Reserves e 1,928 2,313
2,002 2,382
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R = 825 632
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,827 3,014

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 255
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fok Chi Tak
EXE
Director

EFE

EPEBSA AU BRRCHAEFTEN -
T FRNATNABEUAHETIE - IHT
JIEERREE -

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
PR 88 52
Director

=
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {884 mEHIEE AR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HEZE =T = =—F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to onners of the Company

ALAERARE
Share-based  Convertole Non-
Share Share Treasury payment note FTOCI  Tranlation  Accumulated Other controlling Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests equity
WATEHE
BEB(EEA

HRIFA TRk Et2Eks
kx  ROEE  BRRE  NREE  BEEE JHE BEEE  RiBE AHER & HikEs  EaSE
Notes  HKmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK§'milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$'milion  HKS'million
s BEAT  AERT  BEBT  REMT  AEAT  EEMn  AERn BEER REEn BEAn EEAT BEER

(note 42()) (note 42i))  (note 42(i) note 42(iv)
(k4 (akaon)  (staagi) (Bizkaam)
At1 April 2020 R-Z-E5RA-B 61 4531 - - 15 233 (39 (1.979) 134 2090 6 209
Total comprehensive loss SAERLE - - - - - 2 95 (376) - 19 3 (248)
Transactions with equity holders: EERERARS :
Issue of placement and EIRERTBRE 40(a), b)
subscription shares b it - - - - - - - 150 - 150
Issue of shares on conversion of ¥ AERTTARZ % 40
convertiole note payables Bk 2 5 5 - ] - - - - 1% _ %
Issue of share option S 40 = = = k] = N - - - kY - kY
Employee share awards issued by  WELFZ2EERHZE  Hab)
asubsidiary - - - = 5 = - - - - 10 10
Re-designation of fairvalueof ~ RIEREEASMEN IR
repurchase consideration s BEIREATE
aresult of early principal
redemption - = = = ) > > = = () = 0]
Deemed disposal inasubsiciary ~ {{E &M BAAML
without loss in control BRI ZAMEHAL
arising rom: R
— share swap —#R - - - - - - = = 24 2 13 109
—share placement —RhRE - = = = = = = = ) U] 68 o7
— issue of convertible note —BERERANNE
payable and shares by a DAEAERTAR
subsidliary upon acquisition ZERBRH
of an associate - - - - - - - - 0 0 U] 4
—comversionof convertble  — {AERTRRERE
ote payeble - - - - - - = = 2] 2] 19 91
—acquisiion ofinterestina  — FEARRENE
subsidiary from HELTER
non-controling shareholders - - - - = = = = Ul U] @ @
— Contrbution fom 2 —FERRRE
non-controling shareholder - - - - = = = = = = 4 4
8 1% - ¥ 0 - - - (63 ul 595 766
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T = =“F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARR
Share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share  Treasury  payment note FVTOCI  Translation Accumulated Other controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Totl  interests equity
WATETE
BER{A
HRAA Tk Ef2EHE
Rk ROEE EERG  (RERE  RERR R BEER  EER AHER & FERRE  RESE
Notes  HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HK$'milon ~ HKS'millon ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'million
i3 A8%n FE%n  BERR FEWn BB FERT  BERn AEERN BEEn RERR FEEr EEER
(note 42()) (note 42(i)) ~ (note 42(ii)) (note 42v))
(Hsra20) (Rsazi)  (Wetaain) (Kt 42()
At 31 March 2021 and RIBZ-FZR=1-8R
1 April 2021 Z2C-EMmA-R 69 4121 - 3 6 (231) 56 (2.355) n 2,382 632 3014
Total comprehensive loss LEFRER - - - - - 4 (20) (370 - (341) (229) (670)
Disposal offinancial assets FVTOCI ENATEERER (K
FAREEREL
oHEE - - = = = @ = 2 - - - -
Transactions with equity holders: EREREEARS :
Exercise of call option 4d 5 84 - - - - - - (149) (60) 143 83
Repurchase of shares 0fe) - - () - - - - - = () = ()
Employee share awardsissued ~ —FHBAFE T2 H(allo)
by a subsiciary EERH%ZE = = S S S s = = = = 1 1
Redemption of comertblenote  BET AHKES = = - - (6) - - 6 - - - -
Deemed disposal in Gt E-BHBATR
asubsiciary without loss TERTIZEmEN
in control arising from: RETEHIE:
—issue of consideration shares  ——FIHBATINE
by a subsidiary upon “ERERZTRE
acquisition of an investment Rt - - - - - - - - 3 3 24 o
—disposal of subsidiaries —tiERBARMEE
ithout loss in control KEB5E - - - - - - - - 5 5 7 K7}
—acquisiton of nterest in — mkERREE
asubsiciary from WEAER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - (16) (16) (39) (55)
5 84 (5) - (6) - - 6 (123) (39) n 383
At31 March 2022 R-B-=F=R=+-R 74 4,811 (S 39 B (184 36* @ (52 2,002 825 2,82
Note: ME
(i) * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of () ZEREFERREAVBERRARAZLEA R

HK$1,928,000,000 (2021: HK$2,313,000,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

7)) ©

1,928,000,0007% 7t ( = T = — 4 : 2,313,000,000%
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GeERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HiZ =& = —

FZRA=t—HLHEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT A8
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRERTRE
Loss before taxation R Al &S 1B (555) (323)
Adjustments for: HATFIEELTE
Amortisation of intangible assets mAESH - 2
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERERETE
and equipment 57 51
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 11 10
Extinguishment (gain)/loss on early REELIEMNARREZE ER
redemption of convertible (Uhz), /B8
note payables 9 1
Fair value (gains)/losses: NFE W), EE
— investment properties — REYE (85) (10)
— financial assets at FVTPL — UAFEFEAEEZ LA
Baze®EE 510 157
— financial liabilities at FVTPL — AT EFEEE#EA
BRzemEeRE (29) (46)
Finance costs AEKA 159 187
(Reversal of impairment)/ CRERE), REEE
impairment losses: -
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ - HEREE (2) 70
— intangible assets —BILEE (2) 28
— financial assets (expected credit loss) — & @EE (FBEHEEEE) (9) 284
Interest earned on corporate FEWI I 2 R R BRER T2
note receivables (19) (30)
Interest earned on bank deposits RITIF SR EERF & (2) )
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE  BEMEKEZ
and equipment (M), EE (1) 2
Share-based payment expenses PARR 9 2 AN R =2 7 49
Share of results of associates ok bk UNCIE 44 (196)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEBEEEE 30 (92)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T = =“F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEAT
Operating profit before working EEESBHRLEHEN
capital changes 105 142
Change in working capital HEEEE
Finance lease receivables BE R ERURIE 1 1
Financial assets at FVTPL U AFESE R HEEEE A
BazemEE (52) (48)
Inventories 8 9 1
Loans receivables JEWE R 245 139
Other payables, deposits received, HbEANHIE  EWET 2
accruals and contract liabilities EErERAREHNEE 104 31
Other receivables, deposits E M EWIR - 3] & RIBNRIA
and prepayments 8 7
Trade receivables B 5 WA (23) (73)
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 2 (14)
Trusted and segregated bank accounts ~ {E5E MBI IRITERF (80) 4
Cash generated from operations MERRATSR G 319 190
Income tax paid EASPUESE (3) (11)
Net cash generated from REXBREREFR
operating activities 316 179
Cash flows from investing activities REZHMERERE
Consideration paid for acquisition of WP EER 2 EARE
a corporate note receivable (402) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE B )2 « E KRB (57) (15)
Placement in pledged bank deposits FHRERRITER (21) =
Interest received AL &R 16 M
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWZE - BE & REFTSZIE
and equipment 14 4
Withdraw of pledged deposits RERE BRI R 5 -
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture & —R& L ¥MEHIE 4 -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GeERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

FZRA=t—HLHEE

2022 2021
—E2-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEAT
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMARSER (441) -
Cash flows from financing activities METHMESRERE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BEEITREMEE (352) (292)
Repayment of corporate note payables  EEEMNDERE (222) (380)
Interest paid EARHE (152) (114)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary from  [A]FE$2 B% % 58 U BE B B A R 25
non-controlling shareholders (35) -
Lease liabilities paid ENEERE (14) (1
Repayment to a director of subsidiaries M—ZWEBARESEN (12) -
Repurchase of shares EAEL ) (3) -
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings $R17 R HMEE TS IE 882 214
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries o 65 B /B8 2 ) T I A 2K o 4R A
without loss of control FT1SRIR 32 4
Advance from a director of subsidiaries KA BB ARIES 28R 24 -
Early principal redemption of convertible {2 F &Rl fEft Al R Z B A S
note payables = (10)
Proceeds from issue of placement and BT TS MREBIRGD 2
subscription shares: FRIS TR
— of the Company — AR T = 150
— of a subsidiary of the Company — ARpE—ERB AR - 67

Net cash used in acquisition of
non-controlling interest in
the Group's subsidiaries

Wi AN 5 BB B 1 ) 2 FEHE R i s
P AR %8
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T = =“F=A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—4F
HK$'million HK$'million

BEBT A8

Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETHME (A REFHE
_ financing activites ] 125 . (875
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBESEEYIEM (RD) FRE

cash equivalents 1 (196)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzZHERREFED

beginning of year 198 382
Effect of foreign exchange rate GN B SR 44 Bl SR EE > S8

changes, net (4) 12
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZBEERALEEY

end of year 195 198
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BRERBLSEEBY I
Bank and cash balances RIT MR 58k 195 198
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company”
together with its subsidiaries, the “"Group”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"), and the ultimate controlling shareholder
is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place
of business in Hong Kong is Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F,
Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the Group include: (i) money
lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii) provision of
commodities, futures, securities brokerage and financial
services; (iv) asset management; (v) rental and trading
of construction machinery; (vi) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vii) property
development; and (viii) property leasing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars ("HK$"”) and rounded to the
nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 April 2021. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

2.

FER#ET RSB B R IBREER

RAFE  AEBEERMOHBBSQ
g ([HEEEA g )R BELER
MER —ZE-_—FA-BRBRZEFF
ERERZ FRA M MRERT BB YW
SEAN(EBBHBEHREER]) - BB
BEEEEEMHEREEN(EFBY
BamEEA])  BAGAER(FLER
R ) MR o RINZEHR] RIEERT &
BB REERY MEHNAEE BT
FEAKEZFBR - AEBPHHRE
ZEIRE2REFEERNEY -

RER B i K A O AR W R AR U2 #TAT
RGBT EEVHRELEN - NEEEH
ARHA L FRR] RGBT BB M IS %
A2 T8 R ARBEZFH BT
FEMBHREENELHEREXE MY
BIRABRERTE
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {F#4 4 mEHE EE AR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
financial assets at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at FVTPL which is carried at its fair
value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and rounded
to the nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors of the Company to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out below.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M EE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by
other entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. If the
associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net
assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has joint control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation; its share of the
revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; and its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly, in accordance with the
HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the joint venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group's share of a joint venture's post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that joint venture and (ii) the Group's share of the net
assets of that joint venture plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that joint venture and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the group entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group's presentation
currency.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease

terms
Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment ~ 20% to 25%

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%
Yacht 5%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property
is measured initially at its cost including all direct costs
attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property, and is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets
is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is as
follows:

Land and buildings
Machinery

Over the lease term
Over the lease term

Motor vehicles Over the lease term

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs
and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$38,000).

Properties for sale under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs include
acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period less
selling expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to properties held for sale at the then
carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Customer list

Customer list acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their expected life of 5 years.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have an indefinite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less impairment losses.

Securities brokerage licenses

Securities brokerage licenses acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have an indefinite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less impairment losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following categories:

— Financial assets at amortised cost

— Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

— Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loan and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowance for expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair values recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve. On
derecognition of an investment, the cumulative
gains or losses previously accumulated in the
equity investment revaluation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in
profit or loss, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category
if they do not meet the conditions to be measured
at amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group
designates an equity investment that is not held
for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains
or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any
interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss.
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A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost and
lease receivables. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables or if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on
a financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected
credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert
the loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a
fixed conversion price are regarded as compound
instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt.
The fair value of any derivative features embedded in
the compound instruments is included in the liability
component. The difference between the proceeds of
issue of the convertible loans and the fair values
assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the loans
into equity of the Group, is included in equity as capital
reserve. The liability component is carried as a liability
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
derivative components are measured at fair value with
gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Group
appears to be less than the fair value of the convertible
loans issued, the Group measures the unidentifiable
services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible loans issued
and that of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible loans based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is
charged directly to equity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Where any group company purchases the Company'’s
share (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net
of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Derivatives (including contingent considerations under
business combinations) are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or
service exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted
for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance;

— the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute a specific percentage of the payroll of
its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the retirement scheme. No forfeited contributions
may be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets
are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets.
The grant is recognised in profit or loss over the life of
a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHBEGE)

(Continued)

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group'’s most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
not yet available for use are reviewed annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and other
intangible assets except goodwill, deferred tax assets,
inventories and receivables to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of cash-generating units ("CGU")
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that

have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Consolidation of entity of less than 50% equity
interest

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (“HTICI"),
HTICI is treated as a subsidiary because the
directors consider that the Group has de facto
control of HTICI. The Group is the majority
shareholder of HTICI with a 47.13% equity interest,
The second, third and fourth substantial
shareholders hold 13.23%, 9.97% and 6.02% equity
interest of HTICI respectively. All other
shareholders individually own less than 6% of
equity interest of HTICI. There is no history of
other shareholders forming a group to exercise
their votes collectively.

Accounted for 49% equity interest in Kingdom
Future Limited (“Kingdom Future”) as fair value
through profit or loss

The Group and the controlling shareholder of
Kingdom Future hold 49% and 51% equity interest
of Kingdom Future respectively. The Group is not
entitle to appoint director of Kingdom Future and
is not able to vote against the controlling
shareholder of Kingdom Future. Hence, the
directors of the Company considered that the
Group has no significant influence over Kingdom
Future and it is more appropriate to account for
Kingdom Future as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (Continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investments accounted
for using equity method

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
annually for impairment; or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of
disposal. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (jii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group's financial
condition and results of operations.
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4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the allowances for expected
credit loss for its trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables, corporate note
receivables and other receivables. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements which are
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, possibility of default adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of
reporting period. Where the estimation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of the financial assets
and will affect the result of allowance for loss
recognised and results of operations.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities at
FVTPL or FVTOCI were determined by using
various valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates,
which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumptions used could materially
affect the fair value of these balances and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and
results of operation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION (Continued)

(d) Fair value of investment properties

(e)

(f)

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of the
investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and
residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities based on the terms of the rental
agreements and the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Estimates are required in
determining the Group's incremental borrowing
rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s investments at fair value through
profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
security price risk. The directors manage this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with difference risk profiles.
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e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to listed
equity securities price risks at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis included
those financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets
at FVTOCI. If the prices of the respective equity
investment included in financial assets at FVTPL
had been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other
variables were held constant, the impact to the
Group would be as follows:

ERREXRABEE(E)

AT BURE o M TR & i & B R P
AR EMERABSERRBREE
FRERBBENATEFEEE
B ABZZEREERARF
BtEREZ G ARMEEEE
ZTREE - WARTVEFERA
B ABBRZEREERMESE
B AR E 2 B350, A 10%
BRABEMEEER T  HY
AEEZFEWNT

2022 2021
—E-—F %
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER AEETT

Impact on loss/profit YHRiBER G
after tax
Financial assets at FVTPL NEESEBHE(LEA
TE S B MEE

Impact on FVTOC | reserve  $fLAAFEzFE BH BT A
Hith2EW Rz #Ez 8

Financial assets AT (EEE B E S
at FVTOCI AR EEREZ
THMEE

+10%
23 5

-10%
(23) (5)

+10%
4 12

-10%
(4) (12)

Annual Report 287 2021/22 1571



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)

The Group's certain bank deposits and borrowings
bear interests at fixed interest rates and therefore
are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits and bank borrowings.
These deposits and borrowings bear interests at
variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates the
effect of the interest differences by a 0.5% change

on floating-rate borrowings and bank and pledged

deposits, assuming all other variables were held

constant.

Carrying amount

ERREXRABEE(E)

AEEMETRAITHREE AR
SRS B A T E R =
AR o

AEEmEERF RRER KB HIRT
FREBITEE ZEFRNEE
BRERRITMRFHMEGE -

T2 GUBE 5T 5 R B8R K
WERRETE TEEEURR
7% B AR I7 3R B 8 0.5% ¥ F .32

& 5240
Ll 7 X

Impact on post-tax loss

HREE HBEFEBR2 S
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE “T-—F —E-CF “E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEAT BEBT BEAT
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE (55) (82) - -
Bank and pledged deposits  $R17 R 2 T 21 5 = -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, finance lease
receivables, corporate note receivables, deposits
and bank balances included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group's financial assets.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has concentration
of credit risk in respect of its loan receivables and
corporate note receivables. The number of

ERREXRABEE(E)

FAAREMBRARRAZES R E
fl U FRIE - BIE R MEMEE
EWHRIE BRREXRE FTek
RITERZERERNEERES
MEEAGNREEERR

RZBE-_—_F=A=+—H K&
BRERRKERNERCEZER
FEESETPRER ZERUREZ

counterparties from these receivables are as RGEFTHEWT -
follows:
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
Loan receivables JEWE R 26 67
Corporate note receivables B EFE 4 2

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The credit risk on investments is limited because
the counterparty is a well-established securities
broker firm in Hong Kong.

AEBEAEREBRRERAABR
HEERENEPHEEM

RRXZHFHRHEBREEFR
BEFESREEFRORT &
BRRTESRNEERRBER -

HERXZHFR—HBEBRINSE
BREAFELT RARAREEER
BHEMR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

— internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability to
meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

— significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrower.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

154 Annual Report %5 2021/22

5. SRRELXEMRERE(E)

AEEEBLBNREBHELRE
MR R B R 9 1A #E R B B E 4
Rl BmEZRENERESHESR
BEFERRETBREEM - B
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— REMEERAR

— BESRERABITEEEN
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group. The Group normally categorises a
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 365 days past
due. Where receivables have been written off, the
Group, if practicable and economical, continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category and adjusts for forward looking
data.

ERREXRABEER(E)

TREENAERRBE IR D (FL0
BN A B 5 B AOE FRAH )
R sH o 2 A ARER B 365 R
BXNEHONT  ~EERTE SN
B B E R URIR - B R
FENGRIA M - R A E (RERR
ATRMAEERENERT) A
PREX 52 5 B 1708 B =\ B e (@ 2 HA e
Wkg

AR5 E 5 R E I B 5 e R AR
Bl RBRZEE WA 2 EE AR
L& BRlEEBERBEE A -
R ERREEERER  AKE
EEEBANZELERE - WA
M BURIE L R -

Category Definition Loss provision

=Yl E& BEEE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
BY EE X R &= 1~ R RE 1218 A R H 18
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
FEX EERREEL TR EE 1R
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. S£@REXARRERE(E)
(Continued)
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current REBZERRR/THERNBLE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure FremBESH K UERERT
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet EReRHEmEBEEREREZ
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer MBELF K-
term.
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash rEEeHBERAURRERE
flows, of the Group's financial liabilities is as 2o 2 BIHIS AT
follows:
Between Between Total
Less than 1 year to 2to Over undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows
RER
PME 1EE2E 2EB5% BBSF REREBLH
HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEET BEETR BEETR BEET
As at 31 March 2022 R-B--—%zA=+-H
Trade payables BHEMNFE 6 = - - 6
Other payables, deposits EENFE  EHEITe Rk
received and accruals Bt &R 283 - - - 283
Bank and other borrowingsand 17 R H {2 E A R B E
corresponding interests ks 1,809 180 14 - 2,003
Corporate note payablesand S S £ Z I RIAEF 8.
corresponding interests 421 42 - - 463
Lease liabilities BEAR 13 10 8 - 31
2,532 232 22 - 2,786
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. S€REEARBEIE(E)
(Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) REBELEMR(E)
Between Between Total
Less than 1yearto 210 Over undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5years Syears  cash flows

RENER

PE 1ER2F 2E5F BESE RenEhE
HK'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BEATL BEATL BEABTL BEATL BEATL

As at 31 March 2021 R-E=--5zZA=+-H
Trade payables BARNTIE 4 = - - 4
Other payables, deposits HitERFIE  BHETE R

received and accruals E5tER 161 = = = 161
Bank and other borrowings and #3717 % KLt fE & L R AR E

corresponding interests )= 566 83 923 - 1,572
Corporate note payables and ENCEZRRIAENS

corresponding interests 322 408 - - 730
Convertible note payable [ERATAREE = 30 = = 30
Lease liabilities HERR 12 8 10 = 30

1,065 529 933 - 2,527
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. 2N EARARERBREIE(E)
(Continued)

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEABT BEAT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI NAERTEREHEEEETA
Hit2EKmz @B E 441 466
Financial assets at FVTPL AAFEEBEZ LR A
BRcemiEE
Mandatorily measured s HE 8 522 588
Financial assets at amortised cost IR AFIBR 2 S RO B E
Loan receivables JEWE K 347 605
Finance lease receivables BE S ERIE 6 7
Corporate note receivables JEW > R IF 471 69
Cash and cash equivalents and ReMReEEWAR
pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITIE R 312 219
Trade receivables B 5 EIGRIE 149 135
Other receivables and deposits HEmpElsIaReTe 118 39
2,366 2,128
Financial liabilities EA =N
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AAFETERHZEETA
BEanze®asE
Designated as such upon VIR TERIR S E
initial recognition 629 741
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B SER AR 2 S RIA &
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 1,922 1,426
Corporate note payables EREEE 430 652
Convertible note payables JERT AR IR IR - 24
Trade payables B SR IE 6 4
Other payables and accruals Hib At zoa ke & A 283 161
Lease liabilities HE&E 29 29
3,299 3,037
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

ERREXRABEE(E)

REEMBRARRRZ AEE S
REENSRABECRAERES
BRFERE -

AP EIE

AFERNGEATHERERERFR
5 i S RS B AR
B - T AFEH ERBHRALTE
i WREERABES A= EEE
SRREEATHE -

F1RBARIE - AREF R EHER
ZHERBEELXBERNERMS 2 HECK

(ERE) -

E2MBARSE  REERBETEER
MEBERRENRE I BRI REZNZE
AR -

FIRBABE  BEEXRBEITABEE
A BUE

AEEZBRERSIREBZ EMHRIBN

BeBEZ AERAEFRM=EFR2EAX
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. AFVEFE(E)
Description b9

Fair value measurements using:

ATEHEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZEBE-_—#=HA=+—H B4R B2k £3R “st

HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BHE#BT HEBR BEABT BEEAR

Assets BE
Recurring fair value measurements: & % 4 A FEF £
Financial assets at fair value LAFETE AHEL
through profit or loss ABReREE
— Listed securities — EWEH 275 - = 275
— Unlisted fund investment — FETESKE - 164 59 223
— Unlisted debt instruments — I LTEKTE = = 20 20
— Convertible note receivable ~ — EU IR E 15 - - 4 4
Financial assets at fair value AT ETE A HE L
through other comprehensive AAHMEEWREZ
income TRIEE
— Listed securities — &S 39 - = 39
— Private equity investments — FLERERE = = 402 402
Investment properties REWE
— Commercial — ¥
— United Kingdom —HH - - 1,625 1,625
Total recurring fair value REMNPETELR
measurements 314 164 2,110 2,588
Liabilities &
Recurring fair value measurements: & & 14 A FEE & :
Financial liabilities at FVTPL NAFEF=AHZE
AR eRAE
— Corporate note payable —ENGEZER - - 629 629

Total recurring fair value REMAVETEAS
measurements - - 629 629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. DNFEFE(E)
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) AFERBELREE: (8)
(Continued)
Description (Continued) AR (48)

Fair value measurements using:

AFAEHBER -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—-%=A=+—H B8 FE2H ERE Bt

HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT BEBT BEBT

Assets B8E
Recurring fair value measurements: & & 4 A F(ET 2 ¢
Financial assets at fair value AAFEERER L
through profit or loss TABReREE
— Listed securities — LWmES 58 - = 58
— Unlisted fund investment — FETESKE = 511 - 511
— Unlisted debt instruments — ¥ EMEKIA - - 15 15
— Convertible note receivable ~ — [EUN ATIRRE 215 - - 4 4
Financial assets at fair value AAFEERER L
through other comprehensive SFAEMEERE
income TREE
— Unlisted equity securities — FEMRAER - = 346 346
— Listed equity securities — FTRAES 120 = = 120
Investment properties REM%
— Commercial —HE
— United Kingdom — HE - - 1,603 1,603
Total recurring fair value REMAPEFELS
measurements 178 51 1,968 2,657
Liabilities afE
Recurring fair value measurements: &2 & A F(EA £ ¢
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ARFEEBEEE
ARG EREE
— Call option — RIEHE = S 113 113
— Corporate note payable — ENTCEEZR - - 628 628

Total recurring fair value REMAVEFELAS
measurements - - 741 741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. AFEFE(E)
Financial Financial Financial
Investment assets at assets at liabilities at
properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
B
B ATERE D

ATEE BH#{ QTVEHE

BHE® FAH# BHS4

TABE 2EHKE s ABH

RENE CLREE Z2emEE 2emAR
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BE#xT HEBT HEBT BHEAR

As at 1 April 2021 R-E--FWA—H 1,603 19 346 (741)
Acquisitions or additions WEESARE - 329 - -
Exercise of call option TR - - - 83
Total gains or losses recognised B RNz EELT
— in profit or loss * —RER* 85 (263) - 29
— in other comprehensive —REMEERE
income = = 56 -
Exchange alignment P& 1 R (63) (2) - -
As at 31 March 2022 RZBE-Zf=A=+-—H 1,625 83 402 (629)

Include gains or losses for O BERREHRAHE
assets/liabilities held at BE/BEZEE
end of reporting period 85 (263) - (1)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. DAFEIE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) ERFEIRRATEFEZEEY
based on level 3: (Continued) B (&)
Financial Financial Financial

Investment assets at assetsat  liabilities at

properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
PA

o AFEHE B

ATENE  BREE AVENE

BEBL  HARE  AESLK

AR 2EkE  HAER

RENE CoREE JomEE ZomARE
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET EBEAT BEAT BERR

As at 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZEFNA—-H 1,432 29 352 (171
Acquisitions or additions WEIRE - 48 - (616)
Total gains or losses recognised ~ BHEARFLFREE
— in profit or loss* —RER* 10 (59 - 46
— in other comprehensive — REMZEKR
income - - (6) -
Exchange alignment [ X A% 161 1 - -
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB=--F=A=1+-H 1,603 19 346 (741)

® Include gains or losses for O BERNREHRMAEAEE

assets/liabilities held at E/ABEREB

end of reporting period 10 (59) - 46
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or REBEZPHEANEREE(BERE
loss including those for assets/liabilities held at SHABANEE A EER
end of reporting period are presented in the REMEEmEERFPE] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in other REMETEKRER BRERE
comprehensive income are presented in the BakHEME2EKERPET] -

statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

6.

164 Annual Report 45 2021/22

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6. AFVEFE(E)
The Group's management is responsible for the REBECEREBAEMBREBAA
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities ERMEBEERBEBERATEFE B
required for financial reporting purposes, BEIRATEFE - BEEEEN
including level 3 fair value measurements. The EESEMZELATEFE - BE
management reports directly to the board of EREEFEEFELETMREH
directors for these fair value measurements. MEBERERN R ©
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the management and the board of
directors at least twice a year.
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will TEIRAFEFEMS  AEER
normally engage external valuation experts with BEHeLEAKERTEXRERE
the recognised professional qualifications and BT REROINBEERRETR
recent experience to perform the valuations. =0
The following table gives information about how TRINEEFUAEERNEEUR
the fair value of the Group's investments at fair FEGFEREAEZ (L ABRZRE
value through profit or loss is determined. NFEZEHR -
Level 2 fair value measurements E2 A FEE
Fair Value
DFE
2022 2021

—E=-= T —%F
Description Valuation technique Inputs HK$'million  HK$'million
k5 fh{E AT WA BB BEBRT BEAT
Financial assets at FVTPL
NAFEREEEZ A

BazerEE

— Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach Net assets 164 511
—FLTESKE BEEMRE BEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 6.

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the

Group and valuation techniques and inputs

used in fair value measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

As at 31 March 2022

DNFEFEGE)
REASERERZEERFUAR
AFEHFERERZGERN RS

(c)

ABE

(45)
(%8 )

EIRMATFEE
RZFE-——F=H=+—H

Effect on fair
value for
increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of key input Fair value
JILIPN ¢ £l
iR =L TIEERARE #E AYECYE NVE
HKS$'million
BEAT
Investment properties Income approach Term yield 55% Decrease 1,625
REME LN T Ha® By
Reversionary Yield 6% Decrease
EERER )
Financial assets at FVTPL
NATEEEAR A ABR
LEREE
— Unlisted debt instruments Discounted cash flow Discount rate 11.50% Decrease 20
—FLImEHIA ERRenE BR% 2
— Convertible note receivable  Discounted cash flow Discount rate 21.00% Decrease 4
— RRATHRER HREEnE BRE 0
— Unlisted fund investment Asset approach Marketability Discount 15.8% Decrease 59
—FITEERE &R mRNTE By
Minority Discount 23.8% Decrease
SERENE AL
Financial assets at FVTOCI
WRTER SRRt AR
rHEkH EREAE
— Goodwill International Income-Based Approach Marketability Discount 15.8% Decrease 5
Holdings Limited WAE Bt )
— Goodwill International Discount rate 15.92% Decrease
Holdings Limited BRE i)
— Co-Lead Holdings Limited Asset-Based Approach Marketability Discount 15.80% Decrease 24
—Co-Lead Holdings Limited ~ BEEM% EE By
Minority Discount 2384% Decrease
DU = D
— Quan Yu Tai Investment Market-Based Approach Price to book 1.25 Increase 373
Company Limited [k il 1
— 2RRREER AT Marketability Discount 15.8% Decrease
R By
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
NATEsrZBER i ABR
ZEeRAR
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow Discount rate 8.7%-9.8% Decrease 629
—ENRERE BRRERE BR% By
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e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the

Group and valuation techniques and inputs

used in fair value measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

DNFEFEGE)
REASERERZEERFUAR
AFEHFERERZGERN RS

(c)

ABE

FIRAFENE(E)

(4=)
(48 )

As at 31 March 2021 R-ZFE-——F=ZH=+—H
Effect on fair
value for increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of key input Fair value
EDIEPN § )
wR U TOBRBAHE §E ATECYE NTE
HK§'million
BEET
Investment properties Income approach Term yield 5% Decrease 1,603
RENZ LN/ bt [ G B
Reversionary Yield 550% Decrease
e W
Financial assets at FVTPL
WRTEGEEERARSR
LEREE
— Unlisted debt instruments Discounted cash flow Discount rate 11.50% Decrease 15
—FImEHIA BRRERE BR% A
— Convertible note receivable  Discounted cash flow Discount rate 28.00% Decrease 4
— RUAAREE BRAeRE HRE AL
Financial assets at FVTOCI
PYNEERIEY Nt
rHEkHEREAE
— Goodwill International Income-Based Approach Marketability Discount 15.80% Decrease 8
Holdings Limited WAE mEtTE )
— Goodwill International Discount rate 14.70% Decrease
Holdings Limited BRE B
— Co-Lead Holdings Limited Asset-Based Approach Marketability Discount 15.80% Decrease 2
—Co-Lead Holdings Limited ~ BEEM% R D
Minority Discount 25.60% Decrease
SERETE )
— Quan Yu Tai Investment Market-Based Approach Price to book 089 Increase 306
Company Limited miEE il 97
— 2 MEREERATF Marketability Discount 15.80% Decrease
R By
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
WATEE B AR A RS
ZERAR
— Call option Monte-Carlo Volatility 42% Increase 3
Simulation Model
—REHE S REREEY G Em
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow Discount rate 9.4%-9.8% Decrease 628
—EREERR BRAERE BRE .

During the two years, there were no changes in

the valuation techniques used.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o

EHER R EEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified six reportable segments

of its business:

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental and sale of construction machinery
and spare parts business: The Group offers
crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile
cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment in its construction machinery
rental fleet in Hong Kong. The Group also
sells construction machinery and spare parts
in Hong Kong and Macau.

Provision of repair and maintenance and
transportation service business: The Group
provides repair and maintenance service for
construction machinery, in particular the
crawler cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group
also provides transportation services which
include local container delivery, construction
site delivery and heavy machinery transport
in Hong Kong.

Money lending business: The Group holds
money lending licenses and offers
mortgaged loan and personal loan
businesses in Hong Kong.

Provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other
financial service business: The Group holds
Securities and Future Commission licenses
for conducting type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and
provides a wide range of financial services in
Hong Kong.

7. WARZEBESR

&>

—
=

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

-

ZIR;% I 2 B S5 8 Al 7N fE AT

oK

4

EERBEERTHHEHENE
’%ﬁiﬂ CAEEETZERR
ERMEERBIRE TR ETRE
RPNZEFHE - MR
W AR TS RIERE -
AREBEMERBMRFIHER
ERMEEBREN -

R MRE A ME R RS
X% AEERBEREER
WOCERES ) IREEE
RRERY - RERETREE
RUCER R - B EELNM
EEER  ZEMREBNE
U E B o

E&f’f%ﬁ‘“ P AEERERER
CWEFBRERBERK
1I/\i§ RETS ©

REEEERE EBHLL-B

CHENMEMERREE
%% AEEBARFEAES
BERZESER —Mﬁxﬁfm
HFRMEGROIETE 1B
X5) BF2BH(HMEAHNXR
7) FARGIESFRHEER)
REBR(RHEEETE)XR
BERY WEEBRHEZES
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a) Description of segments and principal activities

(Continued)

(v)  Property leasing business: The Group holds a
commercial property in London, the United
Kingdom (the “UK"), for leasing.

(vi) Property development business: The Group
holds properties under development in
Malaysia through a subsidiary and in
Cambodia through an associate.

(b) Segment profit or loss

The segment profit or loss for the reportable
segments provided to the chief operating decision
maker and reconciliation to loss before taxation
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are

as follows:

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales
made to third parties at the then prevailing market

prices.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDIHER(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) N EPERE(E)
2022
—E-CE
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Rentaland  Provision of brokerage,
sale of repair and commodities,
construction  maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation Money financial Property Property
parts service lending services leasing  development Total
RftaEER -
BEHAR  RUEBR FHEL-
BRSH RENR Bm BER
BERHE BRIk HE EtbeREH EiN- PES &t
HKS'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HKS'millon ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BEET AEETR BEET BEET BEER BEET LY
Segment revenue AHEA
External revenue SMRIA 177 10 4y 16 n - 315
Segment results before the MRUTEER 2D HEE -
following items: 60 O 26 12 142 - 245
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — TER & (50) - - - - - (50)
— Reversal/[provisional) of —WEFRED/(BE):
impairment losses:
— property, plantand equipment  — %1% + BERAE 2 - = = - - 2
— intangible assets —BVEE 2 = = = = = 2
— financial assets —SREE
(expected credit losses) (BBEERR) )l - 6 ) 1 = ()
— Finance costs —BERAK (5) - (1) - (27) - (33)
Segment results APFE 2 5 31 10 116 - 164
Unallocated: AAE:
— Otherincome —HfiRA 3
— Fair value losses —ATEER (481)
— Other gains — Hthis 25
— Administrative expenses —1BAX (90)
—Reversal of impairment losses: ~ — Fi{EFEEM :
— financial assets —SREE (RREEFR)
(expected credit losses) 1
— Share-based payment expenses  — JAR(AF A HFF R 0]
— Share of results of associates  — AEBENTIEE (44)
— Share of results of joint ventures  — 2SR EEE (30)
— Finance costs —RERA (126)
Loss before taxation Gyl (555)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & Z= =

T F=R=+—HILFE

=

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) oEBE= (B)
2021
S
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Rentaland  Provision of brokerage,
saleof  repairand commodities,
construction  maintenance futures and
machinery and other
andspare  transportation Money financiel Property Property
parts service lending services leasing ~ development Total
REEEEY
BEEAR  REBBR %?‘“
BRZM RENR Pﬁuu gﬁf
BERHE fEE HE Htte@R% ELik- NEER @t
Hk§'millon ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HK$'million  HKS'million ~ HK§'millon ~ HK§'million
BEET REAT BEAT BEET REET BEAT BEET
Segment revenue AHRA
External revenue SRIA 141 8 17 I 69 - 36
Segment results before the ABATRERZ
following items: NEEE 48 4 62 1 63 = 178
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — Tﬁ%&%ﬁ:‘] (39 - - (1) = = (40
— Impairment losses: —HEEE:
— property, plantand equipment  — %1% + E Rkt (8 - = = = = (48)
— intangible assets —BlAE (28) - - = = = (28
— financial assets —SRAE
(expected credit losses) (BHEERR) 4 = (28) 2 (1 = 2
— Finance costs —BEARA B - B - (26) = (32
Segment results PHEE (66) 4 31 vl 3% = 3
Unallocated: AR
— Other income —EffA 3
— Fair value losses —AT{EEE (124)
— Other losses —HfiEiE m
— Administrative expenses — 1B )
— Impairment losses: —RERR -
— property, plantand equipment  — 1% * BE R 22
— financial assets —PRAE
(expected credit losses) (BHEEER) (257)
— Share-based payment expenses  — MRS 7E% @
— Share of results of associates  — 2 E BENTEE 196
— Share of results of joint ventures  — EAS M EEE 92
— Finance costs = Fﬂﬁﬁizﬁ (15)
Loss before taxation Ty (3%3)

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as
the chief operating decision maker does not
regularly review segment assets and liabilities.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEER(E)
(Continued)

The geographical information about the Group's EAAEBE BN REPATBKRA (R
revenue from external customers by location of KEWEE D) ARIERDEE (S
operations and the non-current assets other than AT HEBRIN RIEERIBEE(EE
financial instruments and deferred tax assets in BERATE) 2R ER T
which the assets are physically located is detailed
below:
Revenue Non-current assets (note)
O FRBEE (M)
For the year ended
31 March As at 31 March
BE=A=t-HLHFE R=A=t+-H
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-C-F —E-—F —E-C-F —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEER BEATL BEBR BEBT

Hong Kong B8 243 275 449 383
UK HH 71 69 1,625 1,603
The People's Republic of A RAME

China (the "PRC") (TE ) - - 261 403
Macau BP9 1 2 = =
Cambodia RIHE - = 1,127 1,116

315 346 3,462 3,505

Note: B
Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTOCI, loan ERBEETEIEUAAFEEFEBEEZLA
receivables, financial lease receivables, deferred tax assets, Hibhemlasz oREE  BIKER sEH
pledged bank deposits and financial assets included in other ERYGRIA - RERIBEAE - EEFRITER
receivables and deposits. ARG A At EGRIA R ET & 2 S R EEE ©
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEHER (E)
(Continued)
(d) Information about major customers (d) BEREEEFZEHR
There is no external customer over 10% of the BE (L N E B U AR IB 10% 2 Fh
total revenue of the Group. HEP -
(e) Revenue summary (e) WAME
2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

Revenue from contracts with BERPEH WA (M) :
customers (note):
— Sale of construction machinery ~— — SR K E R THHIHE
and spare parts 49 41
— Repair and maintenance and — BIERREUARER
transportation service income ARFG WA 10 8
— Commission income generated — &EEIE + FHEL
from asset management, B B REM
securities brokerage, TRIRBESZ
commodities, futures and HBe WA
other financial services 9 /
68 56
Revenue from other sources: HA 2R 2 WA
— Rental income generated from  — EEMIMEL 2
construction machinery HEA 128 100
— Rental income generated from  — SR EYEELY
leasing of investment properties HEWlA 71 69
— Interest income generated — MEEEZFERA
from money lending 41 17
— Interest income generated —RETREELEZ
from margin financing M BUA 7 4
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 207 0
315 346
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BWARSBER(E)
(Continued)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) WAME(4E)
Note: Biit -
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers DIFREEEHBA
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—T-——F=A=+—HIFE

Provision of

asset
management,
securities
Provision of brokerage,
Sale of repair and commodities,
construction  maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation financial
parts service services Total
Rt
EEE®E -
EEEMR REEER EHRL -
ERZH RENR @S HER
SHE EWRYE HttemR® #st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
ER- -7 ER- -7 ER- -7 BEET
Sale of construction BB BRSNS
machinery and spare parts 49 - - 49
Repair and maintenance and #1{& RIRE A K
transportation ERRBUWA
service income - 10 - 10
Commission income BEEIE  FHE&4L
generated from asset Hm HER
management, securities Hih& R AR
brokerage, commodities, EEZH2KA
futures and other financial
services - - 9 9
49 10 9 68
Timing of revenue recognition A #5255 [
At a point in time N —BFfE 2, 49 - 9 58
Over time BERE S - 10 - 10
Total FEe 49 10 9 68

Annual Report 3572021722 173



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {884 mEHIEE AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &=

T —FZR=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

WARDEBER (F)

(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) WAME(E)
Note: (Continued) Wiat - (48)
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers DHFEFEHRA ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE_E-_—F=A=1—HIFZ
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Provision of brokerage,
Sale of repairand  commodities,
construction maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation financial
parts service services Total
Rt
AEEE -
RS RHEER BHEEL
HRZEMH RENAR BH HEk
HE ERRG At R st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEET BEET
Sale of construction BEEMIERZMHEE
machinery and spare parts 41 - - 41
Repair and maintenance and  #{& R IRE A K B
transportation BRASUTA
service income - 8 - 8
Commission income BEETE  FBHLEL
generated from asset Am- BMER
management, securities Efh e B RS
brokerage, commodities, EEZRASKA
futures and other financial
services - - 7 7
41 8 7 56
Timing of revenue recognition A #E 52 B
At a point in time R — R E 8 4 7 48
Over time I8 B Pl - 8 = 8
Total FEEy 41 8 7 56
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME H At A
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Notes HKS$'million  HK$'million
liEsd BHEAET BEBT
Interest earned on: AT SERRZFE -
— corporate note receivables — BREERE 19 30
— bank deposits — IR{TIER 2 2
Government grant eGSR 1 7
Rental income HeA 3 4
Others Hi 3 9
28 52
OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 9. Hftulzs (F5E)FHE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEET
Extinguishment gain/(loss) on early REER EATBRRE
principal redemption of convertible BAEZER
note payables W,/ (E#E) 9 M
Foreign exchange gain HINE L 25 14 1
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE BERXREZ
plant and equipment Izt (E548) 1 2
24 (2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. WMERA

2022 2021

—EB-—fF —E-—F

HK$'million  HK$'million

BHEBT BEET

Interest expenses arising from: UTEEZFNERX

— bank and other borrowings — RITRHEMEE 97 47
— corporate note payables — BN EER 55 135
— convertible note payables — BN ERE 1 8
— lease liabilities —MHE&E 1 1
Exchange difference on borrowings BEEZER =5 5 4)
159 187

11.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated at after charging/(crediting) the following:

11.BRBiATE 18

B Th R, (G A U TR IBES T

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BHEAT BEAT
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEE = 2
Auditor’s remuneration B2 2 2
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 44 32
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment — W BEKRK 57 51
— right-of-use assets — EREEE 11 10
Direct operating expenses REMEMES 2 ARKERX
from investment properties 40 47
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BMENMEREBER 2
property, plant and equipment (Yezk),/E18 (1) 2
Staff costs (including director’s ETRAN(BEESTME)
remuneration):
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —F & - (EAL RSEBL 97 96
— Retirement benefit scheme — IR IR AIET S X
contributions 2 2
— Share based payments — AR AT K 7 10
106 108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 1N.EERFETHRABZHMESRER

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS

(@) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) BEZ=zZHEWT :
2022
—EC-CE
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees inkind contributions  payments Total
¢ 2ER BHREN  URGFA
He ENEA SRR OES @t
Notes  HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
fzE BE#ER BE#ER BE#ER BE#ER BE#ER
Executive directors HTES
Xu Haiying FEE - 0.6 - - 0.6
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEsEL AT#L - 0.6 - - 0.6
Fok Chi Tak B - 4.6 - 32 7.8
- 5.8 - 32 9.0
Non-executive directors EHTES
Li Yao E3 (i) = 0.1 = = 0.1
Wang Yu IF (il - 0.3 - - 0.3
- 0.4 - - 0.4
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 708 0.2 - - - 0.2
Mak Yiu Tong FRR (iv) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Lam Kwan Sing ME, 0.2 - - - 0.2
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TRE (i) 0.1 - - - 0.1
06 - - - 06
Senior consultant BRER
Ms. Li Shao Yu FHOFLT v) - 12.7 - = 12.7
Total @5t 0.6 18.9 - 3.2 22.1
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 1NR.EERFETHAEZHMERERN(E)
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continued)
(@) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) BEZ=zZHMEWT : (&)

(Continued)

2021
“To-F
Salaries, ~ Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions payments Total
£e 28R BINER  HUROFR
we EMEN HEE (B @t

Notes HKS'million  HK$'million ~ HK§'million ~ HK$'million  HK§'million
Mzt BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT

Executive directors YTES

Xu Haiying TEE - 07 - - 07

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEREL ATHT s 07 - - 07

Fok Chi Tak EFE = 48 = 42 90
- 6.2 - 4.2 104

Non-executive directors FHITES

Li Yao FE (i) = 0.1 = = 0.1

Wang Yu IF (if) - 04 - - 04
- 05 - - 0.5

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITES

directors

Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan FRefs 02 - - - 02

Lam Kwan Sing WEH 02 - - - 02

Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TEE (i) 0.2 = = = 0.2

06 - - - 06

Senior consultant BiRER

Ms. Li Shao Yu HFRE v) - 138 - = 138

Total @t 06 205 - 42 25.3
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

The emoluments of each director are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

Li Yao resigned as a non-executive director on 30 June
2021.

Wang Yu resigned as a non-executive director on 15
October 2021.

Lee Chi Hwa Joshua resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 12 July 2021.

Mak Yiu Tong was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 12 July 2021.

Ms. Li Shao Yu is a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, one (2021: one) was the

director of the Company and one (2021: one) was

the senior consultant of the Company, whose

emoluments are included in the disclosure set out
in Note 12(a). The emolument of the highest paid
individual except directors and senior consultant is

as follows:

1N.EERFETHABZHMEREN(E)

(a)

BEEEZMEemT @ (&)

(i)

(iii)

FRN T —FRAZTHEEEH
TES-

EFFR TS+ A+RHBHEEHR
TE=E-

FRER-_T-_—FLtA+-HFHHIB
Y IEHITESE ©

EREN_ZE_—FEAT_AEZ®E
RBIIFRITEE -

FALFRTBARAINERBE -

hEFMES Z2@EET

EASEEFMERcAEENET
B —R(ZZ=Z—F:—&)AB
RARAREE 5—H(ZFE=Z—F:
—Z)BARRSRER  EMeE
BREEATH 12 FMFEELR -
BREENSRERIN FHEE 2
ERIE ITEEIT

2022 2021
—s=-= —E_—fF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEAT

Salaries, allowances and

¥ RENEDEN

benefits in kind 5
Share-based payment LARRAR FE A 3K 1 1
5 6
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e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (Continued)

NR.EERFETHABZHMEREN(E)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) ERFMBESZEBEI(E)

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BT T3 FE :

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T —1,500,000 /% 7T 1 -

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T 2,000,000 % 7T 1 2

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T -2,500,000 % 7T 1 -

HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 75, —3,000,000 7 7T - 1

3 3

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2021: nil). There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FISHBAxX

2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Current income tax B ERRRT1S X
— Current year — RFEE
— Hong Kong — & 2 20
— UK — HE 6 2
— Over-provision in prior years — BAFEBEERE (6) (10)
2 12
Deferred tax (note 25) EIEFTIS L (B E25)
— Current year — RFE 39 (7)
— Under-provision in prior years — BEFERETR - 20
39 13
41 25
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. IS (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense REERAEHATBEL R 2RIEBEBRR
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the KABBNEHMEEEZERESRE 1B
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows: WA
2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F
HKS$'million  HK$'million
HEBTT BEATT

Loss before income tax KPS R S8 (555) (323)
Less: Share of results of associates W DREE A RIER 44 (196)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEDEFEE 30 (92)
(481) 611)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% B16.5% M EFE
(2021: 16.5%) (ZZE=—F :165%) (79) (100)
Effect of different tax rates of HEup R AERMB AR X
subsidiaries operating in TRz &
other jurisdictions 6 7)
Expenses not deductible for R0 2
tax purposes 115 127
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (9) (17)
Tax loss for which no deferred income  RIERIELEMSFHSE L
tax amount was recognised IS E R 15 12
Utilisation of previously unrecognised — EhfA % RiAMER 2 FiIEE B
tax losses (1) -
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years B FE (HBEEE) FBETR (6) 10
Income tax expense FTiSHi A2 41 25
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 8.25% BRSNS Z 2BE B TS -
on the estimated assessable profit up to HK$2 million F BB AR EEE IR = 8.25% 5+
and 16.5% on any part of estimated assessable profit g st ERR G RB Y 2EE STy
over HK$2 million for both years. Taxation arising in TS > BIIR165%FE o Hfh 7]k #E
other jurisdiction are calculated at the rates prevailing BFTEL 7 HIBIRAE BB AR IRITR
in the relevant jurisdictions. KRAE o
UK Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 19% (2021: ER ARG ERERERN19% (==
19%) on the estimated assessable profit. Z—F 19%) Z TR E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share was calculated by dividing the
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

14. EREE
(a) EXK

TREABERARAERSEA
A 4F B 1B I A O BT B
Bz MAETBGE -

2022
—EC-CF —E—F

Loss for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

AABEmFHEAREFR
BR(EEET)

(HK$'million) (370) (376)
Weighted average number of EETE B TS
ordinary shares in issue (B&R)
(million shares) 7.203 6,559
Basic loss per share (HK$ cents) IR E AR ERE GBI (5.14) (5.73)
(b) Diluted (b) #H
Notes 2022 2021
BEE —E--f —T-—F

Adjusted loss for the year

attributable to owners of the AR TR AES
Company used to determine R FHEE B
the diluted loss per share (B&ETT)

RNEESREERR 0]

(HK$" million) (413) (444)
Weighted average number of B 217 2 10#E 92 (ii)

ordinary shares in issue (B8R)

(million shares) 7,439 7,014
Diluted loss per share BREERE B

(HK$ cents) (5.55) (6.33)
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A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. SREE(E)
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #E(E)
Notes: MiEE
i) Adjusted loss for the year attributable to owners of the 0] RAETERESBIEC AR RHEEA

Company used to determine the diluted loss per share is

BIEFREHEBRZFENT -

calculated as follows:

2022 2021
—E_C —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Loss for the year attributable to the RARRE ANEIEFEREE
owners of the Company (370) (376)
Adjustments for: BATRIERE
— Assumed exercise of call option — BREBRATE R AR (35) (67)
— Assumed conversion of convertible — BRABEN TR
note payables (8) -
— Assumed grant of share awards by — RERREIRER
Hao Tian International Construction REEBEHRAF
Investment Group Limited (“"HTICI") ([RREIRERIEE ])
X B 1 22 = (M
Adjusted loss for the year attributable to  Fi A T SRR # EE 18 2 AN A7)
owners of the Company used to WA AR FRLEHEEER
determine the diluted loss per share (413) (444)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the () BEESRIEERZ HBEME TS
purpose of diluted loss per share is calculated as follows: BoZEHEMT
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
million share million share
BER BER
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EEREREIEZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss B ANRE I &L
per share 7,203 6,559
Adjustment for: BIATZIRFE
— Assumed exercise of call option — BRRITEREEEARE 181 455
— Assumed conversion of convertible — B A BREN TR R
note payables 55 =
Weighted average number of ordinary RETEEREEEE
shares for the purpose of diluted loss I AR INAE 9 2R
per share 7,439 7,014

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:

Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERZE
Leasehold Furniture,
and and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements  equipment Art works vehicles Machinery Yacht Total
BELH fih B
kBT EENRRE FEG B it i g h

HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HK$'million HKS'million
BERT BEER BEAT BERT BEER BEAT BERT BEET

Cost A
Asat 1 April 2020 RZE-ZERA-A 25 14 7 19 2 395 73 53
Additions AE - 2 - - 1 10 2 15
Disposal & - (1) - - - (34) - (39
Exchange difference ERER 2 - - = = = = 2
As at 31 March 2021 and R-E--£=A=1-H

1 April 2021 RZEZ-4NA-H 21 15 i 19 3 N 75 517
Additions AE 2 1 - - = 54 - 57
Transfer from right-of-use assets  EABFFAELE - - - - - 10 - 10
Disposal tE - - - - - (15) - (15)
As at 31 March 2022 R_E-_F=A=1-H 29 16 7 19 3 420 75 569

Accumulated depreciationand B3t ERWE

impairment
Asat 1 April 2020 RZE-Z5MA-H 0 6 3 = = 114 U 167
Charge for the year ERkR 1 1 1 - - X 5 51
Impairment for the year ERFE = 6 1 = = Y] 2 70
Disposal e - (1) - - - (28) - 29
As at 31 March 2021 and R_E-—F=fA=1-A

1 April 2021 R=E--4NA-A 21 12 5 - - m 50 259
Charge for the year FRR = 1 1 = = 53 2 57
Reversal of impairment AERR = = = = = 2 = @)
Transfer from the right-ofuse ~~ BBBFRELE

assets - - - - - 3 - 3
Disposal e - - - - - ¥)] - 2
As at 31 March 2022 R-E--£=A=+-H 21 13 (] - - 223 52 315
Carrying amount e
As at 31 March 2022 R=B-—£=fA=+-H 8 3 1 19 3 197 23 254
As at 31 March 2021 R-E-—%=A=1-H 6 3 2 19 3 200 25 258
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

0]

Non-current assets pledged as security

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$114 million (2021: HK$108
million) was pledged to secure borrowings.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
property, plant and equipment in 2022 as a result of the
change of the markets of the Group's products and services.
These assets are used in the Group's rental and sale of
construction machinery and spare parts segment and certain
assets are corporate assets. The reviews led to the recognition
of a reversal of impairment loss of HK$2 million (2021:
impairment loss of HK$70 million), that has been recognised in
profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of
HK$212 million (2021: HK$214 million) has been determined on
the basis of value in use using discounted cash flow method
(level 3 fair value measurements).
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. HEREREEE

2022 2021
—E-—F T4
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Right-of-use assets FRAEEE

— Offices — WRE 13 19

— Warehouses —RE 12 3

— Machinery — e 3 10

— Motor vehicles — A8 1 1
29 33

Lease commitments of short-term leases %5 HifAE 2 FH &I 1 1
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A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(Continued)

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash

flows, of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows:

17. HERFEHEESE (&)

REABRBASREETAEER
EREZIMBERIMWT

2022 2021
—EB--fF —T-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBET BEET
— Less than 1 year — LR1F 13 12
— Between 1 and 2 years —1ZE2%F 10 8
— Between 2 and 5 years —2FE5F 8 10
31 30

Depreciation charge of FERAEEENE

right-of-use assets

— Offices —WRE 6 5
— Warehouses —BE 4 3
— Machinery — MR - 1
— Motor vehicles —RE 1 1
11 10
Lease interests FHERN S 1 1
Expenses related to short-term leases BEHIASHH M 2 1
Total cash outflow for leases MER &N ERE 17 13
Additions to right-of-use assets NEEREEE 14 -

The Group leases various offices, warehouses,

machinery and motor vehicles. Lease agreements are

typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years (2021: 1

to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual

basis and contain a wide range of different terms and

conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any

covenants and the leased assets may not be used as

security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REWX

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E—F

HK$'million  HK$'million

BEAT BEET

At beginning of year F1 1,603 1,432
Fair value gains N EK 85 10
Exchange differences E N =% (63) 161
End of the year EFR 1,625 1,603

Notes:

(a)

Investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2022 and
2021 on the open market value basis by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.

The Group leases out its investment properties under
operating leases. The lease terms range from 6 to 99 years
(2021: 3 to 99 years). All leases are on a fixed rental basis and
do not include variable lease payments.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties of approximately HK$1,625 million (2021: HK$1,603
million) was pledged to secure borrowings.

The Group's future undiscounted lease payments under
operating leases are receivable as follows:

GEE

REMER_ZT__FR-_F_—F=AH
=t-EHBUEXASMESEFTEER
AESEELUME AR ST S EERARH
MiHEERESY -

AEERBLELTHELHELEDE - HESF
HINFO6EIEFE (T —4F : 35 994) B
BRNEECHSERE  TREVTEREN

B
A °

BEBET(ZZE-_—F:160388T) 2%
EYMHECEMAERES -

REBENLEHE THRICRRER B ERIARN
TS5 HARE AR

2022 2021

—E-—F T4

HK$'million HK$'million

BEBT BEET

Less than 1 year D1 E 62 53
Between 1 and 2 years 1&82%F 62 64
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3%F 62 64
Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 62 64
Between 4 and 5 years AFE5F 51 64
Over 5 years BB 5 F 21 75
320 384
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BE&EE

Securities
Brand brokerage Customer
Goodwill name licenses list Total
HE REER RBELLER EFRE @t
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Note (a) Note (b) Note (a)
M3t (a) i3t (b) fi15E(a)
Cost A
As at 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R-ZE-Z&ENA—H
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 “E--%ZfA=+-H
“E--¥WA-RARK
“EZFZRA=+-H 415 167 4 8 594
Accumulated amortisation and B FERAEE
impairment
As at 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZEMA—-H 402 - - 408
Charge for the year FRMBR - - - 2
Impairment for the year ENRE 13 15 = = 28
As at 31 March 2021 and RZE-_—F=A=+-HK
1 April 2021 —E--FWA-H 415 15 - 8 438
Reversal of impairment RERE = (2) = = (2)
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-Z&=R=+-H 415 13 - 8 436
Carrying amount HEE{E
As at 31 March 2022 RZEZZ4=A=1+-H - 154 4 - 158
As at 31 March 2021 RZB-_—&E=F=+—H - 152 4 - 156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Brand name and customer list

The amount arose on the acquisitions of crawler crane business
in HTICI in February 2017. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on basis detailed in note 16.

The Group's brand name of HK$154 million (2021: HK$152
million) at 31 March 2022 is assessed as having indefinite useful
life because there is no time limit that the Group can use the
brand name.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets in 2022 and 2021 as a result of the change of
the markets of the Group's products and services. These assets
are used in the Group's rental and sale of construction
machinery and spare parts segment. The reviews led to the
recognition of a reversal of impairment loss of HK$2 million
(2021: impairment loss of HK$28 million), that has been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the
relevant assets of HK$154 million (2021: HK$152 million) has
been determined on the basis of value in use using discounted
cash flow method (level 3 fair value measurements).

Securities brokerage licenses

The amount arose on the acquisitions of Hao Tian International
Securities Limited ("HTIS") in February 2017.

The Group's securities brokerage licenses of HK$4 million
(2021: HK$4 million) at 31 March 2022 is assessed as having
indefinite useful life because th Group can renew the securities
brokerage license without substantial costs.

The recoverable amount of HTIS has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period with a pre-tax
discount rate of 17% (2021: 17%). Cash flow after the five-year
period are extrapolated at 3% (2021: 3%) growth rate. Another
key assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
revenue and gross margin, which is determined based on the
unit’s past performance and management'’s expectations for
the market development.

19. BEEE (&)

BYEE -

(a)

(b)

mEEBREFRE
ZeBRA-_F—tF - AKBERRERER

BREEHMEBESE - JIRESREEREN uE
16 FFall 2 EREEETE °

AEBR-_TE-_—_FZA=1+—AZREEH
BEAIMBEAT(ZE-—F 152@88
TEFEARERAIFAEH  REAKNSE
EZAREETHE I &R o

mﬁéﬂS%F%&HEFZﬁ%FREM ELEN
SHEEN_T__SR_T_-FEPEE
Z A REIEHE EZ%QE%E"$§%IZL7§%
WMEBREHHEEREEDH - ZHEBER

BRARBaERREBREF2AEET(Z
To—F:REBE2SEEET) - HEEE

ZAIREEEAEIMBEST(ZE=—4F:
152EEBIT)  REEFEREERARER
SREX(B=RATFEAR)ETE -

Eié%ﬁ@ —tF - ARBERRERESH
T(Faa%lﬁif‘ém%J)EE

AEER B _F=ZA=+—HNZEFR
CHRREERIABEL(ZZ_—F 488
BT ENEAEERACAEE  REAX
SEREEBSELERMBARMNEREK
PN

BHEZARESENREEREET
HET & EERANEEEIEZ AT
BEEAER R RETE - HARREA
17%(ZF=—%F 1 17%) - AFHEZHER
EU3%(ZT=—F : 3%) 2EREHEH - fF
REETEZS —ARRBEABERARE
ME - DREBENZBERBEREREETS
BRIBET -

EPNET
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20 REEQTz2ER

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEBT
Unlisted investments: JELETIRE -
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 1,308 1,341

Notes:

(a)

Associates material to the Group

0]

Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion of
the directors, are material to the Group as at 31 March
2022. These associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information
presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of
the associates.

% of ownership

BcE
(@) HEREEMSEEAZHEDQT

0] TXEHIEERAR-_T-_—_4=A
Tt BYAEEMEBEAZEER
Al o R EM AR AE AR AN R A
BHEAAE - ER 2 HIEERBETY
B A RIRIBEE ST ISHRE £ARR
2 EHREMEY -

% of ownership

Name of entity Place of establishment interest interest  Principal activities
HRAH B FEREZEIH TEXK
2022 2021
ot St —T--F
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia 22% 22%  Property development
("CESIZ")
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd ([CESIZ]) RIFFE MEERRE
Grand Peaceful Global Limited BVI 49% 49%  Licensing and
("Grand Peaceful”) development of intellectual
properties (“IPs")
FERIFBRAR ([RERR]) KERAES RIHE2 RERNBER
(TAEER])
Lion Run Holdings Limited BVI 49% 49%  Licensing and development
("Lion Run") of IPs
BEZRERAR ([HEEKR]) RERUEE B2 RERNBER
Triple Blessing International BVI 49% 49%  Licensing and development
Limited (“Triple Blessing") of IPs
=RERERAR ([ =REEER]) RERUHE FRHEE R RS ER
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Associates material to the Group (Continued)

(i)

Financial information of CESIZ

20 REEQNRZERE(E)
GERRCD
(a)  HALETEMEXZHE A (8)

(i)  CESIZZBEIBEE

2022 2021
—E—= —E——
HKS$'million HK$'million
HEBT BEATT
At 31 March: R=ZA=+—H8:
Non-current assets ERENEE 5,141 5,084
Current assets mENEE 1 -
Current liabilities mEEE (18) (10)
Net assets BEFE 5,124 5,074
Group's % of ownership interest NEBRAEREEZRB DL 22% 22%
Group's share of carrying amount of REBO (LR REE
interests 1,127 1,116
Year ended 31 March: HE=-A=1T—HLFE:
Revenue A = =
Profit bt - -
Other comprehensive income Hibh 2w 50 -
Total comprehensive income S H WA 50 -

CESIZ is principally engaged in investment in urban
complex development project. Under the sub-decree
122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”) on the establishment of
CESIZ Special Economic Zone granted by the Council of
Ministers to CESIZ, the Council of Ministers approved
CESIZ to establish a special economic zone (the “Special
Economic Zone") with a size of 17,252,519 square meters
at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia (the “Project”). Under
the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole and exclusive
right to develop the Special Economic Zone with all the
necessary land use rights, including those for residential,
industrial and commercial development purpose. The
principal assets of CESIZ is a land for development.

CESIZEENEH MRS FEIEE B
B REPREEGR FCESIZHR L
CESIZ#8 B ¥5 [& #) = A 0K = 122/2019
(TZ#%E%]) BREESHIECESIZ
ERBER DAL R LETEA 17,252,519
TR ERSE([EERFRE] ([1|
Bl - BEZMES  CESIZEBHER
B R 2 E— RBRER - WS
FrEME+mERE(BREEEE - T
XN EZERERMR) CESZHEEE
EAERER -
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mE KRR
For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20
Notes: (Continued)
(a)  Associates material to the Group (Continued)

(i) Financial information of Grand Peaceful

REtE ARz ()
BisE - ()
(a) YAEETMSBEAZBE AT )
(i) ERIRMRZEBER
2022 2021
—E-= —F——

HKS$’million HK$'million
BEERT BEAET

At 31 March: R=A=+—8":
Non-current assets IERBEE 56 121
Current assets mENEE 123 114
Net assets BEFE 179 235
Group's % of ownership interest REEMBEREERADL 49% 49%
Group's share of carrying amount of REESGHER 2 REE

interests 88 115
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=1+—HIt&E:
Revenue WA 37 53
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (E18) wMeem(EE),/

(loss)/income lgatist ] (56) 56

Grand Peaceful holds rights in various IPs in PRC and has
licensed the use of such IPs to an independent third
party for 10 years starting from 1 April 2019. The first
year licensing fee is approximately HK$53 million.
Licensing fee in subsequent years will be agreed in
written form one month before the anniversary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20 REBEQTZER(B)
Notes: (Continued) st (88)
(a)  Associates material to the Group (Continued) (a) HEAEEMEBEAZEE AR (H)
(iv)  Financial information of Lion Run (iv) BRI ER
2022 2021
—s—-— -
HKS$'million HK$'million

BEET BEBT

At 31 March: R=A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 35 86
Current assets MENEE 50 1
Net assets BEFE 85 97
Group's % of ownership interest AEBMBEEZB DL 49% 49%
Group's share of carrying amount of AEBHhESZEEE

interests 42 48
Year ended 31 March: HE=ZA=1T—HILFE :
Revenue WA 40 11
Loss and total comprehensive loss EELEEEERE (12) (42)
Lion Run holds rights in various IPs in PRC and has MEERNHBESE S RMBERE 2
licensed the use of such IPs to an independent third - WEHFAT—EZBIE=FERAZE
party for 20 years starting from 1 January 2021. The first MBERE BT —F— A — Bt
year licensing fee is approximately HK$45 million. RE20F - EFFAENRISBEEE
Licensing fee in subsequent years will be agreed in T o HIEFE 2 A BN BF T —(E
written form one month before the anniversary. RUAEBEFERIGE -
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—AN =
mE KRR
For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20
Notes: (Continued)
(a)  Associates material to the Group (Continued)

(v) Financial information of Triple Blessing

REERNT 2= (B)
PtsE - (B8)
(a) HEEEMSEEAZHE LR (E)
v  ZREBERZEBER
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—

HKS$’million HK$'million
BEERT BEAET

At 31 March: R=A=+—8:
Non-current assets EREEE 32 101
Current assets MENVEE 59 13
Net assets BEFE 91 14
Group's % of ownership interest REEMBEREERADL 49% 49%
Group's share of carrying amount of AEBHhEZZEEE

interests 45 56
Year ended 31 March: HE=A=1+—HILFE:
Revenue WA 47 13
Loss and total comprehensive loss EELEEEERE (23) (61

Triple Blessing holds rights in various IPs in PRC and has
licensed the use of such IPs to an independent third
party for 20 years starting from 1 January 2021. The first
year licensing fee is approximately HK$52 million.
Licensing fee in subsequent years will be agreed in
written form one month before the anniversary.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20 ABEQATzER(8)
Notes: (Continued) st (88)
(b)  Associates not material to the Group by HEREEMSATEAZHEAT
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of TRAELT AR AEBEREREARZ
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are B ERIBEERBE RRIEEE -

accounted for using the equity method.

2022 2021
—Zg-= T
HK$'million HK$'million
HEBT BEET
At 31 March: R=A=+—8:

Carrying amounts of interests HmREE 6 6

Year ended 31 March: BE=ZA=+—HLFE:
Profit and total comprehensive income N R 2 E A S R = -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE REeEBEhEER
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBET BAEBTT
Unlisted investments: JEEMRE -

Share of net assets PEEEFE 80 114

Notes: MI5E -

(a)  Joint venture material to the Group

Set out below is the joint venture which, in the opinion of the
directors, is material to the Group as at 31 March 2022. This
joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial
statements of the joint venture.

(a) HEEEMEBEAZGELHE
TXHINEERRN B —_F=A=1t—H
HAEEMEBEAZAELE - ZABDHX
EREDENEAMBERRAAL - EH 2
BERBZINAECERBEREMBRELE
ARz M5 ERME5

% of % of
Place of ownership ownership
Name of entity establishment interest interest Principal activities
FREEER FTAERER
BRAE RT3 B ATk ANtk EEXK
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—
Success View Global Limited ~ BVI 50% 50% Licensing and development of

(“Success View")

SIRRRARAB (IR ZRBRLES
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21. A& tE 2= (8)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (4
(a)  Joint venture material to the Group (Continued) () YAEEHEBEAZSEOE(E)
Financial information of Success View Y=Y B SR
2022 2021
—E-—F —T-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET
At 31 March: R=A=+—8":
Non-current assets FEMENEE 74 167
Current assets MENA E 86 55
Net assets BEFAE 160 222
Group's % of ownership interest REBBEREESZE DL 50% 50%
Group's share of carrying amount of interests N&E B D5 2 BEE(E 80 1M
Year ended 31 March: HE=-A=1+—HILFE:
Revenue WA 41 55
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (B8), #Fk2m(ER),/

(loss)/income WS 4 5B (62) 48
Success View holds rights in various IPs in PRC and has licensed IRNP BB A S EMBERE 2N - WEF
the use of such IPs to an independent third party for 20 years A—HBBUE=FERAZENEERE BZF
starting from 1 August 2020. The first year licensing fee is “EFN\A BRI RH0F - EFFTE
approximately HK$82 million. Licensing fee in subsequent WH2ABET HRFEZAANEKNE
years will be agreed in written form one month before the FR—EAAEELABE -

anniversary.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {884 mEHIEE AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21. A& tE 2= (8)

Notes: (Continued) Mo : (58
(a)  Joint venture material to the Group (Continued) (a) YAEEMEBEAZSEOE(E)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of TEUER 5 R E M RS EAE Y
the amounts of all individually immaterial joint ventures that are B ERFEE AL SR E4E -
accounted for using the equity method.
2022 2021
—EC-CH& —ET-—F
HKS$'million HK$'million
BHEBER BEET
At 31 March: R=B=+—-8:
Carrying amounts of interests HmRmE - 3
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=+—HLEE:
Profit ikl 1 -
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wk - -
Total comprehensive income SHE=EEE 1 -
During the year ended 31 March 2022, a joint venture was HE-_Z-_—_F=A=+—BLFE —M&
disposed at a consideration of HK$4 million. EREURBIGBETLE -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

22. UAFEFEBEHEB(FTAREMEME

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEABT BEET
Unlisted equity securities (note a) EEMBRAES (Hiita)
Goodwill International Holdings Goodwill International
Limited Holdings Limited 5 8
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited 24 32
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company PMHRREBRAA
Limited 373 306
Listed equity securities (note b) FHRRAES (HsEb) 39 120
441 466
Notes: BEE -

(a)

The above investments are intended to be held for the medium
to long-term. Designation of these investments as equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
can avoid the volatility of the fair value changes of these
investments to the profit or loss.

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise the fair value of this equity instrument, which is not
held for trading but a strategic investment, through other
comprehensive income. No dividend income was received
during the year (2021: Nil).

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance
within the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings.

In April 2020, HTICI completed a share swap with Oshidori,
where HTICI issued and allotted 625 million shares of HTICI in
exchange for approximately 188 million shares in Oshidori.
According to the swap agreement, there is a lock-up period of
two years from the date of issue for not to sell, offer to sell,
transfer or dispose. The Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise the fair value of this equity instrument,
which is not held for trading but a strategic investment,
through other comprehensive income. In January 2021, in view
of the strong performance in the stock market reaching its 6
months high, both HTICI and Oshidori mutually agreed to
release the aforesaid lock-up restriction. No dividend income
was received during the year.

AEEFR P ERANFE LIRE - EBEZ
ERERUDFEFTEARSCFARMBRE
Wtz BARERBRZFRANBENAF
EZBHRE) -

REBENVIRTERR T BiH R EE B
2 EREERZR AT A 2 2 FE  BEK
ATRAWFERKEREE @ M2 —HKBIRE - F
NI P I BA (=5 : &) -

HE R ERARER - UATEN ARSI
HARE2ERE 2 HENZ EARBESE
FOMARBEF -

R-ZE-_TFHNA SREEERLEHR
Oshidori FEAIANL « it - ERBIFRERIZE
BIREESEERZERBEBRERIEER
15+ A2 EUA) 188 B & % Oshidori B 17 ° 1R
BRHE BRTERAEMEREH T
/HE  REHE EBERIEE - A5EER
F 46 T R B A e bR 12 B H th 2 T Uk 2S
BREZBATAZ AFE - BEAKRATANIE
BEBE  MeERBEE R-T—_—F
— R ERREMSRERS - AT EA
= 2 ARBIRRERIRE B Oshidori HHE [Fl = f#
B B2 ERE] - F AL KBRS MWA -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {884 mEHIEE AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE
23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. BEIRER

2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Non-current JETE
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BHRAEENEERE R 20 92
Less: Allowance for expected credit B TEEE R E RS
losses (4) 3)
16 89
Current mE
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BIRAEEMERERER 89 133
Unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables #IXIAEFF REKE 400 590
Less: Allowance for expected credit W TREEEEEREE
losses (158) (207)
331 516
347 605
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ @B EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:
(@)  Asat 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of loan receivables of
approximately HK$Nil (2021: HK$54 million) was pledged to

secure borrowings.

(b)  Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for loan

FsEllﬁlﬁm( )

s -

(a) RZZEZZF=A=+—8  EEEHNTET
T 54@%7%71:)2%%% KB
MERBEZER

b) EUREREREEBEREE

receivables:
HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2020 R-ZZ-_ZFWOA—H 175
Recognised in the consolidated statement REFEIERRNHER
of profit or loss 43
Amount written-off as uncollectible Wi AT 2R 8)
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—HK
—E-—FP/™A—H 210
Recognised in the consolidated statement REREBRERANER
of profit or loss 13
Amount written-off as uncollectible b E =R N ek 61)
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_—_#=A=+—H 162

For loan receivables that are not credit-impaired without
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (“Stage
1"), ECLs is measured at an amount equal to the portion of
lifetime ECLs that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed to be
credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime ECLs. In
general, when loan receivables or its related instalments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit risk.
In general, loan receivables are considered as default (“Stage
3") when they are overdue by over 90 days.

HNIEERER B TIRRERURERERRL
EREEM(E1ER]) 2K ER - REME
EERRBASNARRIEANREEREED
EeIBz 2 MBEREEB RIS 2B
E - B IR ERIARE BB EER R EE
MUE2RRDEREREHREERE EJJ
T‘EHHE%Eﬁéiﬁiﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{;%%%ﬁ% o —fR
fsh B i B R Bk EL AR B 0 B AN AL A 30
2 E'Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ o —fRiME ¢ HEWK
%?K@ﬂﬂﬁi@%ﬁ B AR 23 40 (T 56 30
Bl e
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24. EMEERWFIAE

Present value

Lease payments of lease payments
HEAR HEMRZEE
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-CE —E-—F —EC-_CF —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million  HK$'million
BHE#ER BEAT BE#ET BEBT

Less than 1 year DR 4 4 4

Between 1 and 2 years 1E2F 2 3 2 3

Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F - 1 - -
6 8

Less: Unearned finance income  J& : ARBREREEE WA - O

Present value of lease payments FERNZZHE 6 7 6 7

Less: Amount within 12 months  J5 : R12EARNZ &%

(shown under current assets) (AEBEEBTR) (4) @)
Amount receivable after R12EAB RN S
12 months 2 3
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group leases out certain of its machineries under finance
leases. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for variable lease
payments. At the end of each lease term, the lessees have the
options to purchase the plant and machinery at nominal prices.

Disclosures of finance lease-related items:

24.

REHERKNREE)

GEE

(0 AEEZETEMOBERAAEHE e
AEHARTERTR - LRI REENHK
TSR - RETEHF - AHAGEA
35 (B4R I E S T, -

b) BERERWERZHE

2022 2021
—EC-CH& —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEAET
Finance income on net investment in the leases FHEREZBRERA - 1
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for (0 BERYERREESERE .
finance receivables:
HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZEFMWA—H 1
Recognised in the consolidated statement RERA B R AR

of profit or loss

As at 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and
31 March 2022

CZE--FMA—BHRK
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. EEFIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and NTRAEEMER T ZREHERE
assets recognised by the Group. REE -
Fair value
adjustments
on property,
plant and
equipment, Fair value
intangible change of
Accelerated assets and investment
tax investment held for
Tax losses  depreciation properties trading Total
nE - BER
®fE - BVEE
& kRENE  HIEEERE
REEE BERE  20VERE 20V EED @it
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEET BEAT BEAT BEAT
As at T April 2020 R=E-ZFMA—H 23 (26) (37) 34 )
Credit/(charge) to profit ERRERAN/
or loss for the year (&) 35 4 (30) (14) (13)
Exchange alignment 3k = = 2 = 2
As at 31 March 2021 and WZEZ—fF
1 April 2021 ZR=t-8k
—Z--F#NA-H 58 (30) (69) 20 (21)
Credit/(charge) to profit ERRBRFA/
or loss for the year (%) (5) 1 (14) (21) (39)
Exchange alignment I 7 R - - % - 2
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZE-—%
=A=t-H 53 (29) (81) (1) (58)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of
financial position purposes:

5. EAEBIE (&)

SR AR RM S - REHIBASR (R
ikt JPrvakiin LNE

2022 2021
—E-—F %
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEET

Deferred tax assets BB EE 53 69
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFETAEE (111) (90)
(58) (21)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of HK$240 million (2021: HK$164 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$52 million
(2021: HK$33 million) that will expire in one to five
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

BER220BFEBT(ZT—F 1648
BEL)BRECHBEE - REARKEE
BERTEFIRA - RERHEBEBEE
BER—FERFRIBZEE2EES
T(ZE=—F:3B3EHEBT) - HMFE
B 1R ] E R EA 4G EE o
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

26. CAS

H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

26. BERREEFB/BYURCERER

2022 2021
—sE=-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBTT
Non-current IEFRE
Pledged deposits (note a) B ER (KT a) 21 S
Current A
Trusted and segregated bank accounts {25t MBI R1TERS (M (b))
(Note (b)) 96 16
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEEY 195 198
291 214
Total FES 312 219
Notes:

(a)

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to banks to secure borrowings as set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients’
accounts in the provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial service
business segment.

As at 31 March 2022, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$34 million
(2021: HK$32 million). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS 27. HtBEWRERT £

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
Notes HK$'million HK$'million

PitEE BEEBT BEET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Prepayment for acquisition of WHEME - WE MEE2
property, plant and equipment TR 8 -
Other non-current assets HEIEmBEE 2 2
10 2
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H At R UGRIB 24 27
Consideration receivables for HEERmEERKRE (a)
disposal of financial assets 66 66
Consideration receivables for HERKEREWRE
disposal of loan receivables 26 -
Deposits to financial institutions & B EF R (b) 3 2
Deposits and prepayments A& RFERN IR 11 8
Less: Allowance for expected B REMEEEERE (0
credit loss (6) 1)
124 42
Total HEt 134 44
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {2884 @R EEAR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS
(Continued)

Htt WA R & (&)

Notes: LEE
(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group disposed @ &EZF--F=A4 _I HIEFE - AEE
financial assets at FVTOCI at a cash consideration of HK$66 HEARTEFEAAE ﬂ:”-l-)\%ﬁﬂiﬁwm
million which is guaranteed by an independent third party and 2% ﬂff, ?ﬁbiﬁﬁ%ééa’%%f EEE
secured by equity interest over a private entity. —ABUB=SNER - WA -ELABRZE
REVEHEAR
(b)  Deposits to financial institutions represented deposits for R
securities investment and trading of futures. b) SHEBEIEEESRENPEERS -
(o) Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for other (@ HA A B E E R AR
receivables
HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2020 R-ZZE-_ZTFWWA—H 40
Recognised in the consolidated statement NS B RNER
of profit or loss 16
Exchange alignment B i, X 5
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 N-BE-_—F=A=+—HK
:?:—iﬂﬂ EI 61
Recognised in the consolidated statement S SR =i=a
of profit or loss (40)
Amount written-off as uncollectible Wi AT e £ 58 (19
Exchange alignment [ i, X 4
As at 31 March 2022 R-_BE-—_—F=A=+—H 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28.

29.

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 28. 7FE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT AEETT
Consumables and others SHAE R R EAD = 2
Spare parts BRZM 6 2
Art works (note) i G (M 3E) - 84
6 88

Note: BtEE -

Art works with carrying value of HK$84 million were disposed at a
consideration of HK$84 million which was satisfied by cash and equity
interest over a listed entity.

REERMBERLZEMRAREMBEE LY
& MR ER-HLEMERZREEN -

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 29. BEPYE
2022 2021
—Eg-= T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEBT
Land use rights 4 b {5 P 368 370
Note: BfIsE -

The properties under development were related to a residential and
commercial mixed property development project located at Port
Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square
meters (or 2,879,343 square feet). The property is held from the
government for a lease term of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097
for residential and commercial building uses.

BRPYERMANERAEREFDRERARER
267,500 F 75 K (2%2,879,343 F 5 R ) Z(EE R EE4r
EMEZRBEER WEBRBRMNRFE  HHAEY9
F RZTFAEF_ANBER  FEERBEEF
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES

B 5 EBWRIR

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEEBT BEBT
Trade receivables 2 5 ERGRIE
Rental income from construction REMMEL A
machinery business 66 46
Provision of other financial services IR HE A2 B AR = 3
Securities brokerage BHELK 82 /8
Rental income from leasing of R EME 2B WA
investment properties 24 23
172 150
Less: Allowance for expected o EEEEEERE
credit losses (23) (15)
149 135

Notes:

(a)

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its
trade customers arising from construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business. The credit period provided
to customers can be longer based on a number of factors
including the customer’s credit profile and relationship with the
customers. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly. The Group has a policy for allowance for
expected credit losses which is based on the evaluation of the
collectability and aging analysis of accounts on every individual
trade debtor basis and on the management’s judgement
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer.

For those commodiities, futures and securities trading clients, it
normally takes two to three days to settle after trade date of
those transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due
from clients are reported as trade receivables from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities, futures and securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their investments to
the Group for credit facilities for commodities, futures and
securities trading. The settlement terms of trade receivables
from clearing houses are usually one to two days after the trade
date.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

30. ESEWIE(E)

GEE

The aging analysis by invoice date of trade receivables (other b
than rental income from leasing of investment properties)
before allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

(%)

B SRR (MR E MR B RARSIN)
RIFEZAHL5) 2 Rk DT CREBTEEE
EEBEFH WT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BHEER BEET
0-30 days 0-30H 27 91
31-60 days 31-60 B 22 13
61-90 days 61-90 B 16 3
91-180 days 91-180 H 19 7
181-365 days 181-365 H 32 5
Over 365 days 238 360 B 32 8
148 127
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for trade (0) BRI E EHEEEBREZS
receivables:
HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZTFMA—H 22
Recognised in the consolidated statement TEREBRRPER
of profit or loss (1)
Amount written-off as uncollectible WEAEE RS /R RIE (6)
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—HK
T —FmA—H 15
Recognised in the consolidated statement TEERE BERTER
of profit or loss 9
Amount written-off as uncollectible Wi AT E SR (M
As at 31 March 2022 R-FE—_—_F=A=+—H 23
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to provide for expected credit losses using the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking

30.

B 5 EWEE ()

AEBERABEMHEREENEIREAT
ZEE  EREMEMERRELRE
BHRWFEHRIAREEEEEE - B
AERIEEER  BE5REFAE KRR
HKEEERREEH BRI E - B
SEERTEEAELER -

information.
Past due
jak
1to 31to 91to Over
Current  30days  90days 180days 181 days Total
B# 1Z308 31Z90H 91Z1808 #®iB180A Azt
As at 31 March 2022 R-B--F
ZA=t+-H

Weighted average MEFEHEER

expected loss rate 5% 12.5% 17.5% 27.8% 40% 13.4%
Receivable amount gEeE(REET)

(HK$million) 80 24 40 18 10 172
Loss allowance (HK$million) EEEE (BEET) 4 3 7 5 4 23
As at 31 March 2021 R-B—-F

=ZRA=t-H
Weighted average MELHEHERR

expected loss rate 3.2% 15.4% 9.1% 18.2% 31.8% 10.0%
Receivable amount BEEEEAER- Yo

(HK$million) 93 13 11 11 22 150
Loss allowance (HK$million)  E#8&4E (B EET) 3 2 1 2 7 15
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31. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 31. UAFEFEAEBLFABREZE
MEE
2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

Listed equity securities FTRARES 275 58
Unlisted fund investment (note a) JEFTESIEE (ffzFa) 223 511
Unlisted debt instruments FLEMEBRITA 20 15
Convertible note receivable (note b) R AT ZE R (it b) 4 4
522 588
Notes: By
(a)  Amount represented the investments in fund: (a) ZeBERESZEE
2022 2021
—EC-CfF —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEER BEBT
Atlantis China Fund mEREES 23 36
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund 12 19
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund 129 456
Kingdom Future Limited (“Kingdom Future”) #EARRAE ([ ) (MisEc)
(note () 59 _
223 511
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31.

*

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In June 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
and shareholders’ agreement with Co-High Investment
Management Limited (“Co-High”), an independent third party,
for the formation of a joint venture (“JV 1") to undertake the
business of development, manufacture, sales and distribution
of therapeutic and diagnostic assets in the Greater China and
South East Asia. The Group holds 51% in this joint venture and
the financial results will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. In July 2020, JV 1 entered into a JV
Agreement with Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V.
("Promethera Biosciences”), an independent third party which
was incorporated under the laws of Belgium, for the formation
of a joint venture ("JV 2"), which will have the exclusive right to
engage in the development, commercialisation, sell and
distribution of cell-based and biological therapies for the
treatment of liver diseases, autoimmune diseases and various
types of cancer based on the applications and development of
contributed intellectual property of Promethera Biosciences in
the Asia. At the same time, the Company has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds of Promethera
Biosciences in the principal amount of up to Euro 10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$88 million) in two equal
tranches. In July 2020, the Group subscribed the first tranche of
Euro 5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$44 million). The
Group did not subscribe the second tranche of Euro 5 million
convertible bond subscription.

As Promethera Biosciences faced with litigations of claims and
failed to obtain sufficient funding to support its research and
development activities, by application lodged in January 2021,
it requested that a judicial reorganisation procedure be
changed by collective agreement of creditors in order to
ensure that the continuity of its business is preserved under the
supervision of a delegated judge. The reorganisation plan was
approved by the Third Chamber of the Court of the Enterprise
of the Walloon Brabant in Belgium in March 2021. Included in
the reorganisation plan was the reduction of the rights of
creditors by 80% or provision for a payment of 20% payable in
5 years (2% per year for the first 4 years and 12% in the fifth
year), but with a better fortune clause of up to 100% of the
value as soon as the value of Promethera Biosciences exceeds
Euro 400 million at the time of its monetisation.

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an acquisition agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 49% equity interests in
Kingdom Future with a consideration of approximately HK$321
million. Kingdom Future, through its interests in a segregated
portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, acquired shares of New
Gains Group Limited, a subsidiary of China Evergrande Group,
which owns Fangchebao Group Co. Ltd.* (EEBEEBRN A
R A 7). The consideration was settled by the allotment and
issue of approximately 867 million shares of HTICI. The
transaction was completed in May 2021.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of listed equity
securities of approximately HK$24 million (2021: HK$nil) was
pledged to secure borrowings.

for identification purpose only
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31.

UAFEFAEAHESLTABRRZZE
MEE(E)
BcE

b) MNIZZTZTFAA - AEBEHEBELE=7] Co-
High Investment Management Limited ([ Co-
Highl) FT SR et AR R i a% + BARK AL —
HEErE(EEREIRAPERKLRER
DR ERE - R HERDWEAERZEHE
EXE AEBBAZEERE LN %R
HEBEEERAEB L PIERESEAR -
RZZTZTFLA AEDE 1 BIRELFR
vE 2 M A 2 2 % 32 % = J5 Promethera
Biosciences S.A./N.V.([Promethera
Biosciences]) i1 L & & - UK —fE&
BHhE(REDLE2])  ZAELEBEES
RAEEF| - 1R IE Promethera Biosciences 2 B2 B
FIABEREDMNZ ERARABEKEHRE B
¥ HERSBEANAERRER BF%
BENRREEREE2ARREYEE @
B ARBIEBARHRES MLt SHERELAS
EHEmAI0BERIT HERKNSAEET)
Z Promethera Biosciences AT 2% &% - i =
TTFLA AEBEREEZE—HSEER
TT(EERKMBEBIT) - NEBEWERN
FEIMSABRUTZ THERES o

i 72 Promethera Biosciences Tl B B 22 #F A
BREESENESTBREFRES AR
T —F-RARERE  ERERAERALEE
RN REEARET  URREREEZEZ
EETREEER ZEEN - AR EEMR
M ERRFER S —F= A%
B/ E - SHEFE BRI EREA 0% 21
F - HIRERSFRN T 20% < BT FRIA (E 4
FEHFE LM% FS5F X AF12%) 0 H M
Promethera Biosciences Z B ER H & ¥ L i
HBiBO0EER T AINESEERSE
100% 2 BF &K -

(0 RZZE-Z—FNA E2RERERIKEHE—F
BYE=FAIZWERZE  RAEN321EBE
BT B RN T IE 2 49% R - FEBBEE
Tisé Opportunities SPCE R EHE 2
s B New Gains Group Limited (FF B8 K& &
ZHBAR  HEFEEEERMAERAFZ
i) - REFZBEELEHTN/AEBKRE
RERZRAIRERD R - ZRHKR =T =—
FHATK °

(d RZZE—_—_F=ZA=+—8 BEFLHRA
BHEEMEN2UEEST(ZS=—F : T%
TEREEZER -
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32. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES

32. BREXRE

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
Notes HKS$'million  HK$'million
PEE BEER BEBT
Imperial Pacific International B X FBIRER
Holdings Limited BRRAT]
("Imperial Pacific") (MEELEE]D (a) 262 262
CISI Investment Limited (“CISI") CISI Investment Limited
(fcist) (b) 167 167
Nanshan Capital Holding Limited @I & AIZERBR AR
("Nanshan") (I ) (@) 360 -
Central Wealth Group Holdings ~ ARiEEEIER B R A A
Limited (“Central Wealth") (TehEE]) (d) 51 -
Less: Allowance for expected B TREMEEEIERE
credit losses (369) (360)
471 69
Notes: P EE

(a)

In June 2018, the Group purchased notes issued by Imperial
Pacific, with the principal amount of US$30,000,000, at a
consideration of US$27,800,000 from Asia Link Capital
Investment Holding Limited (“Asia Link”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Such notes were issued in
January 2017 with three years tenure and bears interests of
8.5% per annum.

In March 2020, the Group entered into the amendment with
Asia Link to modify the terms of such notes. Major
amendments are (i) increase in the principal amount of the
Notes to US$32,550,000, by way of capitalisation of accrued
interests of US$2,550,000; (i) extend the maturity date of the
notes to 25 April 2021; and (i) increase in the interest rate of
the Notes from 8.5% per annum to 10.5% per annum with
effect from 25 January 2020. Imperial Pacific defaulted on the
notes. Full allowance for expected credit loss was provided as
at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

RZT—NFRA  NEBIZRRE 27,800,000
ETMAR R R BE A IERAR AR
((RHAIE ) BERER T FMETASEA
30,000,000kt 2 EE - BEEHENR =
—tF R8T FHAZF  FHEL5% -

RZZ_ZF=F  AKERGHEIE]IIE
BEE] - MERZERIRZ G - EEBFTA
()& B & AL R 5FF 82,550,000 %% 7T #8 2 #&
2 AN FEIE 2 32,550,000 7T ¢ (i) 2% 2 2
HEERZE_ZE_—FWOAB=—+HAH : Kii)
BRI ZFFRA85%AFAZE105%  B=F
—EF—A-+RAHBER - BEATHEEE
BEEEHN RZE_—_FR-T-_—F=H
=+—H  EREHEEEBIREERE -

Annual Report 3§ 2021722 217



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 Ml HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

32. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In January 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
CISI to invest the corporate note issued by CISI with the
principal amount of U5$20,000,000 (the “CISI Note")
(equivalent to HK$156,760,000). The CISI Note was matured on
17 December 2020 and bore interest of 11.0% per annum. CISI
Note was default and is undergoing its restructuring plan.
Expected credit loss amounted to HK$104 million (2021: HK$98
million) was provided as at 31 March 2022.

On 25 June 2021, the Group executed an order with Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited (“SCB") for the purchase of notes,
with principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “Nanshan Notes")
at a consideration of US$45,337,500 (approximately HK$353
million). The Nanshan Notes were offered by Nanshan Capital
Holdings Limited to SCB in a private placement. The Nanshan
Notes is interest bearing at 7% per annum, guaranteed by
Nanshan Group Co., Ltd and due on 28 June 2022. Expected
credit loss amounted to HK$2 million was provided as at 31
March 2022.

In 7 September 2021, the Group purchased notes (the “Central
Wealth Notes”) issued by Central Wealth, with principal
amount of HK$50,000,000, at a consideration of HK$50,000,000.
The Central Wealth Notes is interest bearing at 9% per annum,
unsecured and due on 7 September 2022. Expected credit loss
amounted to HK$1 million was provided as at 31 March 2022.
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32. EIRG¥ERE(E)

BYEE -

(b)

(%)

RZZTZTF—F  REFHCISIF] %
LATR & 7 CISI BT 8697 78 & %8 /& 20,000,000 3£ 7T
(#HE 72 156,760,000 70 ) 2 1 E Z R ([CISI
ZE]) - CSIZER=Z=ZTF+=-A++tH
ZIH - I?ﬁziﬂ$110%;ﬁr§ CISIZEE &
4 BEBEMELANE - R=_T-_—F=A
=+—8- ﬁk)"ﬁ%ﬁhh)&ﬂ%%ﬁ%%m
([ZZE=—F:98FEBTT) °

RZZE=Z—FXA=+AHB  AEERLEHE
¥ETARAR( LEFERT MITIER
LARS B AN 4 %8 4 45,000,000 L 2 &5 (T@LL
=) - KRB A45,337,500 % 7T (49353 B &8
7o) o MILZEIE AR EILE AR AR A AR
ABEFRIRERE T LEHERT - mUER
BREMETI%TE - THEILEEBRQAIE
R RZE-_FXA-+N\BEH - R=F
CoFEZA=+—H  iRBEHEEEE2E
BT -

RZZB=Z—FNALH AEEEERPESE
1744 %8 450,000,000 T2 ZE([hiEE
¥ 1) + {8 /450,000,000 7T  HiE ZIRILF
%IJ$9%§+E REEHEIRNR-_ZT==FNA

HEf- RZT-_—F=F=+—H 2
%E%ﬁf;%@ﬂ;1 HEET -
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HE&SE
Present value
Lease payments of lease payments
HEAX HENRZBE
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-CEF —E-F —E-CF —E-—F
HK$'million  HK§'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BEBT BEAT BEBRT BEAT

Within one year —FR 13 12 12 11
In the second to fifth years, E-FERERE

inclusive (BEMEREEAN) 18 18 17 18

31 30 29 29

Less: Future finance charges B RRREER (2) (1) N/ATER NATEA
Present value of lease obligations TEEE7HE 29 29 29 29
Less: Amount due for A R 1218 A REIE

settlement within 12 months ENzeE

(shown under current liabilities)  (RREIEEE NHR) (12) M)
Amount due for settlement R12H A& B BER

after 12 months x| 17 18
At 31 March 2022, the average effective borrowing rate RZEZZF=A=+—8H " FHEKRRE
was 1.4% to 4.34% (2021: 1.5% to 4.84%). Interest rates BERBI14%EL434%(ZFE - —F : 15%
are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the F4.84%) - MIEREXHNBEEE - ~5E
Group to fair value interest rate risk. R A A E A R E o
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34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 34. RITREMEE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Bank borrowings RITIEE 654 91

Loans from other financial institutions Hit S g2 Ex 1,228 1,275

Loans from a director of subsidiaries —EZMBARIESZ 2 ER 40 60
1,922 1,426

Representing: ¥

Current mED 1,734 511

Non-current JERED 188 915
1,922 1,426

The borrowings are repayable as follows:  EEEERBERINT

On demand or within one year BERS AR —FENRN 1,734 511
Between 1 and 2 years 15825 174 54
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 14 861
1,922 1,426

Less: Amount due for settlement o R 12ME A REIEER 2

within 12 months ¢ (RRBEaFEE

(shown under current liabilities) TFR) (1,734) (511)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R 1218 B2 5| ERE N~ &5 188 915
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34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 34. BRITRAEMEE(E)

Notes: FiEE
(a)  The average interest rates at 31 March were as follows: (& MR=ZA=+—RAZFHFEMT :
2022 2021
—Eg-= —F -

Bank borrowings RITEE 3.50% 3.88%
Loans from other financial institutions HEE @ rER 5.18% 4.90%
Loans from a director of subsidiaries —ZBRARIEEZER 3.00% 3.00%

(b)  Borrowings arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the (b) EEZREEMNERFE  AEEBRMAEQAFE

Group to fair value interest rate risk are as follows:

FIREBWT :

2022 2021

—E-— —E—F

HK$'million HK$'million

BEER BEBT

Bank borrowings RITEE 593 12
Loans from other financial institutions HEih & mliE s BXR 1,234 1,272
Loans from a director of subsidiaries —HWBRBRIEEZER 40 60
1,867 1,344

Other borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of the Group's borrowings (c)
approximate the carrying value of the borrowings.

Bank and other borrowings of HK$1,864 million (2021: HK$1,341 (d)
million) are secured. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts

of financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for

certain bank borrowings and loans from other financial

institutions are as follows:

HiBERFBMEGTE - AREEMARER
ERENEEAR -

BERfhE AREERZATEEBREZERE
BERE -

RITREMEE184BEBT(ZTE_—4F:
13 EBET)EER - RZT=Z=F=A
=+—H " EAETRITEEREMSREE
CERERzeRmRIFCHMEEZREEN
I

2022 2021

—E-C—HF —E-—F

HKS$'million HK$'million

BEER BEBT

Investment properties A 1,625 1,603

Corporate note receivables JEM b R 15 358 5

Property, plant and equipment L E =N ] 114 108

Financial assets at FVTPL AAFEFEEHEE (LT ABREZ

SREE 24 =

Pledged bank deposits BEHEMIRITER 21 5

Loan receivables U E R - 54

Total assets pledged as security ERBRZEREELE 2,142 1,770
Certain bank and other borrowings of the Group are secured (e) REBETFHRTREMESIUETHEBAT

by equity interest of certain subsidiaries.

2 R RE{EIEAR -
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35. CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES

35. BNEXRE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$'million  HK$'million

BEBET BEET

Current portion mENEE D 390 272
Non-current portion ERENE D 40 380
430 652

Notes: MisE -

(@) In January 2018, the Group entered into a subscription (@ ZE-NF-—A FAEEBHE-EZBIUE=H
agreement with an independent third party (the “Noteholder”) (Z2EEEANRARSFEAIOBEB THE
for the note with principal amount of HK$350 million. The BRI REZ - RENIHARFTEE
maturity date of the notes is five years after the issue date and T - WRETFEREFNE.75% S - BRI
bears fixed coupon rate at 9.75% per annum. Pursuant to the REWENGER AEBERRETEERHR
terms of the subscription agreement, the Group may redeem FRBORE EHENBRSESR
the notes within five years from the issue date. The redemption
amount of the notes will be:
if the redemption is made on the date falling: WA LAT BEARE D -

applicable rate
BRLLX
the first anniversary of the issue date BITRHE—(EESF 103.00%
the second anniversary of the issue date HITHHE —EBRF 106.35%
the third anniversary of the issue date ITHEAE =(ARAF 110.15%
the fourth anniversary of the issue date FITAHENERES 114.35%
the fifth anniversary of the issue date BITHHEREAST 119.10%
The Group entered into an early redemption agreement (the REER -_ZE-—FXRATHRERBEREAR
“Redemption Agreement”) with the Noteholder on 10 June TiRFEE R ([BEwE]) - it - NEE
2022, pursuant to which the Group and the Noteholder agreed REBFAEARNEREEELRSBERI0AE
to the early repayment of the Group's corporate notes at the Bz AEECXER([0EXFR]) - BRE
principal amount of HK$350 million (the “Corporate Notes”) HAEARE#REEL: R_T-__F=51
and the Noteholder agreed to waive the redemption premium. =+—8  AEEHRIEREN TS R ERNE
As at 31 March 2022, the Group recognised interest payable EE17AEBETRMBSETT - RIZBE
and redemption premium payable of HK$17 million and HK$54 # - ENECes4aESTEEHRE
million respectively. Pursuant to the Redemption Agreement,
the redemption premium payable of HK$54 million has been
waived.
(b)  Remaining notes bear interests ranging from 4% to 9.75% (2021: (b) FREBIRFRIENFANZE.75% (ZF=—

4% to 9%) per annum and will mature in 2023 (2021: 2022 and
2023).
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36. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

36. UAFEFEREHBLFABREZS
meE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEET
Current Mk
Call option (note a) REEHRE (FisEa) = 113
Non-current JEE
Corporate note payable (note b) A E R (FiEb) 629 628
629 741
Notes: M -
(@)  In May 2016, the Company entered into a share subscription (8 Z—T—AERA - AAFEBYE = Vandi

agreement with Vandi Investments Limited (“Vandi”), an
independent third party, to sell 7.59% equity interests in HTM
at a consideration of approximately HK$312 million (“Share
Subscription Price”). Upon the completion of the HTM
subscription agreement, the Company entered into a call
option deed with Vandi. According to the call option deed,
Vandi has the right to subscribe up to 389,940,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.8 per share, totaling
approximately HK$312 million which was the same as the Share
Subscription Price. As a result of the bonus issue in July 2017,
the number of conversion shares and exercise price were
adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and approximately HK$0.69 per
share accordingly. Upon the exercise of the call option, it will
be settled by: (i) cash; (i) transfer of HTM's shares at the same
price of the Share Subscription Price; or (iii) a combination of
payment of (i) and (ii). Vandi exercised the call option on 24
August 2021 by transferring of HTM's shares.

(b)  InJanuary 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Alcott
Global Limited and issued note with principal amount of
HK$850 million as part of the consideration. The note has a
maturity date of 3 years from the date of issue, subject to the
extension at the option by HTICI. The note bears 5% interests
per annum, subject to the satisfaction of (i) having received
audited financial statement of CESIZ prepared under HKFRS;
and (i) the return on net assets of CESIZ, calculated by dividing
net profit after tax over net assets, for the previous financial
year achieved 20% or more. The corporate note is carried at
fair value.

Investments Limited ([Vandi|) 5] 37 §% 15 52 B&
Wik UWREXNINEEST(RAOREE]D
HERREETSONEE RERNRREER
Birag AAFEVandizs] Y RBHER
4 o IRIERIBEIERY) - Vandi B REIRITEE
1% 0.8 4 7058 I8 5 % 389,940,000 B AN A A A%
B BEH3N2EEB T BERORBEEM
Ao AR T —tF+ AETARET - ik
R AR 15 8k B I 17155 18 #8 F& 38 2 % 454,930,000
B KRR A9 0.69 78 7T » FETIERIEHRIER. - 8
TP AFREE : (VRE () RERNDRBEE
R EREREZREIRAARD ¢ 3k (i) ST )
()84 E o VandR=ZBE=-—FN\NA =+
BB i 2 K B 18 (O A(D M 178 52 B8 B
1 o

b) ZZEEZ—F— 8 K% HBEEKKEAlott
Global Limited & 21T £ 58 /&850 8 &8 7T
ZEREADHINRE - ZEMNEHA AETH
HR=F THRABEEREIRERIEL
Ko ZEZBIREBS%E - HAFEUTIE
() B WEIIRIBB BT KRS EARED
CESIZE BBk + R (i) E—MBFE
CESIZ 8% & EE |l 3k (JR B Tt 12 73 A BR LA
BEAE)ED20%FA L - REEZHERAF
(EREER
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37. TRADE PAYABLES 37. EZERNRIE
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date BHRNFIBREBEKRE BEE 2 RikD
of receipt of goods, is as follows: o

2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBT

Within 30 days 30HERA 2 1
31 to 60 days 3ME0H 2 2
61 to 180 days 612180 H 2 1

6 4

38. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 38. HttENRIE - BT & REFTER
ACCRUALS

2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAR BEET

Margin deposits payable to clients EEXBmEm  PEREFLL

arising from commodities, futures MENEZEFRES (Hita)

and securities brokerage (note a) 108 17
Contract liabilities (note b) GHaE (FisEb) 6 3
Accruals EETE A 17 15
Interests payables FEAS T B 91 90
Others Hi 47 39
Amount due to a director of BN —ZM B AREEHIE

subsidiaries 20 -

289 164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

38. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 38. HittENFIE EWFTE REFTERA

ACCRUALS (Continued) (4&)

Notes: BSE -

(a) Margin deposits received from clients for their trading of (a) NEERMAEAY KRB REBELSIRENK

commodities and futures contracts were payable on demand. e

(b) (b)

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April

2022 2021 2020

R=ZBZZHF R_T_—F RZ_ZTF
=A=+-H8H =ZA=+—H mA—H
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million

BEERT BEAT BEAT

Contract liabilities — advances AHBE—BREFR
received from customers KIE 6 3 3

2022 2021
—EC-CH& — T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AREFT

Revenue recognised in the year that REVFAEHNBEZ

was included in contract liabilities FRRERMA
at beginning of year 3 3
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations RERPBEREXBHE EWTEHRRATFEEHR
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as RBAZZHE
revenue in:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
2022 —F-—F - 3
2023 —To=F 6 -
6 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

38. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 38. HittENFIE EWFTE REFTERA

ACCRUALS (Continued) (4&)
Note: (Continued) st (88)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FREHNEBEZERES) :
2022 2021
—EC-CH& —E-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEET
Increase due to operations in the year A EEE E MG 6 3
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BERESHEEZWA 3 3
A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer B BEAEEEKNEFRE (HEHK
products to a customer for which the Group has received BrRESHE) MAGEERTEFPZEE -

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

39. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES 39. ERARRERE
CB1 CB2 Total
AmREE1 ATBREE2 Lo

HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBIT BEETT AEETT

(note a)
(Mt5ta)

As at 1 April 2020 R-ZE-—TFMPA— 72 = 72
Liability portion of new issue  #%77 2 BEZH - 89 89
Interests charged 2 YA 6 2 8
Extinguishment loss on early  RREOAE 2 (EEEIE

principal redemption 1 = 1
Redesignation of fair value of ~ IR R BE O A M EH

repurchase consideration EEBREREATE

as a result of early principal

redemption 1 - 1
Early principal redemption REBOAS (10) - (10)
Early conversion REHA (46) @1 (137)
As at 31 March 2021 and W_ZE_—F=RA=+—8H

1 April 2021 R-E-—45mMA—H 24 = 24
Interests charged 2 UHER A B 1 - 1
Gain on early redemption REEMDO 2 Was (MisEb)

(note b) (9) - (9)
Redesignation of fair value of FEiRFREOIASMEH

repurchase consideration EEBERREATE

as a result of early principal (Mt5EDb)

redemption (note b) (16) - (16)
As at 31 March 2022 WR-_ZE__F=A=+—H - = -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

39. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In March 2020, the Company issued a zero coupon convertible
note with aggregate principal amount of HK$100 million (“CB
1") as the consideration for the acquisition of 50% equity
interest in Success View. The convertible note has a maturity
date of 3 years from the date of issue and contains a right to
convert at a maximum of 400 million shares of the Company at
the conversion price at HK$0.25 per share. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, aggregate principal amounts of HK$60
million were early converted into the ordinary shares of the
Company and aggregate principal amounts of HK$10 million
were early redeemed.

The Group had consideration receivables of HK$16 million
secured by CB 1 with principal amount of HK$30 million.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the debtor of other
receivables defaulted and the Group seized CB 1 with principal
amount of HK$30 million accordingly.
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Wi

(a)

RZZEZTF=A ARBETEACEER
100EBBT((ATBEEE1)NTESAR
BZIE - 1EBUREESLR 50% REMNRIE - Ak
REENIHBE ARTEPRT =6 ¥EF
IR RETNR0.258 T KR & % 400 B B A
RAIRDHES - HE—T=——F=A=+—
BILFEE  RAEBHEOBEBTDIRMER
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ATAE(E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. B
Number of
shares
R inE B
Notes ('million)  HK$'million

B &E (B&R) BB

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &% 0.01 /8 T2 L@

Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, AT _ZFPWA—H -
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 ~—Z=—%=A=+—H "
“To-FHA-BAR
- _F=ZRA=+—H 50,000 500
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZTFMYH—H 6,092 61
Issue of placement shares BITRERND (@) 400 4
Issue of subscription shares BITRERGD (b) 200 2
Issue of shares on conversion of 3,3 B} A] 2 I8 Z 9585
convertible note payables BITHAD (c) 240 2
As at 31 March 2021 and A _—¢ BT El
1 April 2021 MZZT-—FMA—H 6,932 69
Exercise of call option IR (d) 455 S
As at 31 March 2022 R-_F—_—_f=A=+—H 7,387 74
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Issue of placement shares

In July 2020, the Company entered into a placement
agreement to allot 400 million shares at HK$0.25 for each
placing shares to independent third parties. The transaction
was completed in August 2020. The net proceeds from the
share placement was approximately HK$100 million.

Issue of subscription shares

In July 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement to allot 200 million shares at HK$0.25 for each
placing shares to a company wholly-owned by a controlling
shareholder of the Company. The transaction was completed
in October 2020. The net proceeds from the share subscription
was approximately HK$50 million.

Issue of shares on conversion of convertible note payable

In September and October 2020, certain convertible note
payable holders exercised the rights to convert their
convertible note payables with an aggregate amount of HK$60
million (note 39) into 240 million ordinary shares of the
Company.

In August 2021, the Company issued 455 million shares upon
exercise of call option granted to Vandi Investments Limited.
The exercise price was HK$0.69 per share. The consideration
was settled by transfer of a subsidiary’s shares (note 36).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group purchased 59,610,000 shares
of the Company from the market during the year. The total
amount paid to acquire the shares was HK$5 million and has
been deducted from the shareholders’ equity. The related
weighted average price at the time of buy-back was HK$0.08
per share. No share was cancelled during the year ended 31
March 2022.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the shareholders

through the optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.
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GEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

+
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BRITERERSD

REZZZTFLR  ARFRRIMEERHH - A
FRAECE D 0.25 B LML 5% = 77 B # 400
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X o B BCE PRSI S RA A1008 BT ©
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RZZZZFL A ARRFI L RERZ - A
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HAES0BFEBTT

ABEATRERRBERTRED
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BEREATEENBRESHOBEETN
FEAT AT AR SR 1% (B 1 39) B3 /5 240 B B IR AR
A=
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Investments Limited 2 52 f% EAREIE 1 T {0 1 8517
455 B ERKRG - (TEERTR0SET - K
BB E—HE Q.2 R EM (&
36) e

FA AEEETHEARNENS LBD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

HTICI adopted a share award scheme(the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 24 April 2020. The purposes
of the Share Award Scheme are (a) to recognise
the contributions by selected participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain
them; and (b) to attract the right talents for
promoting the future development and expansion
of the group, with a view to achieving the
objective of increasing the value of the group by
motivating the participants to strive for the
continual operation and future development and
expansion of the group and aligning the interests
of the participants and the shareholders of HTICI.

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the board of HTICI
may determine other specific vesting criteria,
conditions and the time when the awards shall
vest. The Award Shares are vested in three equal
tranches of which: (a) 1/3 of the Award Shares
under the award shall be vested in the first
calendar year after the offer date during a period
of continuous service with the group; (b) 1/3 of the
Award Shares under the award shall be vested in
the second calendar year of continuous service
with the group after the offer date; (c) 1/3 of the
Award Shares under the award shall be vested in
the third calendar year of continuous service with
the group after the offer date. A total of 774,929
Award Shares granted to one of the selected
employees are unconditional awards as his
contract provided for such Award Shares are in
addition to his normal monthly salary.

. ARG AT

SXEBRRRACR T _FF
A = 00 BRI (5 R BN (TR
PEEREH ) - BB (3 SR B 0
BEETETESRE LA
UAREBREEMUBERS R
ORI BB AA - SAEEAEE
RARBRBABALY  SEEBH
2 B R A B A O T R
REREBALBHNE ERER
AEBRELEE FEEESE
%2 REBRRIRE R R
KB o

REFFEHA > ERERZREE
EFgVErHMSERBRE
fRiF R BB R B - SRR
“HEEREE T @EBET
ZN3REEA ERFEAAREE R
BHREZHRARRAEEFRS
(b) RENA T 2 1/3 RENR 1D FEFEE XY
FHEBBERAEERE 2E @
BFRE (o) 2ZE)™E 2 1/3 R
MEEZNARERFERANEER
BeE=—EEFHRE RTHEP—
FIBTEREEB S 774,929 RN AZ 1D
TYEARITERE - REATDERABHE
BRMERREZEORE—RAH
PASNZ M3 IR 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 HiZ =& = —

(a)

FZRA=+—HLHEE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 41. L)\H"{ﬁﬁ/itﬁw\ ( z)
Share award (Continued) (a) ROERR(E)
Movement and details of the award shares (the NF G RE) IR ([ BB AR 7 |) &
“Award Shares”) during the year are as follows: wnr
Number of award shares
REBROEE
24 April 29 June
2020 2020 Total
g 32 —E-EF
MA=+MB ARNA=thAH st
million million million
AER BER BER
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 N-E-ZENMA—H
A - - -
Granted during the year AEERE 197 65 262
Vested during the year rEERE (1) - (1)
Lapsed/cancelled during KEFRM/
the year (170) M (171
Outstanding as at 31 March T —f¥=HA=+—H
2021 and 1 April 2021 k=F=_—%NA—H
HARR 26 64 90
Vested during the year AEEFE 9 21 (30)
Outstanding as at RZE-_—F=A=+—H
31 March 2022 AR 17 43 60
Share price at date R B EL 2 IR B (B 7T)
of grant (HK$) 0.246 0.148
Fair value at date of grant REFHBH s A TE
(HK$ million) (BEET) 48 10
2022 2021
=LA==E —E—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBET BEET
Share-based payment expenses PARS AR 72 A 5K 2 6 8
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 41. UBRBREXARE)
(@) Share award (Continued) (a) MfpEeRE ()
Details of the specific categories of award shares BEesaR 2 REVRMD BT

are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
Numbers of Numbers of
Date of grant Vesting period share awards share awards
REBH BEH R B B frfn 52BN 2 B
(million) (million)
(BER) (AER)
24 April 2020 “E-TF 24 April 2020~ “E-EFENA-FINAER
MA=+ME 24 April 2021 “E_-FWUAZ+EA = 9
24 April 2020 —E-FTF 24 April 2020~ “E-EENA-FIRRE
MAZ+mHA 24 April 2022 “E--FMA-+MA 9 9
UApil 200  —E-TE 24 April 2020- “E-FEMA-TMAER
MA=+MmAE 24 April 2023 “EC=FMAZ+IWA 9 9
29 June 2020 —T-EF 29 June 2020~ —ZE-_ZFRAB-tNEZ
ANAZTAB 29 June 2021 ZEZ-FXAZTNH - 21
29 June 2020 “E-ZF 29 June 2020~ ZZZZFRAZTNRE
NAZTABR 29 June 2022 ZE-ZFXAZTNH 21 21
9June200  —E-TF 29 June 2020- “TZTFARAZTNAE
NAZTAB 29 June 2023 “Z-=£XAZTAB 21 21
60 90
Among the share awards granted during the year EEHE-_E-_—F=HA=+—H1
ended 31 March 2021, Fok Chi Tak, the executive FEEREZRHERESR - KAF
director of the Company and HTICI, was awarded FEREBRESIEEHNITEEEL
approximately 61 million shares. EEEL 61 BERIED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 41.

(b)

Emolument shares

Movement of the emolument shares granted by

BB AR (E)
(b) ENERAD

FR Z2RERERRERH 2B

HTICI during the year are as follows: TROZEHIT :
Emolument
Shares
<R
6 October 2020
“E-EF+HAKH
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 RZZ-_ZTFMA-BRAKE -
Granted during the year REERE 9
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=+—-HK
and 1 April 2021 R -FMA-BEAKE 9
Vested during the year AEEHRLE Q)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 RIE-—F#=A=+—HHEREL 6
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R B2 RE (BT) 0.395
Fair value at date of grant REH BBz ATE
(HK$ million) (B8ET) 3
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEABT BEBT
Share-based payment expenses AR AR 1 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

41. RGBSR

Details of the specific categories of emolument ARG AR -
shares are as follows:
2022 2021
i et “BC-F
Number of Number of
emolument emolument
Date of grant Vesting period shares shares
RE B BEH HeRAEUE Memkih g e
6October2020 Z—Z-ZF 6 October 2020 - “E-EFTARHZE
+HARA 6 October 2021 (note) ~ —Z=—F+ A8 () - 3
6QOctober 2020 —Z_-F4F 6 October 2020 - S W ES
+AAAB 6 October 2022 (note) ~ —FZZF+A/~H (i) 3 3
6October 2020 —ZT T4 6 October 2020 - —E-TF+ARHEE
+ARH 6 October 2023 (note) ~ —ZE==%+ A8 (Kf3T) 3 3
6 9

Note: These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin and
Mr. Wei Bin, as part of their emolument as non-executive
directors of HTICI. If Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin ceases
to be a director of HTICI for any reason before any
vesting date, Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin shall be entitled
to receive a pro rata portion of the emolument shares
calculated on the basis of the number of days worked by
Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Company had granted approximately 609 million
share options entitling Co-High Investment
Management Limited (“Co-High"”), an
independent third party, to subscribe for the
Company's shares at the price of HK$0.25 per
option share (subject to adjustments) during the
period from 9 July 2020 to 9 July 2023. The share
options have no vesting period. An amount of
approximately HK$39 million was recognised as
share-based payment expenses in respect of this
share option during the year ended 31 March
2021.

MiaE - ERNE TR RERZRIREIFNT
EEFMAERIELL - FREME
**B D o i FFI ST A R BN S A FE (AR

B BN REIEmm A BEERX
BREREEEE - AR E R
S EB RIR L GIMER R o B & B )
AAEEELHMAEERRBEE 2T
HE -

HE_Z_—F=A=+—HILF
B - ARAIEHREA 609 BEM B
B - ETEIE=ANSEEER
BRAF(MSDENE - _F
FtANBRE_Z_=F+AN
B 1 EA R % 3 AR B AR A AR 15 0.25 78
TLZ B (A THAE)BBARAR
- ERETEFBEH &E_ZT
ZT—F=RA=+—HLEFE - E#
HWIBEBBETERSEZERES
B2 AR TE R RF X ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The share options have no movement during the

year and have remaining contractual life of 1.5
years (2021: 2.5 years). 609 million share options
are exercisable as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

These fair values were calculated using the

binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the

model are as follows:

41.

RGN (E)

BRENRFALEZS  Fhe L
FHEISF(ZE_—F 1 25%F) -
KRB —_FR_F-—F=H
=+—H " 609BE &M BEREN]TT
e

BEREIMEETHEAZTBERES
RERAE LIRRZHERN -

BRAATEERA -_BEAMEEER
BEH - R 2 AT

Parameters 2021
28 —m——

Share price (HK$) BB 0.226
Exercise price (HK$) T8 0.25
Expected volatility FEER R IS 47%
Expected life 8 HAF HA 3
Risk free rate 7 [F o A R 0.161%
Expected dividend yield TEHIRR B X 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating
the historical volatility of the Company’s share rice
over the previous 6 years. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group's best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

42. RESERVE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the consolidated financial statements.

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

42. %%

AEERAFEMEBEFENRFESRR
EPNGEYBHREANGEEREHRE
Hl) o

B EERNERXHASHSE QA
FEE - REFEHEARE K
RABRMDEERNES A DK T A
RAEIBRR  HEEERZEDKBREZ
Bi&  ARRIBBREINBEERR
BREPBEDHER -

IO AN R EEEREGEA Y
R M 3Tp A s A E R AR D
EANRARAE T RRERNE
TAKBRENRITEBRENE
BREfERT BB R RF(E
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42. RESERVE (Continued) 42. (&)

Convertible bonds equity reserve arises from the
residual amount of the net proceeds of convertible
bonds less the fair value of the liability component
at the date of issuance. The equity component will
remain as a separate line item within equity until
the conversion option is exercised (in which case
the corresponding portion of the equity
component will be transferred to share capital and
share premium). Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance will be released to the retained earnings/
accumulated losses.

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the Company and
certain subsidiaries with functional currency other
than HKD. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AgRESESRFERELA BKR
BHRAEREFEMETEREE
O RFERERE - S 5T
BREZALDRAZY  BEEER
REEITE (EULIFR T - B D’
1 FEEB o i 88 R = R R R D O
B) - M mEN Eim B BN RTT
% BlEHRBREREAEN, Rt
58 -

X BB RREIL AL B
EEHARE RETHE QB
BRERMELENAAINEEZE - %
FEERIEA S M MR M 3PTE A
SRTRRERE -

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. HREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent RZEBEZ—FRERE=_—F=H

liabilities at 31 March 2022 and 2021. =+—H AEEWEFEMEKNK
RETE -
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44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREE
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEBT
Contracted but provided for: EETAVEREE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - BEER - /
45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. BHAE RS
Key management compensation TREEANETMH
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes HKS$'million  HK$'million
ks BEER BEABT
Short-term employee benefits CHIEEWEA 19 21
Share-based payment VARR A FE AN 3R 3 4
22 25

MRS IS MR EMIBDATHEEIN - B
E-E-—FR-F-—HF=A=+—H
IFE AEBVESAKEH IS -

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no material
transactions with related parties during the year ended
31 March 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(ii)

The Group had other receivables of HK$16
million secured by CB 1 with principal
amount of HK$30 million. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the debtor of other
receivables defaulted and the Group seized
CB 1 with principal amount of HK$30 million
accordingly.

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an
acquisition agreement with an independent
third party to acquire 49% equity interests in
Kingdom Future with a consideration of
approximately HK$286 million. Kingdom
Future, through its interests in a segregated
portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, acquired
shares of New Gains Group Limited, a
subsidiary of China Evergrande Group, which
owns Fangchebao Group Co. Ltd.* (F £ &
S BER D BR A F]). The consideration was
settled by the allotment and issue of
approximately 867 million shares of HTICI
which had fair value of approximately HK$320
million. The transaction was completed in
May 2021. This investment will be treated as
a financial asset at FVTPL on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

* for identification purpose only
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows the Group's changes in

46. FERTREBRMEE(E)

(b) BMEFBELEGEZEH

TREJFALAEERERBHES

liabilities arising from financing activities during ZEEEH:
the year:
Total
Amount liabilities
duetoa Bank Corporate  Convertible from
director of and other note note Lease Interest financing
subsidiaries  borrowings payables payables liabilities payables activities
Ef-4
WEAR &R HEED
ESHE HfE  ENLEEE EGTARZE HESE EAS aEEE
HKSmilion  HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKS'milion ~ HK§'milion ~ HK§'milon ~ HK§'million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
Asat 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZEMA-R = 142 662 7 40 % 20
Changes in cash flows Biigsy = (121) (450) (10) (12) - (593)
Non-cash changes FHEEY =
— Transfer to interest payables —BAEMFE = v 63) = = 65 =
— Finance costs —BEUA - 45 133 8 1 - 187
— lssue of convertible note —WE-HNBAARET
payable upon acquisition ERTERSE
of a subsidiary - - - 89 - - 89
— Extinguishment loss on early —REEEAECER
principal redemption 5! - - - 1 - - 1
— Re-designation of fair value —RRTEOALT
of repurchase consideration EfETBERE
as a result of early principal AT
redemption - - - 1 - - 1
— Early conversion —RRis - - - (137) - - (137)
— Acquisition of a subsidiary —KE-HREAT - - 370 - - - 30
— Exchange difference —[ERES - 8 . _ _ . 8
As at 31 March 2021 RZF--F=f=1-A
and 1 April 2021 R-E-—%WA-H - 1426 652 24 29 0 221
Changes in cash flows BERERD 12 530 (222) - (15 (151) 154
Non-cash changes FHREE
— Finance costs —BERK = = = 1 1 157 159
— Extinguishment loss on —REERAS7EE
early principal redemption Big - - - 0 - - 0
— Re-designation of fair value —RRPEEOAEM
of repurchase consideration EiEERERE
as aresult of early principal AT
redemption - - - (16) - - (16)
— Purchase of property, —WENE  BERAE
plant and equipment 8 - - - - - 8
— Exchange difference —EHES - (34) - - - 6] (39)
— Aditions of lease —REHE - - - - 14 - 14
As at 31 March 2022 RZF-Z%=f=1-H 20 1922 430 - 29 N 2492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

ARARPBBRRABRRFEEREE

Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATBMBRTER
2022 2021
—EC-CH& T4
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBRL BEBT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries YNGR 1,475 2,332
Pledge bank deposit EIIFRITIER 21 -
1,496 2,332
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGIE e 2,922 2,852
Other receivables, deposits and HabfEWFRIE « 7Te RFRFRIE
prepayments 1 -
Financial assets at FVTPL AAFEEHEBEEZLETA
BasemEE 4 =
Corporate note receivable e ERE 64 69
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED - 8
2,991 2,929
Total assets BEHAE 4,487 5,261
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables and accruals H A e IE R FEEH B 80 84
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 372 563
Corporate note payables M EERE 390 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE e 1,496 1,235
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WAEEA=BHEZLETA
BnzemasE - 113
2,338 1,995
Net current assets REBEEFE 653 934
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERBABHERE 2,149 3,266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. XATHMBERRBERRFEESE (E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ADATHBMRRER(B)
(Continued)

il

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Bank and other borrowings RITRHAMES 157 -

Corporate note payables JERT R ERE 40 350
197 350

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,952 2,916

Capital and reserves AR @

Share capital % 74 69

Reserves =& 1,878 2,847

TOTAL EQUITY R RE 1,952 2,916

The statement of financial position of the ARG BRARR T _FX

Company was approved by the Board of Directors AZtThBEEZESgE  WHMK

on 29 June 2022 and was signed on its behalf: TEERRRE:

Fok Chi Tak Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. EXRBBRRBRREAFEED (E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) AATHEES
Share-based
Share payment Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
UBRAFR
R EE xRt Hivfite S| Eh
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEATL AEAT BEET BEATL
As at 1 April 2020 RZE-_ZFMA-A 4,531 - 40 (1,590) 2,981

Loss and total comprehensive FABBEREAERLEE
loss for the year - - - (369) (369)

Transaction with equity holder HERHEARS

Issue of placement shares BORERD 144 _ - _ 144
Issue of shares on conversionof X IAERATARE
convertible note payables BEZTRN 52 . - _ 52
Issue of share option BITRRE = 39 - - 39
196 39 - - 235
As at 31 March 2021 and W_BE-—%=A=1+—-H
1 April 2021 k=Z-—-FmA—H 4,727 39 40 (1,959) 2,847
Loss and total comprehensive FREBREABEAE
loss for the year - - - (1,053) (1,053)
Transaction with equity holder HERREARS
Exercise of call option TEREE 84 - - - 84
As at 31 March 2022 R-Z-—%#=f=1-H 4,811 39 40 (3,012) 1,878
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e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 48. MM D7z
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022 RZEZ—_F=ZA=+—HZHB
are as follows: NRIFEAT -
Issued and
Place of fully paid up Equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment registered capital  ownership interest  Principal activity
e,/ BRITRARRA/ B L $5
ER2E BB AR EfERE IEXRH
2022 2021
ZE-CE -“T--F
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Limited - Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Aceso-Promethera”)
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Limited &% 100087 REARK

([ Aceso-Promethera))

Alcott Global Limited ("Alcott”) BVI US$100  47.13% 53.24% Investment holding
Alcott Global Limited ([ Alcott ) EBRUES 100%7T RERRK
Beijing Hao Tian Investment Fund PRC U5$370,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Limited

FRERRERSERARAR t 370,000%7 REHR

Big Wish Developments Limited BVI US$100  47.13% 53.24% Investment holding
("Big Wish")

Big Wish Developments Limited EBRAHE 10057 RERRK
(IBig Wish])

Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000000  47.13%  53.24% Construction machinery
rental and trading
and sales of
construction
materials business

ALARATH BB 1,000,000 7 BRERRAERHEE
NRREMREE R
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. RMIBAR Z R (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a) ETEMBABIFE(E)

(Continued)

Issued and
Place of fully paid up Equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment registered capital  ownership interest  Principal activity
Y/ BRTRARRAE/ BT 35
BRER RS AfEx ElERE IERH
2022 2021
—E-CE -“F--F
Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ~ 47.13%  5324% Construction machinery
rental and trading
and sales of
construction
materials business
AEHARAT B 187 BEBRBERHEENR
BEMBIEE X
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd.("Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit2 ~ 47.13%  53.24% Property development
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. ([ Dasar]) i Vil 2EREDLE EZ
Esteem Ocean Limited BVI US$t 100% 100% Investment holding
HAERAR ZERNES 1% RERR
Fujian Nuogj Co., Ltd PRC RMB122,158,800 60% 60% Retailing of men’s and
women's apparels
ERRERNERAT i AE#122,1588007C RERIERE
Glory Century Limited Hong Kong HK$100  47.13%  53.24% Investment holding and
provision of group
management and
administration
services
SARRAT BB 10077 REBRARRHEE
BE RIS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. NMB AR 2= (8)
Issued and
Place of fully paid up Equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment registered capital  ownership interest  Principal activity
A BRTRARRA/ fEgRR
ER2E BB AfER EfERE IEXH
2022 2021
ZE-CE -“T--F
Hao Tian Credit Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000000  47.13% 53.24% Money lending
RREERRAA B 200,000,000 7T HE
Hao Tian Finance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,210,000,000 100% 100% Money lending
RRMBERAR B 1,210,000,000 7 HE
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) Co., Limited  PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EXREROLR)EHRRAT Gilzi ARH5,000,0007C RERRK
Hao Tian International Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000  47.13% 5324% Commodities
brokerage
EXREREARAT] B 10,000,00078 7 Amii
Hao Tian International Financial Holdings  Hong Kong HK$10000000  47.13%  53.24% Investment holding
Limited
ERER T RERARAA & 10,000,000787C REZR
Hao Tian International Securities Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$180,000000  47.13% 53.24% Securities brokerage
business
ERERESFERAT i 180,000,000 72 BRBEER
Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,821 100% 92% Securities investment,
Limited ("HTM") investment holding
and provision of
management
services
SRER(EB)ARLA(RKER)) FB 10821787 BERE AR
R E R R
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. RMIBAR Z R (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a) ETEMBABIFE(E)

(Continued)

Issued and
Place of fully paid up Equity interest
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable
Name of the subsidiary establishment registered capital  ownership interest  Principal activity
AT/ BRTRARRAE/ B 1 35
BRER R AfEx ElERE IERH
2022 2021
ZEZZE “T-o-F
Hong Kong Energy & Mining Investment  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading of futures
Management Limited
BN R RAERARLA B 18 HEEE
HTICI Cayman lslands HK$75,593,561 47.13% 53.24% Investment holding
EREARERR REHS 75,593,561 & T REBR
KB Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$T ~ 47.13%  53.24% Construction machinery
rental and trading
and sales of
construction
materials business
BUERERAR & 18T RERHEE RHFEAR
BEMAHERH
Merrymaking Investment Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EERNES 10,000%7 RERRK
Pleasing Results Limited BVI 1S$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EERNES 10,000%7 RERRK
Win Team Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EERNES 1% RERRK
55Mark Lane S.ar.l. Luxembourg Euro20,000 100% 100% Rental business
ERE 2000087 HEXHK
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e M BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the
best effort by the Group’s management to translate their
Chinese names, as these subsidiaries do not have official
English names.

(2)  All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

(3)  The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries

The following table shows information of
subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests
("NCI") material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

48. RMEAR 2@ (%8)

(a)

TEMBARFE(E)

GEE

(1) B‘RETHEARLEERNEXAN
WZEMBRARZ R BRI AEEE
12 fE V8 S BpRE E AR SR AE o

2 HFAELATEEMRIMEARERE
REELQF

Q)  LERBIEAEEEE  AERAEE
REBZEZMBARRFE -

ERFEENMBERF

TRENAKEHBAREEEA
FEER i R ([ SRR s B R -
M B ER R R BRI A R H
Al 2 78
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. RIB LRz (8)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) EXRFZEMEQAT(E)
(Continued)
(i) Chim Kee Company Limited (i) HZBERAE
2022 2021
—E-C-F T
HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BHEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March ~ R=A=+—BzBERARE
Current assets MBEE 69 67
Non-current assets EREBEE 165 222
Current liabilities wEas (56) (63)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (30) (65)
148 161
Profit or loss for the year ended HEZA=T—RALFE
31 March 2B
Revenue WA 26 42
Loss and total comprehensive FABELZEEBBRES
loss for the year (13) (12)
Loss allocated to DI E IR R 2 B
non-controlling interests (6) ()
Dividend paid to XA FIEERR R 2 RR
non-controlling interests = =
Cash flows for the year ended HEZA=T—RHILFEZ
31 March Reng
Net cash inflow from REFHREMAFR
operating activities 19 28
Net cash inflow from KEEHHEERAFE
investing activities (20) -
Net cash outflow from BEEBRE R HLFRE
financing activities (9 (25)
(10) 3
Accumulated non-controlling Rt RS
interests 77 77
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b)

48. RTB AR R (B8)
(b) EXRFZEMEBELAT(E)

Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries

i

(Continued)
(i) Glory Century Limited

(i) FABRAIA

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$'million HK$'million
HEBRT BEABT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March ~ R=A=+—BzBEKAE
Current assets TEEE 302 461
Non-current assets FRBEE 85 20
Current liabilities VE=N (436) (385)
Non-current liabilities FrEaE (10) (16)
(59) 80
Profit or loss for the year ended BE=A=T—HLEE
31 March 2B
Revenue WA - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/ &F (134) 26
Other comprehensive loss Hib 2 HEE (5) -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income — FR2E (F18), W BE
for the year (139) 26
(Loss)/profit allocated to DEEIERER L
non-controlling interests (E518),/ &7 (64) 11
Dividend paid to XA T IR 2 RS
non-controlling interests = =
Cash flows for the year ended BE=A=1T—HLFE
31 March ZHERE
Net cash outflow from REFHRERHFE
operating activities (89) (36)
Net cash inflow from BREETEHRERAFRE
investing activities 97 6
Net cash outflow from BEEEIRE R FRE
financing activities (7) -
1 (30)
Accumulated non-controlling 2R ER
interests (31) 38
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{EZE =T - =“F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. RIB LRz (8)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) EXRFZEMEQAT(E)
(Continued)
(iii) Hao Tian Credit Company Limited (i) RAGEBRAF
2022 2021
—E-C-F T
HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BHEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March  R=A=+—HBzAEREE
Current assets mEEE 422 179
Non-current assets FRBEE - 132
Current liabilities mEaE (157) (46)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE - -
265 265
Profit or loss for the year ended HEZA=T—RALFE
31 March 2B
Revenue WA 8 37
Profit and total comprehensive FRmN R 2R EE
income for the year = 8
Profit allocated to DR IR 28
non-controlling interests - 3
Dividend paid to XA FIEERR R 2 RR
non-controlling interests = =
Cash flows for the year ended BE=A=T—BLFE
31 March ZHERE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from mEEHHRSTN
operating activities () %88 35 (134)
Net cash inflow from KEEHHEERAFE
investing activities - 92
Net cash outflow from BEEBRE R HLFRE
financing activities (35) (6)
- (48)
Accumulated non-controlling Rt R
interests 138 126
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H{E =T = =F=A=+—HIFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48. RMB AR 2RER (8)

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)

(Continued)

EXFZEWBLR(E)

(iv) HTICI (iv)] RXEIBREZRE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —T-—F
HK$'million HK$'million
HEBT BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March  R=A=+—Bz&ERAE
Current assets RBEE 1,065 752
Non-current assets FRBEE 883 852
Current liabilities mENAE (315) (292)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE = -
1,633 1,312
Profit or loss for the year ended BE=-A=1+—HLEFE
31 March 28
Revenue WA 9 =
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(E18) 4 (57)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  E 2 (F5E), Mz (11) 11
Total comprehensive loss FHEERE (7) (46)
Loss allocated to DEEIFERER 2 BB
non-controlling interests 2 (23)
Dividend paid to XA TR R 2 R
non-controlling interests = -
Cash flows for the year ended BE=A=1T—HLFE
31 March ZRenE
Net cash inflow from e EBRERAFRE
operating activities 4 292
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KREEZEBREARA
investing activities /(i) 8 12 (258)
Net cash outflow from BEEHEE R L FE
financing activities (12) (45)
4 (11)
Accumulated non-controlling Rt
interests 853 625
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49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 49. REMESE

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the
“Vendor”) and Alcott Global Limited (the "Target
Company”), both are indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Glaring Sand
Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”) entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell 15 issued
shares of the Target Company, representing 15%
of the entire issued share capital of the Target
Company at a consideration of US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$157 million). The
transaction was completed on 16 May 2022.

The Company issued fixed coupon notes with
principal amount of HK$370 million (the “Fixed
Coupon Notes”) in June 2022. The Fixed Coupon
Notes is due in September 2023.

On 22 June 2022, True Well Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
executed an order with Shanghai Commercial
Bank for a bond purchase at the consideration of
US$45,225,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$355,016,250).

On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments
Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, executed an agreement for the
disposal of 49% equity interest in Triple Blessing
International Limited, an associate of the Group at
a consideration of HK$44 million.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z ~Z —~ —“F=A=+—HI-FE

50. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 50. #EREMBEHRR

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved BEVBMEREBREFEN _TE__FX
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HAZ TN B & REET)E -

29 June 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
Year ended 31 March HHEZE=A=+—HILtFE
RESULTS ¥E
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“-N\F ZZZ-NF Z—Z-FF —T-_—-F CZBZ-F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
Revenue A 330 320 296 346 315
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ TH| A +EEER
attributable to: wH(E8) -
— owners of — RRREAA
the Company (445) (381) (284) (376) (370)
— non-controlling — IR
interests 81) (36) b 28 (226)
Profit/(loss) for the year — F R H,/ (E1E) (526) 417) (278) (348) (596)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—T-\F ZE-NF ZZTZTF T —F CZB-=-F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEBT BEBT BEEAT
Total assets BERAE 5,030 5,555 5,034 6,165 6,263
Total liabilities BERE (1,966) (2,771 (2,538) (3,151) (3,436)
3,064 2,784 2,496 3,014 2,827
Equity attributable to NCIEZZE DN
owners of FE(h iR
the Company 2,792 2,631 2,490 2,382 2,002
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